PHA 5-Year and U.S. Department of Housing and Urban OMB No. 2577-0226

A 1Pl Development Expires 4/30/2011
nnual rian Office of Public and Indian Housing

1.0 PHA Informatign . . .

PHA Name: . FiCkaway Metropolitan Housing Authority PHA Code: __OHO59
PHA Type:  [] Small X High Performi?j; [ Standard 1 HCV (Section 8)
PHA Fiscal Year Beginning: MM/YYYY): _01/2012
2.0 Inventory (based on ACC units at time of FY beginning in 1.0 above)
Number of PH units: _ 108 Number of HCV units: _ 535

3.0 Submission Type
[J 5-Year and Annual Plan (] Annual Plan Only [ 5-Year Plan Only

4.0 PHA Consortia [ PHA Consortia; (Check box if submitting a joint Plan and complete table below.)

. . No. of Units in Each
Participating PHAs gl:c/; gr(;)ngsr;l;r;gs) Included in the g?rira;r;:l Not in the Program
© PH HCV
PHA 1:
PHA 2:
PHA 3:

5.0 5-Year Plan. Complete items 5.1 and 5.2 only at 5-Year Plan update,

5.1 Mission. State the PHA’s Mission for serving the needs of low-income, very low-income, and extremely low income families in the PHA’s
Jjurisdiction for the next five years:

5.2 Goals and Objectives. Identify the PHA’s quantifiable goals and objectives that will enable the PHA to serve the needs of low-income and very
low-income, and extremely low-income families for the next five years. Include a report on the progress the PHA has made in meeting the goals
and objectives described in the previous 5-Year Plan.

6.0 PHA Plan Update
(a) Identify all PHA Plan elements that have been revised by the PHA since its last Annual Plan submission:

(b) Identify the specific location(s) where the public may obtain copies of the 5-Year and Annual PHA Plan. For a complete list of PHA Plan
elements, see Section 6.0 of the instructions.
See attached

7.0 Hope VI, Mixed Finance Modernization or Development, Demolition and/or Disposition, Conversion of Public Housing, Homeownership
Programs, and Project-based Vouchers. Include statements related to these programs as applicable.

8.0 Capital Improvements. Please complete Parts 8.1 through 8.3, as applicable.

See attached
8.1 Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report. As part of the PHA 5-Year and Annual Plan, annually
) complete and submit the Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report, form HUD-50075.1, for each current and
open CFP grant and CFFP financing. See attached

8.2 Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan. As part of the submission of the Annual Plan, PHAs must complete and submit the Capital Fund

’ Program Five-Year Action Plan, form HUD-50075.2, and subsequent annual updates (on a rolling basis, e.g., drop current year, and add latest year
for a five year period). Large capital items must be included in the Five-Year Action Plan. See attached

8.3 Capital Fund Financing Program (CFFP).

" [ Check if the PHA proposes to use any portion of its Capital Fund Program (CFP)/Replacement Housing Factor (RHF) to repay debt incurred to
finance capital improvements.

9.0 Housing Needs. Based on information provided by the applicable Consolidated Plan, information provided by HUD, and other generally available
data, make a reasonable effort to identify the housing needs of the low-income, very low-income, and extremely low-income families who reside in
the jurisdiction served by the PHA, including elderly families, families with disabilities, and households of various races and ethnic groups, and
other families who are on the public housing and Section 8 tenant-based assistance waiting lists. The identification of housing needs must address
issues of affordability, supply, quality, accessibility, size of units, and location. Required only in 5 Year Plan but

analaala o
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9.1

Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs. Provide a brief description of the PHA’s strategy for addressing the housing needs of families in the
Jurisdiction and on the waiting list in the Uﬁcoming year, Note; Small, Segtion 8 only, and High Performing PHAs complete only for Annual
Plan submission with the 5-Year Plan. R&€qQUIred only in 5 year plan but completed and attached

10.0

Additional Information. Describe the following, as well as any additional information HUD has requested.

(a) Progress in Meeting Mission and Goals. Provide a brief statement of the PHA’s progress in meeting the mission and goals described in the 5-
Year Plan.
(b) Significant Amendment and Substantial Deviation/Modification. Provide the PHA's definition of “si gnificant amendment” and “substantial

deviation/modification”  Required only in 5 year plan but completed and attached

Required Submission for HUD Field Office Review. In addition to the PHA Plan template (HUD-50075), PHAs must submit the following
documents. Items (a) through (g) may be submitted with signature by mail or electronically with scanned signatures, but electronic submission is
encouraged. Items (h) through (i) must be attached electronically with the PHA Plan, Note: Faxed copies of these documents will not be accepted
by the Field Office.

(a) Form HUD-50077, PHA Certifications of Compliance with the PHA Plans and Related Regulations (which includes all certifications relating
to Civil Rights)

(b) Form HUD-50070, Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace (PHAs teceiving CFP grants only)

(c) Form HUD-50071, Certification of Payments to Influence Federal Transactions (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(d) Form SF-LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(e} Form SF-LLL-A, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Continuation Sheet (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(f) Resident Advisory Board (RAB) comments. Comments received from the RAB must be submitted by the PHA as an attachment to the PHA
Plan. PHAs must also include a narrative describing their analysis of the recommendations and the decisions made on these recommendations.

(g) Challenged Elements

(h) Form HUD-50075.1, Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(1) Form HUD-50075.2, Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

Page 2 of 2 form HUD-50075 (4/2008)
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%w U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Cleveland Area Office, Region V — Midwest Region

Mme\O U.S. Bank Centre Building
1350 Euclid Avenue, Suite 500
OFFICE OF PUBLIC HOUSING Cleveland, OH 44115-1815

NOV 02 2010

Ms. Kim Hartinger

Executive Director

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
176 Rustic Drive

Circleville, OH 43113-1500

SUBJECT: Actual Comprehensive Grant Cost Certificate (ACGCC) and
Final Performance and Evaluation Report (P&E) for
OH16P059501-08

Dear Ms. Hartinger:

Thank you for submitting the ACGCC (form HUD-52839) and the P&E (form HUD-
50075.1) for CFP grant OH16P059501-08. Please note that the ACGCC document must be

included as a financial statement in your next scheduled fiscal audit conducted by the
independent auditor.

If you have any questions, please contact Andrea Vrankar of my staff at (216) 357-7751
or andrea.vrankar@hud.gov.

Sincerely,

;x\\ e )H SN, ‘~\
Susan M. Zanghi, Acting Director
Finance and Facilities Management Division
Cleveland Office of Public Housing

Enclosure(s)

www.hud.gov espanol.hud.gov




Actual Comprehensive Grant
Cost Certificate
Comprehensive Grant Program (CGP)

and Urban Development

U.S. Department of Housing

Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB Approval No. 2577-0157
(Exp. 11/30/2008)

PHA/IHA Name

Pickaway Metropalitan Housing Authority

Comprehensive Grant Number

OH16-P059-501-08_

FFY of Grant Appmv?l-‘ '

FY2008

The PHA/IHA hereby certifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1 ,_,Ttal the total amounl‘ of Modemization Cost (herein called the “Actual Modernization Cost®) of the Comprehensive Grant, is as shown pqlow:
A. Original Funds Approved $ 198,561.00
8. RevisedvFunds Approved o $ - 7179"8,55714.667& 7
C. FundeAdvanced s © lese100
""'(')'j’“}':unds Expended {Actuai Modemization Cost) $ S 19856166ww 1
B Amount o be Aecaplured (A-D) - s 0.00
F. Excess of Funds Advanced (C-D) $ - ’"7'va‘06_ '

2. That all modernization work in connectlon with the Comprehensive Grant has been completed;

3. That the entire Actual Modernization Cost or liabilities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully paid;

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers', contractors', or material-men's fiens against such modernization work on file in any
public office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modernization work; and

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired.

I hereby certity that all the information stated herein, as well as any information prO\ii.&é'& inthe ‘accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prasecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Signature Date
] ’ 10/20/2010
e _l%(m ‘MWQ S
For HUD Use Only
The Cost Cartificate is approved for audit. T - R
Approved for Xudkt (Director, Public Houging Division) Date
\ C \ .
7LDt - lejte e
The auditad costs agree with the costs shgwn gbove{
Verified (Director, Public Housing Division) / /_) Date
Approved (Field Office Manager) ) T I

torm HUD-52839 (2/92)
ret Handbook 7485.3
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ATMENT 5

& : H‘H[JUHU 2 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
= w UK % 5
% I I""I ¢ Cleveland Area Office, Region V ~ Midwest Region
N U.S. Bank Centre Building
1350 Euclid Avenue, Suite 500
OFFICE OF PUBLIC HOUSING Cleveland, OH 44115-1815

APR 01 2010

Ms. Kim Hartinger

Executive Director

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
176 Rustic Drive

Circleville, OH 43113-1500

SUBJECT: Actual Comprehensive Grant Cost Certificate (“ACGCC”) and
Final Performance and Evaluation Report (“P&E”) for
OH165059501-09

Dear Ms. Hartinger:

Thank you for submitting the ACGCC (form HUD-52839) and the P&E (form HUD-
50075.1) for CFP grant OH16S059501-09. Please note that the ACGCC document must be

included as a financial statement in your next scheduled fiscal audit conducted by the
independent auditor.

If you have any questions, please contact Andrea Vrankar of my staff at (216) 522-4058
extension 7128 or andrea.vrankar @hud.gov.

Sincerely,

/" Shawn M. Sweet, Director
Z%L‘ Finance and Facilities Management Division
Cleveland Office of Public Housing

Enclosure(s)

www.hud.gov espanol.hud.gov




Actual Comprehensive Grant U.S. Department of Housing OMB Approvat No. 2577-0157

Cost Certificate Ofice of Public and indian Housing e Tsaen
Comprehensive Grant Program (CGP)
PHA/IHA Name Comprehensive Grant Number
Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority OH16505950109 . § .
FFY ot Grant Approval
FYZ009ARRA

The PHA/IHA hereby certifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. That the total amount of Modernization Cost (herein called the “Actual Modernization Cost”) of the Comprehensive Grant, is as shown below:

A. Original Funds Approved $251 y 339.00
B. Rewised Funds Approve; - M $251 ,339“:00 o -
| ’C‘ Funas A;vaﬁced o $251 ,339.00 ) ' )
o o xpandons (et ocmann Gy +251.939.00
E. Amount to be Recaptured (A-D) $ -0-
" Excass of Funds Advanced (C-D) 5 o- -

2. That all modernization work in connection with the Comprehensive Grant has been completed;
3. That the entire Actual Modernization Cost or liabilities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully paid;

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers', contractors', or material-men's liens against such modemization work on fite in any
public office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modermization work; and

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired.

— i hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Waming: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)
Signature Date

- Bow Jhntinge, Execubve Dicctor 03-30-2000

For HUD Use Only

The Cosl Certificate is approved for audit.

Approved for Audit (Director, Public Housing Division) . ) Date T
e Ry, A . 2/3//2010

The audited costs agree with the costs shown above. {

Veritied (Director, Public Housing Division) Date -

Approved (Field Office Manager) ' Date

form HUD-52839 (2/92)
ref Handbook 7485.3




Annual Statemenv/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capntal Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number FFY of Grant:
Capital Fund Program Grant No:OH16S05950109  Replacement Housing Factor Grant No: FY2009ARRA
Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority Date of CFFP: FFY of Grant Approval:
Type of Grant
[Original Annnal Statement CJReserve for Disasters/Emergencies [ORevised Annual Statement (revision no: )
CJPerformance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: KJFinal Performance and Evaluation Report
Line S ry by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Totsl Actual Cost '
Original Revised * Obligated Expended
| Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations (may not exceed 20% of line 21) *
3 1408 Management Improvements
4. 1410 Administration (may not exceed 10% of line 21) 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 1411 Audit )
6 1415 Liquidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs 20,000.00 20,100.00 20,100.00 20,100.00
8 1440 Site Acquisition
9 1450 Site Improvement
10 1360 Dwelling Structures 231,239.00 231,239.00 <31.238.00 231,239.00
11 £465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable
12 1470 Non-dwelling Structures
13 1475 Non-dwelling Equipment
14 1485 Demolition
15 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration
16 1495 1 Relocation Costs
17 1499 Development Activities *
18a 1501 Collateralization or Debt Service paid by the PHA
t8ba 9600 Collateralization or Debt Service paid Via System of Direct
Payment
19 1502 Contingency (may not exceed 8% of line 20)
20 Amoun of Annual Grant: (sum of lines2 - 19) 251,339.00 251,339.00 251,339.00 251,339.00
21 Amount of line 20 Related 1o LBP Activities
22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 504 Activities
23 Ameount of line 20 Related to Security — Soft Costs
24 Amount of line 20 Related to Security — Hard Costs
25 Amount of line 20 Related 1o Energy Conservation Measures

' To be completed for the Performance and Evaluation Repont.

* To be completed for the Performance and Evaluation Report or a Revised Annuat Statement.
' PHAs with under 250 units in management may use 100% of CFP Grants for operations

* RHF funds shail be included here.

Page 1 of o7
¢




(8002:¢) 1°SLOGS-ANH uuoj

.rh Jo 7 334

/ Pl -} s
onvN\\M\M .‘NMS\ /% L 010Z-08€ ‘ mwn“”ﬂ:: f
ANeq J0y Sardnoy andhg Jo aampuudig AsQg ‘ 10)9241(] AIINIIXT JO 3InjEUS
papuddxy | paiediqQ 1 PFs1AdY |lpmdQ
, 150D 18NV |30, 1500 pAISWDST 1610}, JuN033Y manido[aAi(] Aq Alswmng ury
wodayf uoienjea pue dusmIc (P[] "Fmpuy poIag 10) 1Ioday GODEN[EAT PUE BDUTWICHIII[]
(  oU nois1AI) JUIMIAIEIS [SnUUY pasiaay(] sadBIdsawy/mialsEsi(l 10§ ad3say ] JuawaEs Jenuuy (rudiQ]
weasy Jo adi L
‘jeacaddy Jueas) jo 344 :d440 Jo aieq Aoyiny Suisno ueljodonep Aemexoid
VHHEYE00ZA JON JuBIQ Jope ] uisnoy suswadejdey 5010G650S9 | HO ‘0N WD wesBorg puny jepde)
BLITRYLE & & Jaquny] pus 2d4] 1usID) dweN YHI
Alewwing :] M8g
110Z/0¢/v sandxy wreifolqd Suoweu pun jende)

Fuisnol uetpu] pue A{qnd Jo YO
Juawdo)aaaq weqip) pue 3uisnoy jo wsunreda SN

puE 10j0e§ Juisnol wauddepday ureidoiq puny jeide) ‘urerfold puny [ende)
woday UONENEAT] PUB 3DUBLLIOJIRJAUIWARIS [BNUUY




(8002/%) 1'SLOOS-UNH 1W0) .x\._o ¢ afey

"W0doy UOTIEN[EAT PUE 30UBULIOJI3J 2y} 10 p212jdwiod 2q 0] .
JUBWIIRIS [ERUUY PISIATY B JO L0daY UOHEN[BAY PUE 30UBLLIOLZ] U1 10} Pa1djdwod aq O] |

%001 DO'BEZ'LEZ 00'6EZ'LEC | 00'6£C'LEC | DO'6ET LET oSyl Reijuoy
Juswaoe|dey SJ00YH/SMOPUIA 10000065CHC
%001 00°001°0Z 00700402 | 00°00L'0Z | 00°000'0Z 241 s1507) Buisipaapy
‘Buippig ‘s8ad 08Iy 1 00000650HO
¢ Papuadxy . PAIE3IQ0
spun,j spuny | Pastaay feudug
S3NIAIDY
PIM-VHI/AWEN
"ON JUNO20Y sau108318) JsquinN
}lom Jo stuelg 180 [BNIOY {810 1507) pajewnsy jelo | Amuend) | wawdojaaa | spop Jofepy Jo uonduosa (eseusn wawdojaaa(g
:0N 1UBID) 10198 ] JUISTIO}] WSWIIDL[doy Auoyny
VHHVE002Ad {ON/28) 440 60LOGEGOSIIHO ON WD weiBoud puny jeade) Butsnon uejodosnayy Aemexoid
2JUBAD) JO A4 [BLIPIY qiuny pus adL] jusin BweN VHd
sadeq 3uiLroddng :yf areg
11070/t saadxg weifo1d Suoueul pung [ende)
Buisnog uBIpU] PUE 31{qnd JO 32O pue 10108 Juisnoy uawedseiday weidoly pun jeude) ‘weidoid punyg jende)
wawdojaaa(g weqin pue Suisnoy 3o waunredsc] ‘S 110d33] UOTIEN[EAT DUR 32UBULIOIIRJAUSWIAILIS |RNULY




h 1
(8007/+) 1°SLO0S-ANH uloj A J0 g'a8eq

‘papuaUIE SE '/ €6 JO 19V BUISNOH 'S N 211 JO {6 uoudag o1 juensind [eaoidde JNH Yits pasiasl 2q Kuo ues parep pua aiipuadxa pue uoneslqQ |

Ql0Z-0i-¢ ClL0Z-L1-E 6002-1€-8 0102-L1-¢ 1 0C0006S0HO
ale( pug Qg pud 2t pud ajeq pud
amupuadxg [emoy | anurpuadxq ewmSuQ | uonednqQ [eudy uonedqQ [euidug
SanANOY
(a1eq Buipuy 1uenQ) (dieq Supug saueny) 3PIM-VHIPWEN
, SP1B(1 1381 PASIAIY JOf SuOSEay papuadxq spuny [|y p21ediqQ puny (v 1aqunp wawdojaaaq
VHUYB600ZAd Ruoyiny buisno ueljodonajy Aemexoid|
PweN VHd

JuBli9 Jo A [ESpRg

wesdorg Smourul] puny [sde) 10) Apayds nonviuawadury [y 11ed

wesSo1g4 Sudueu  puny [ende)
pue 10108 Sursnoy Juswade(day ureidoig pung [ende) ‘weifoig punyg rpude)
uoday uonen|eaq PUE IDUBLLIOLSJ/IUSUIIIELS [ENULY

1107/0€/y Soadxy
Sursnogy ueIpu] pUE dUqNd JO IO
wswdojara(] ueqs() pue Juisnoy jo wawedaq ‘SN




(800Z/t) 1°SLOOS-ANH w0}

193eq

“219Y papn|oul aq [[BYS SpUty JHY |

‘suonerado 10§ sjueIn) 440 JO %001 9sn Aeur Judtaeueul Ul SHUN (G IOPUN LM SYH ¢
JUSWIANES [ENULY PISIAY € J0 10doy UONEN[BAY PUE 3DUBULIOLISJ 3y 10] Pa3adwiod 3q o ,
“10day UOHEN{EAT] PUE SOUBULIONS 2U} J0J palR[dwod 2q O,

, semanoy justudo[aadq 6641 Ll
$1500) uoHeIO[Y ['S6¥11 91
uonensuOWa(J YO 0 SUIAON Z61 T Sl
uonI[owa( 3y [ vl
- [3 . [3 . < . <
000068 00°00S'8 000058 00°000°§¢C yuawdinbg Suyamp-UuoN Siti €1
seamonng Swomp-uoN 0L | 4!
s[qepuadxsuoN—juaudmby Sufem( ['S9v1 1!
. 3 . 3 . 3 . <
¢1'688°0¢ 79818 Crl 79818 Tl 00°T¢6 011 saimonyg Suesd 091 01
. < . [3 . < N <
[8°1LC9 0896 L 08°9v6'L 00°0000C AWK YIS O5h] 6
uosinboy aug Ol 3
. 3 . 3 . 3 - <
6'1IvT Sl 9696981 9696981 00°000°CC 51500 pue $33, O£k | L
saSewe(] parepmbr gy1 9
upny [yl S
(17 2ut] JO %Q[ PI2OXa Jou ABWI) UONRNSIUWIPY (] 14
syuswaaoxduwy yuswadeury §0¥ 1 ¢
. < . 3 . ¢ . 3
00°000°0¢ 00°000°0¢ 00°0000¢ 00°0000C ¢ (17 1] J %40 P339X2 Jou Kewr) suonesdd( 9op 1 4
spun,j J.{D-uou [e10], !
papuadxy pa3E3NqO PISIANY [ews3LQ
1 350D BRIV [BI0] 150D pRBWNSH [EI0], Junoedy juawdopaa Aq Arewung 3ury
j10day uopen{eAl pue dUBULIOLA Jeuly [7] IT0Z-1€-L0 :Suipuj poLI3{ 10j 11043y UOYEN[EAY PUE IJUBULIOLIR X
( 10U UOTSIAI) JUALUDJEIS [EnuUY PAsIAN] [] SITOUFIUITY/S FA)SESI(] 10§ dA1383Y ] JuawA)E)S [enuuy [puiduQ [
i) JoadAy
d 4D Jo e
;0N 1URID) 10108,] SuIsnoy] juswdoe|doy
jeaoiddy JuELD o Add 60-106-650d-9THO 0N 1ueID) weidolq puny [ende)) PUR—_ w—
squuy pue adA] yueiny
6007A4 uerD Jo A40 uejodo.ndfy Aemeydld weN VHA

Argurming :y Med

v10Z/1€/¢ saudxg
9770-LLST "ON dINO
Suisnoy ueipu] pue o1pqng Jo 304J0

juswdofaaa(] ueqin pue Suisnoy jo ueunreda ‘S

(

weidoig Suroueur,] puny ende)
pue Jo108] Suisno] juswooeday weidoig pung fende) ‘weidoid punj [ende)
poday] uonenjeAr pUE 2OUBULIONS J/USWIAELS [BNUUY

( (




(800T/Y) 1'SLOOS-ANH ULof

798

219y PaprjaU! 2q [[eys SPUNY AHY ,

‘suonyeIsdo J0J sjueIn) d40) JO %00T oSN Aew JuswasSeuew Ul S)IUN ()67 JOpUn yiim SYHJ ¢
“JUSWISIRIS [BNUUY PISIAYY € 10 poday uonenjeay pue soueuLIojiad ay) 10y pajejdwos 3q o, ,

‘poday UoleN[EAT PUB 30UBULION] 3y} Jof pajdjdwod aq o

§

it ak (heys

e J16322.11(f SuISnof dNqn g Jo danjeusy Je J0332.01(] ARNIIXY JO dImyeusiS

a I(I sUISnOy o1qnd J IS 1107/6T/L0 1B
saImseayy UoneAIIsuo)) A31oug 0} pale[ay 07 2ul] JO JUNowy Sz
§1S00) PIEH - AJLND3S 0] PAR[IY (T SUI| JO Junowry ¥
$1S00) YO§ - AILND3g 0) PAe[3Y (T Sul] Jo Junowy X4
SIUANIY ()6 UONIIG 0] p3te[ay (T dul] JO Wunowy [44
SANANDY ddT 01 P3IE[oy 0T Sul] Jo unowy 1T

. 3 . 3 . 3 . 3
£8°868°001 00°CZ6°L61 00°CC6 L61 00°CC6 L61 (61 - 7 $3U1] JO WINS) ::JUEID) [ENUTY JO JUNOWY 0z
{0z au1f JO 948 Pa99%3 jou Leur) ASudBunuo)) 70| 61
JuowAeg
10211(] JO WIRSAS 1A pied 901A10G 1G9(] JO UOBEZI[RINR[[0D) 0006 2q8[
VHd 2y Aq pred 201A19 193(T 10 UOHBZIBINEI0D [0S €8l
popuadxy paJE3NqO 1 PIsIAdy fewduQ
, 150D [NV [E10], 1500 pajemnsy [€10], Junocddy JuawdoaAd( Aq Areunung ury
110doy uopen[EAY PUE 3IUBULIONMA [euld [] L10Z/1€/L0 :Sutpuy poLid  Joj 110day uonenjeAy pue dUBWI0Nd X
( 10U UOISIAL) JUBWIAIE)S [ENUUY PISIAdY [] SaPUISIIW F/SI3)sESI( 10§ IAFISY [] JUIUIIE)S [ENUUY [BULBLIQ D
Juelo) Jo odAJ,
'dd4D 30 3.
‘0N JueID) 10)0e ] Sursnoy juswaoedsy btosnu”.%%””ﬁ
. 60-105-650d-91HO ON Jue1n) ureidoig puny ended ¥
[eaciddy Jueio) Jo A4 taquny pue 2dA] jueis) Kemeydrd
P ozHueL) jo X44 PweN VHd
Arewuing :f yed
1102/0€/p soaidxy

97C0-LLST 'ON HINO
BuIsnoy uerpuy pue or[qnd Jo RYJO
yuowdoraaa(q ueqiry pue 3ursnoi] jo jusunredad "N

weidoxd Suroueur puny [ende)

pue 10108} Sutsnoy juswaoedey weidoid puny [eide) ‘urerSol punyg [ende)

uodoy uonEN[BAT] PUB 2OUBWLIOLSJJUSUIDIL]S [RNULY




{800T/t) 1'SLOOS-ANH W0} ¢ageq
‘poday uonenjeaq pue 0UBULIONI dY 10) pajaydwod oq o,
JUILIRIRIS [RNUUY PISIAIY © 10 toaod uonenjeAyg pue adUBwWIONdd Y} 10) ﬁouo_QEOQ QoL {
%001 00'005°8 00°005°8 00°00S°8 | 00°000°ST 1 SLYl SPIPA 100000650HO
paplemy syun
19eQUOD/pig T1'S88°0S | +9'LLO'TOT | ¥9°LLOTOI | 00'TTH'SS 05-§T 091 SMOPUT 1000006S0HO
papiemy
enpuon/pryg -0- 00'T¥L°0F | 00 THLOF | 00°00S°SS | SPIM-VHJ 09r1 s[eaapIg/AemdaLi(q/3uned 1000006S0HO
%6L 181429 08°9¥6'L 08°9¥6°L | 00°000°0T spun 9 0s¥1 sjuawaAoldw] J1Ig [eIduan 1000006S0HO
sjun SHULIR{ ‘SUISILIOADY
L8 26 1vTS1 95°959°81 | 95°959°81 | 00°000°TT §9154 801 Pl ‘S30IAIOS JOAYIIY 10J S33, 100000650HO
%001 00°000°0T 00°000°0T | 00°000°0Z | 00°000°0T | *PM-VHd 90r1 uoneradQ 100000650HO
papuadxy | pajesiqo
spung spun,q | pasiaoy [euISiQ
SonAndyY
"ON JUNO2DY sar103918) OPIM-VHI/AWEN
J1oM Jo smelg 1500 [BNOY 810, 150)) pajewnsy [ejo], Anueng) ywawdo[aaa( Jio A Jolejq Jo uonduosa( [e1oudn) JoquunN juawdoraaa(g

6007 JUBED JO XA [eRp3g

‘0N JUBID) 10108, Sursnof] jusweoe[doy

(0N /9K) 444D

60-105-650d-91HO :ON Jueip) wresgoid pun,j [ende)

Jaquny] pue ad4 ], yuean

KAuoyiny Suisnoy uejrjodonsiy Aemeydt{ :sweN YHJ

saded Juntoddng :I]1ied

T107/0€/p sndxy
9ZT0-LLST 'ON dINO
Sursnoy ueipyy pue s1[qng Jo 9910
juswdolaaa(g ueqln pue Fuisnol jo Juswdeda ‘S

weidorg Suoueur puny [ende)

pue 10} Sursnoy Juswadejday weidorg puny [ende) ‘urerdoid puny fende)

1odoy uonen[eAy puE 20UBULIONIJAUSWSIE]S [BNUUY




(800Z/¥) T°SLOOS-AIAH W0} godeq

“papuswie se ‘€61 JO 10V Sursnol "S' Y1 Jo [g uonoag oy juensind [eacidde (AH Yiim Pastadl aq AJuo ued pajep pus amyipuadxa pue uonednqo |

110T-71-60 1102-10-80 L110T-¥1-60 100000650HO
Aeq
ored a1e( pug e pug pug uonesnqo
pug amyipuadxy [0y amyipuadxyg [euisuQ uone3iqQ [enOY reurdizQ
SOTIANDY
(s Suwpuyg 101end)) (18 Surpuyg Iouend) SPIM-VHJ/PweN
| S21B(J 19TIR ], PASIAQY 10] SUOSERY popuadxq spuny [[V pa1e3iqQ punyg [V Joqunp juswdo[aasqg

600T JUEID JO X 4 [e1opa]

Auoyny Suisnoy uepjodonopy Aemexyoid :oweN VHd

weadoid sunuenr] punyj wyde) foJ 3npaydS uonejududdury Iy Med

1T0Z/0€/p saadxy
9TCO-LLST 'ON dINO weidoiq Suroueur] punyg ende)
SuIsnoy ueIpu[ pue d1qnd Jo MYIO pue 10108, Suisnoy 1ustaoe|doy werdo1g pun, feyde) ‘weidoid puny rende)

wewdoaaa ueqin pue Sursnoy jo yusunaeda( 'S N 110day] uonen[BAT pue SJURULIOLISJAUSWIdIRIS [enuuy




(800T/%) 1'SLO0S-ANH Wioj

193eg

2104 Papn|out oq [[eYs SPUNY JAHY

‘stuone1ado Joj SIUBID J1D JO %001 25N Aewl JUSWIOFEURLU W S)UN ()GZ 1OPUN YUM SYH ¢

JUSLURIRIS [ENUUY P3sIAdy B 10 Hoday uonen[eag pue adUBULIONSJ a3 Joj pare[dwos aq o], ,

‘poday uonen[eag pue souBULIOLIR] 3y 1oy pajejdwos aq o

, SAIARY Juourdo[aAa( 66b1 Ll
$35C)) U020y ['S611 91
UOTJRLSUOUI(] IO 01 SUIAOW 7611 S1
uoniow S8y { 1d!
juswidinbyy Julfjomp-UON S/y[ €1
s Sul{[aMp-UON 0L ] [4!
ojqepuadxouoN—juswdinbyg Suljjemd 1°<ot1 1
. < . s . [3 . <
0v'9SE Sl CELYL 8] 88°0LY 8S1 00°'L90°9¢1 samjonng Sutfad 09y 01
Juowaordul] S syl 6
uonisinboy S OF+1 8
. 3 . 3 . [3 . 3
1v'9L6'1 LLTI8TI LLTISTT 00°000°0¢ 81500 PUe 334 O€¥ L
sagewe(j payepinbry ¢1y| 9
POV [ 1fl S
(17 2u1] JO %01 P320X2 Jou Apw) UONEUSIUIWIPY (1] 4
syuawoAoidui] Jusuwadeur|yl 801 €
. 3 . 3
|O| |O| mm .—uwh m ~ OO OOO ON ¢ (17 3u1] Jo 9407 paaoxa jou Aewr) suoneiadQ 90| z
Spunj d.D-uou [e10] I
papuadxy PajeslqO PISIAY [euldLiQ

L 150D [ENRY [¥I0L 150 pajeuInsy [e10] Junody juawdopasq Aq Arewung aury
1oday uonenjeA pue NUELIOMdJ [Buly [ L10Z-1€-L0 :Smpuy poLd 10j 1.10doy] UOIEN[EAT PUEB IUBULIOLIDJ X
( 10U UOISIAL) JUBWAEIS [enUUY PIsIAdY [] SIS I F/S13)SESI(Y 10§ IAIISNY [] JRWIYE)S [enuuy [ewidQ [
juean) jo ad4y,

‘dd4d0 Jo Aeq

:ON JuelD) 10308, Sulsnoy juswase[day
:[eaoaddy JueIsy Jo ALA 01-105-650d-9[HO ON jueiD weidold puny feyde) Aoginy Sursnoy

Jquny pue 3dA] juern
0TOTAA Ul Jo X 44 ueodoa)d|y Aemexdld :dweN VHI

Alewring :f )eg

v10z/1€/¢ sandxg
9770-LLST "ON N0
Suisnoy uerpuj pue oIqng o 30

1uswdopaaa( ueqan) pue Juisnoy jo juowneds( "S'n

weido1d Suroueurj puny [e1de)
pue 10j08,] Sursnol jusweoe[doy weifo1d pun, rende)) ‘weiSoig puny [eade)
yodoy] uonenjeAg puB DUBULIOLD JAUSKINEIS [ENUUY

(




(8002Z/t) T'SLOOS-ANH W0}

793¢

a1y papnjout aq [[eys SpUny JHY |

‘suone1ado 10J SUBID D) JO 94001 9sn Aew judwoSeuew ur sjun (SZ J9PUn PIM SYHJ ¢
‘JUSWISIEIS [ENUUY PISIASY € 10 Hoday] UONER[BAT PUR 30UBULIONSJ 2} 10 pajo[duuod aq o ,

‘uoday] uonen[eAy pue SOUBWLIONS Y3 Joj parejdwios aq o |

Q

;Eﬁi c&._I

Neq 1032211 SuisnoH ANqnd JO 2AnJeudig 1102/6Z/L0 Ned ‘10)03.11(] 9AIINIIX Jo danjeuiS
S2INSBIJA] UONBAIISUO)) ASI1aUg O] PAR[SY (Z SUI] JO JUNOWY sz
§150)) pIeH - KJun02g 0} pAje[ay (g U] JO Junoury ¥
§1500) JOg - KJUndag 01 PARAY (g 3uI] JO Junowy €T
SIIAIDY ()¢ UOKIIG 01 Pajejay (O 2Ull JO junoury’ [44
SINIANIY JHT 03 P[] (T dul] Jo Junowry 1z
. 3 . 3 . 3 . ¢
I8°CEE LT 60665 0S1 00°L90961 00°L90961 (6] - Z Soul| JO WNS) :JURID) [ENUUY JO JUNOUNY 0t
(07 2ui] JO 9,8 P220x%2 Jou ABwr) Aouadunuo)) 7OS| 61
juowked
10911(] JO WSISAS BIA pred 391A19S 193] I0 UOCURZI[BIANE][0D) (006 ©qg]
VHd 243 Aq pred 201AI9g 1G3(] 1O UOHEZI[BINE][0D) [0S €81
papuadxy P390 1 PISIAdY [EUISLQ
L1500 [EN)IV [BI0], 350)) pajewInsy [E10], N0y Juswdopasq Aq Azewwng ur
yodayy uonEN[EA puE dUEULIOLA [euly [] TT0Z/1€/L0 :Suipuy poridd 10j 110day] UGHEN|BAY PUE DUBWLION] X
( 10U UOISIAJI) JUIWAE)S [ENUUY PIsIAZY [ S UIZIIUIF/SIINSESI(] 10J IAISHY ] JUSUIAIE)S [ENUUY [BUISHLIQ D
jueas) Jo adA Y
:d440 30 =1eq
(0N WueIn) J030e,] Swisnoy juswade[day bto:hmﬂwhmwwﬂ
. 01-105-650d-9THO :ON JueIs) wesold puny fende )
(jeaoaddy yueany jo x 44 squiny pue 3dAy, Jueis) Kemeord
010Z:3uetsy Jo Add WEN VHd
Alewwing :J 3aeq
TE0Z/0€/y soandxy

9TCO-LLST 'ON dINO
Buisnoy ueIpuj pue dIqngd Jo 90130
wswdoaasq ueqin) pue Susnoy jo juswieda 'S N

wesdo1g Suroueur] puny [ende)

pue 10108 { Sursnof] Juswaoeday weiSo1d pun, [ende) ‘wreiSoid puny [eyde)

1oday] uonEN[BAT] PUE SOUBWIONRJAUIWDIE)S [ENUUY




(800T/¥) 1'SLOOS-ANH L0} £a3eq
"poday uoen[EAY PuB SUBULIOKAJ ) 0] pajejdwiod 2q o] ,
JUSLUDIEIS [RNUUY PISIATY € 10 10ddy UOHEN[BAY PUB SOUBLLIOHS 3Y) 10§ paje[dwiod aq o ,
Lz -0- -0- -0- | 00°000°6TS | oPIM-VHI 09%1 Surdeospue] 1000008SOHO
%001 0F'95¢'CT$ 0F'9SE°SIS | 0V'9SE'SIS | 00°000°STS Siun G 09%1 o3pry duSIY WLIE]Y/WOdIU]/Ad3] 1000006S0HO
B/u -0- -0- -0- | 00°000°001$ sjun g 09%1 SI0jeIUdr) 1000006S0HO
-0- -0- -0- | 00£90°9% 00°L90°9% siun 9 09¥1 UOHEIPIWSY PION 1000006S0HO
plemy
Renuo))/prg -0- v Er8y9$ | 00°00S°8LS -0- sjun ¢g 0971 spunoung yjeg 1000006S0HO
poplEAMY
Renuo)/pryg -0- 8F'LYS 8SS | 8¥'LPS'8SE -0 spun ¢z 0971 SMOPUL M 100000650HO
-0- -0- -0- | 00°000°01$ | 00°000°S1$ | SpIM-VHI 0tvl npny A310ud/YNd 1000006S0HO
%001 179,618 17'9L6°18 | 1¥9L6°1$ -0 syun ¢ a4 woSAS Ao 10J S)IULIdg 10§ S22, 1000006S0HO
poplemy
enuo)/prg -0- 9¢°5£8°6 9¢°5€8°6 00°000°S sjun ¢9 0evl WRJSAS AT /UONEAOUSY 10] JOYITY 1000006S0HO
-0- -0 -0- | SEP8LST 00°000°0T | °PIM-VHd 90V 1 suoneiadQ 1000006S0HO
quﬁ:omxm %Bmw:@O
spuny spun,j | posiaay rewiSuQ
SANIATIOY
"ON JUN02OY sar10391e) IPIM-VHJA/PWEN
IO JO STIEIS 1500) [BMOV [BI0], 1500) pojewisq [e10 ], Amuend) wawdoreasqg 1o Jofejn Jo uondirosa(g [e1auan) Joqup justudojaasqg
10N uelp) Jojoe,] Sursnoy juatusseday]
(ON /53X) d44D
01-10$-650d-9THO :ON juelD weidoid puny [ende)
0107 :)ueI<y Jo X 1 [e19pa Jaquiny] pue adA T yurao Auoyny 3uisnoy uejijodonay Aemeydld oweN VHJ
saged dunioddng :1j 3aeg
1102/0¢/¥ sandxy

9TCO-LLST 'ON dINO
3ulsnoy uerpuj pue ot[qnd Jo 3930
yowdoraaa(g ueqln pue uisnol Jo juswedaq 'S

weidorq Suoueur punyg [eyde)
pue 10108,] Sursnoy juswaoedoy werdozd punyg [ende) ‘weidord puny [exde)
1oday] uorEN[EAT] PUR SOURILIOND JAUSUIAR)S [Enuuy




(800Z/%) 1°SLOOS-ANH WO} Gaged

"PpUSWE SB */ £6] JO 10V SuIsnoH 'S Ay Jo [ uonoag oy wensind jeaoidde q1H yim pasiaal 3q A[uo Ues parep pus aimipuadxa pue uonednqo ,

v102-¥1-L0 010Z-¥1-L0 1000006S0HO
Aaeq
oed S1ed puyg <1eq pug pug uonesiqo
puyg amypuadxy [enjoy aimpuadxy [euidQ uonesqQ ey rewsuQ
SINIANDY
(a1e Surpuy 1auenQ) (e Surpug 1o1ENQ) SPIM-VHA/PWeN
| SA1B(] 1981 ], PISIASY 10] SUOSEY pepuadxyg spuny ||V pa1e31jqQ puny [V Joquiny justudojaasg

0107 Juerd jo X4 [e9pP3q

Auoyny Suisnoy ueyjodono Aemeydld :oweN VHJ

weagoag supueuly punyg [ende)) 10y Jnpayds uoneymawddmy :IIf 1ed

LL0Z/0€/p saandxy
9TC0-LLST 'ON dINO weidolg Suroueury puny reyde)
Suisnoy uerpuy pue o1[qnd jo 9HJO pue 10)08,] Suisnop] juswadedoy werdord pun [ende) ‘weidoid punyg [ejde)

justudo[aaa( ueqin) pue Suisnoy jo yuawpedsq ‘SN podoy] uonjenjeA PUE SOUBIIONSJUSLUAIES [BNUUY




(800Z/%) 1'SLOOS-ANH W0}

198%q

"1y papn[out oq [[eYS SPUNY JHY |

'suonesado 10 SIURID dAD JO %001 950 Apur JustaSEUBL UT SIUN ()G7 1OPUN YIM SYH
“JUSAIEIS [ENUUY PISIAY ® 10 Hoddy UOHEN[EAZ PUB I0UBILICHAJ oY) J0j pajordunod aq o ,

"Hodoy uonen[EAg pue 20UBULIOMAJ Y 10f para[duiod aq of |

» Sa01AOY Juowdoeas( 661

~
—

$1S00) UONRIO[Y ['S6hI

el
—

UOHRISUOW(] Y10 03 SUIAOW Z6+1

wh

uonijowa S8y |

<+
—

00006y

tuswdmbg Suljamp-uoN /41

(32}

SIS SUIjaMP-UON LY [

o~
—

3jqepuadxsuoN—juswdinby Sufamg 1°59+1

—
—

00'80%°911

saamongg Suifemd o9yl

>
—_

Justasoxdu] aNg oSyl

uonisibay MG Opb|

00°009°9

S1S0D) pue $334 0¢H]

sageuwie(q pajepinbi gyl

npny [1y1

(172w JO %01 PA22Xa J0U ABwt) UOHENSIUILIPY (1]

syuswosoldur] JuswsSeuey 8041

00°000°S€

¢ (17 w11 Jo 94,0z pavoxa Jou Keur) suonesado 9o |

AN on e v [N |~ oo |ON

Spun 40-uou [e10],

papuadxy

ParesNqO

PISIAY [COTEINTS)

L1500 [ENOY [0

1500 pajewysy [€I0L,

JuNnoNYy judmdopadq Aq Areurnung

aup]

110doy NONEN[EAT PUE OUBULIONIS] [BUL] [

:Suipuy poiiag 10 1ioday UOHEN[EAY PUE DUEULIONRJ [ ]

( 10U UOISIAJL) JUILIIIE)S [ENUUY PISIARY 0 SAUIIIAUIF/SI)SESI( 10§ daLasY [] JUSWA)E)S [BNUUY [BUBLIQ X
juean) jo adA L
1102/£0/80 *dA4D Jo 3reQd
‘ON JURIL) 10306, Suisnoy juswadeidoy
1107 :1eaoaddy jueany jo x44 11°10$°650-d"91-HO N E.MO_.N_NEMEW WMM,,_ ?n.._.w_.wu fuopny Suisnoy
110T :3uer) jo Xdq quinN pu L e ueyododay Aemednd dweN VHd

Argewiwing :J Jed

v10z/1¢/€ sendxg
9ZT0-LLST "ON INO
BuIsnoy ueipu] pue o1[qng Jo 3IYFO

juswidoraas(g ueqin) pue Sursnoy Jo jusunreds( ‘S

(

weidord Suroueur,] punyj [ende)
pue 103oe,] Sursnoy juswasoe(day weioig punyg [ende) ‘weiSorg puny [ende)
1odoy uonenjeAq pue SOUBULIOLIS JAUSISIE)S [BNUUY

(




(800Z/t) 1'SLOOS-ANH W0}

7938eqg

2104 papnpdur 3q [[2Ys SPUNY JHY

'suonezado 1oj sjuRID) J40 JO %00] asn Keur justusSeurw ui spun )Gz JOpUn Yim SYHJ c

JUSWIB)EIS [ENULY PISIASY B 10 10doy UoNen[eAT PUE 2UBULIONSJ i3 10§ pao[ditiod 2q o, B

‘Hoday uoyenjeAy pue souBULIOpSJ AY3 10§ paejduwios 3q Of, .
aReq 101021 uisnoy d1qnd Jo ameusig 1T0T/PI/L0 Aed J03311(J ANNIIXF JO dIn)eudig
SOIMSEIJA] UOYRAIISUOD) AS10Ug 0} PAIR[SY (7 2UI| JO JuNowWyY (w4
§1500) pIeH - AILUN33g 0) paje[ay (g AUl Jo Junowy ¥T
§150D) JO§ - AILIN22G 0) PAJe[yY (g 2UI| JO WNOWY €T
SSUIANOY H(§ UONIIG 0) PAJR[AY (T 3ul[ JO Junowy [44
SSUIALDY Jg] 0 PAIB[SY (T 3ul] JO Junoury |14

. <
00°806 791 (61 - T SSUI[ JO WINS) ::JUBIL) [ENUUY JO JUNOWY 0z
(0T du1 Jo %8 P320xa jou Aew) KouaBuruo) zog1 61
JUETSCE
10911 Jo wANSAG BIA pred 991419 1G3(T IO UOIBZI[BISIE[[0D) 0006 eqg1
VHd 24y Aq pred 921A12g 192(] 10 UOUEZI[RINE[[0] [0S 2g1
papuadxy pEINqO . Pasay [euIsLQ

L 150D [eN)V B0 ], 150 pajewnsy [e10], JunodV j dopad(q Aq Arewnung ury

Modoy UONEN[EAT PUE IIUEULIOLIIZ [BUI [ ]

:3uipuy pouag oj 110day UONEN[EAY PUE IJUBULIOLIIJ D

( $0U UOISIADL) JUBUIIEIS [nuUUY Pasiady [] $1UAB W /S133sESI(] 10] 1959 [] WA e)S [enuuy [eUISIQ X
juean) jo adAJ,
-ddd0Jo 21eq LAuoyny Juisnoy

0N JuRID) 10308, Sutsnoy Juswadeidoy

ugyrjodolagy
. dd 11-105-d-91-HO 0N tueID) weidolqd punj [epde) »Ma PRI

1107 ‘[eAotddy yuets) 3o A4 1aquiny pue 3d£ ] Jueany i ¢
110Tued) jo x44 :weN VHd

Arewrung :J 31ed

110Z/0¢/p san1dxy
9CC0-LLST ON gINO
SuIsnoy uerpuy pue s1qng Jo SO
jusurdopaas(g ueqin pue Sursnoy jo jusunreda( ‘S

—

wiesgoid Surourul,] puny rende)

pue 10138 Susnoy juswaoedey weiolrd puny [ende) weidorg puny [ende)

podoy] uonENRAY PUE SOUBULIONISJ/JUSWIAIRIS [BNUUY




(8002/t) 1'SLO0S-CNH w0y

¢o3eg

“poday uonen[eAy pue S0UBLLIOHSJ AU} 10§ pAafdwod aq oL ,

"JUSLUS]RIS [BNUUY PISIAY © 10 1oday UOHEn[BAT pUE SOURLLIONIJ 33 Jof pajojdwiod aq of |

POUI JopUN S)UN,, 10§ DId Ul ul] JO

syiun Kue 93] 0} paoU OU o4 [[Im 21,

00°000°t 53 SLY1 sopeisdn 1pndwo) 1000006SO0HO
00°006 1% SL¥1 [IEINEREEN BEINEN 1000006SOHO
8uisnoy aseyd [euISLI)
00°000°01 5T 091 Ul Juawdde[dal J00p d5eles peayIaaQ 1000006S0HO
sSuromg
00'80%'901 5T 09v1 AJiure a[3urs ¢z ul jusurddedar DV AH 1000006S0HO
OV AH 10j SuIsnIsApy
000099 ST 34! PIq PUE S]S03 J09) YOI — S]SO)) PUE 533, 1000006S0HO
00°000°S 1 I 90t 1 Jaddiy) 1000006SOHO
00°000°0 801 90¥1 suonesadQ 1000006S0HO
Papuadxg PRS0
mﬁﬁﬂ q wﬁﬁz q L vaH\»Q& ?wao
woﬁm>ﬁo<
‘ON JUnoddy motomoumO AIPIM-VHJ/PWEN
JIOM JO smelg 1800 [eMOY [€10] 150D pelewnisy [€10 ], %pﬁc.msmu QSUEQO_0>OQ FIOM uo_.wz Jo COEQ_.HOmOD ?._o:oo IsquinpN HEOEQOMO\BQ
:ON] JuEIn) 1098 Sursnoy juswaoeday
{(ON /s2X) 441D
11-105-650-d-91-YQ :ON juein) ureidoiq pun, fended
[T10Z :3UBID Jo X0 [e49Pagf Jquny pue ad4L y, jueany Aoy SuisnoH ueyjodonojy Aemexdid :dweN VHI
sadeq Sanloddng :fj 3iBd
110Z/0€/b saaidxy

9TC0-LLST 'ON HNO
duisnoy uerpuf pue o1jqng Jo 901310
juswdoraas(l uequp) pue Suisnoy jo jusunieda( ‘SN

i
\

weidoid Sudueur puny jende)
pue Jojoe,] Suisnoy juewrase[day weidoid pun] [eyde) ‘weifoid puny feide)
1oday uonen[EAT pUe DUBULIOIIAJAUNIEIS [ENUUY

{




(8002/%) T°'SLOOS-ANH w0}

Godeq
"papudLUE SE £ €61 JO 10V Suisnol S’ 2y Jo [g uonasg oy yuensind feaoidde (qH Pim pasiadl aq AJuo ued pajep pus axrpuadxa pue uoneSiqO .
£107/£0/80 1102/£0/80 10000065GHO
areq
aed 91 pud o1 puyg pug uonesqo
pug amypuadxyg [emoy amyrpuadxy [euSuQO uonesiqQ [enyoy euiSuiQ
SSnIAldY
(a1e Burpug 1sieng)) {a1eqg Surpug Ioueny)) IPIM-VHI/PWEN
| S91B(] 1981R], PISIATY 10] SUOSEYY papuadxy spuny |[V pare3qo pung v Joquinp Juswidofarag
1107 Suel) jo K44 [e1pag Auoypny Suisnoy uenjodonspy Aemexdld :oweN VHJ

weI3oag sunuenly puny [eyde) Ioj o[npayds uoneyudwddmy :[If Med

110Z/0¢/+ seandxyg
9720-LLST "ON N0

Sursnol ueIpuy pue 21qnd Jo MO pue 1030e,] Susnoy 1uswsoe[doy weidoid puny jende) ‘weidoid puny feide)
1awidopaaa( ueqin) pue Suisnoy Jo yuswiedaq 'S

110doy] uonEN[BAg pUER 20URULIONSJAUSITHIEIS [BNUUY
! R
! { §

wreido1g Suroueur,y pun [ende)




Resolution 11-20: Capital Fund

The Board of Commissioners of the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority met in
Regular Session at the Office of the Board, 176 Rustic Drive, Circleville, Ohio 43113 on
Friday, July 8, 2011.

During business conducted while in session, the Board held discussion on the 2011
Capital Fund. It is anticipated that there will be a reduction in Capital Fund allocations
over previous years, and it is also anticipated that the Capital Fund allocation will be
issued prior to the next Board meeting. In looking at approved Five Year Plan Capital
Fund projects, the Board prioritized items to be included in the 2011 Grant programs.

Based on the discussion held, Mr. Shasteen offered the motion, seconded by Ms.
Schieber to adopt Resolution 11-20 as follows:

Whereas, the 2011 Capital Fund Grant allocation will be released prior to the next PMHA
Board meeting, and

Whereas, the final allocation of Funds must be determined for the submission of the
final grant package, and

Whereas, it is anticipated that grant funding will be reduced in 2011, then

Therefore Be It Resolved, that the Board will create a priority list of items to be included
in the 2011 Capital Fund Grant program, and

Be It Further Resolved, that this list will be created based on the approved Five Year
Capital Improvement Plan submitted in the 2011 Annual Plan of the agency, and

Be It Further Resolved, that based upon available grant funds, permission is given to
Executive Director Kim Hartinger and Maintenance Supervisor Steven Dearth to adjust
the following grant projects as necessary to accommodate the final allocation of funds,
and

Be It Further Resolved that the following projects be included in the 2011 Capital Fund
Grant program, in the following order of established criteria, pending information on the
final Grant allocation:
e Operations at an allocation of $20,000
o Computer replacement at an allocation of $4,900
¢ HVAC replacement in Ashville and Circleville 2" phase housing at an allocation of
$106,408
e Architectural fees and advertising costs associated with the HVAC project at an
allocation of $6,600
o Overhead garage door replacement in Circleville 1% phase housing at an
allocation of $10,000
e Purchase of a Chipper for the maintenance department at an allocation of
$15,000




« Screen door replacement in Circleville and Ashville 2" phase housing at an

allocation of $6,250

« Solid Core Door replacement in Williamsport 3 phase housing at an allocation of
$21,000

e House Foundation improvements in Circleville 1% phase housing at an allocation
of $45,000.

A vote on the motion was affirmed by all present. There were no nay votes recorded.
Motion carried.

Resolution 11-20 adopted.




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and
Capital Fund Financing Program

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing
OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 8/31/2011

Part I: Summary

PHA Name: Pickaway Metropolitan Grant Type and Number FFY of Grant: 2012
i i . FFY of A I: 2012
Housing Authority Capital Fund Program Grant No: OH-16-P-059-12 of Grant Approva
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:
Date of CFFP:
Type of Grant
x Original Annual Statement [] Reserve for Disasters/Emergencies [] Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
[ Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: [] Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost '
Original Revised” Obligated Expended
1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations (may not exceed 20% of line 21)*
3 1408 Management Improvements 60.000.00
) .
4 1410 Administration (may not exceed 10% of line 21}
5 1411 Audit
6 1415 Liquidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs 25.000.00
. .
g 1440 Site Acquisition
S 1450 Site Improvement
10 1460 Dwelling Structures 129.000.00
, .
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equi t—N dabl
welling Equipmen onexpendable _OOuOOOOO
12 1470 Non-dwelling Structures
13 1475 Non-dwelling Equipment
14 1485 Demolition
15 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration
16 1495.1 Relocation Costs
17 1499 Development Activities *

' To be completed for the Performance and Evaluation Report.

? To be completed for the Performance and Evaluation Report or a Revised Annual Statement.

> PHAs with under 250 units in management may use 100% of CFP Grants for operations.
* RHF funds shall be included here.

Pagel

form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and

Capital Fund Financing Program

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB No. 2577-0226

Expires 08/31/2011

Partl: Summary

PHA Name:
Pickaway
Metropolitan
Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number

Capital Fund Program Grant No: OH16-P059-501-12
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Date of CFFP:

FFY of Grant:2012
FFY of Grant Approval: 2012

Type of Grant
X Original Annual Statement

_H_ Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending:

1 Reserve for Disasters/Emergencies

] Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )

[] Final Performance and Evaluation Report

Line Summary by Development Account

Total Estimated Cost

Total Actual Cost '

Original Revised ?

Obligated Expended

18a 1501 Collateralization or Debt Service paid by the PHA

18ba 9000 Collateralization or Debt Service paid Via System of Direct

Payment

19 1502 Contingency (may not exceed 8% of line 20)

20 Amount of Annual Grant:: (sum of lines 2 - 19)

314,000.00

21 Amount of line 20 Related to EBP Activities

22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 504 Activities

23 Amount of line 20 Related to Security - Soft Costs

24 Amount of line 20 Related to Security - Hard Costs

25 Amount of line 20 Related to Energy Conservation Measures

Signature of Executive Director

Date 16-5-2011

Signature of Public Housing Director

Date

' To be completed for the Performance and Evaluation Report.

2 To be completed for the Performance and Evaluation Report or a Revised Annual Statement.
3 PHAs with under 250 units in management may use 100% of CFP Grants for operations.

* RHF funds shall be included here,

Page3

form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and
Capital Fund Financing Program

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing
OMB No. 2577-0226

Expires 08/31/2011

Part II: Supporting Pages
PHA Name: Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority Grant Type and Number Federal FFY of Grant: 2012

Capital Fund Program Grant No: OH16-P059-501-12

CFFP (Yes/ No):

Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:
Development Number General Description of Major Work Development Quantity Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Name/PHA-Wide Categories Account No.
Activities

Original Revised ' | Funds Funds
Obligated” | Expended’
OHO059000001 Kitchen Rennovation 1460 22 units 129,000
OHO059000001 Generators for Accessible Units 1465.1 4 units 40,000
OH059000001 Generator for Rustic Ridge Apt/Office 1465.1 1 60,000
OHO059000001 Copiers 1408 2 20,000
OHO059000001 Security System — Maintenance Garage 1408 1 20,000
OH059000001 Architect/Advertising, etc for bid projects | 1430 1 25,000
OH059000001 Operations 1408 1 20,000
' To be completed for the Performance and Evaluation Report or a Revised Annual Statement.
% To be completed for the Performance and Evaluation Report.
Page4 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and
Capital Fund Financing Program

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB No. 2577-0226

Expires 08/31/2011

Part II: Implementation Schedule for Capital Fund Financing Program

PHA Name: Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority

Federal FFY of Grant: 2012

Development Number All Fund Obligated All Funds Expended Reasons for Revised Target Dates '
Name/PHA-Wide (Quarter Ending Date) (Quarter Ending Date)
Activities
Original Actual Obligation Original Expenditure Actual Expenditure End
Obligation End End Date End Date Date
Date
OH059000001 08/2012 08/2014

! Obligation and expenditure end dated can only be revised with HUD approval pursuant to Section 9j of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended.

Page6

form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




(

Capital Fund Program—TFive-Year Action Plan

.

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing
OMB No. 25770226

Expires 08/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name/Number OH16P059 Locality (City/County & State) Circleville/Pickaway, Ohio Original 5-Year Plan Revision No:
Development Number and Work Statement ~~ Work Statement for Year 2 Work Statement for Year 3 Work Statement for Year 4 Work Statement for Year 5
A. | Name for Year 1 rpy 2013 FFY 2014 FFY 2015 FFY 2016
Fry 2012
B. Physical Al I St
gyaica fmprovements nnual Staement | 6429,000 $296,250 $295,000 $305,000
C. Management Improvements $100,000 $40,000
D. PHA-Wide Non-dwelling
Structures and Equipment $50,000 $20,000
E. Administration
F. Other Architect, Fees, Costs $25,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000
G. Operations $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000
H. Demolition
L Development
J. Capital Fund Financing —
Debt Service
K. Total CFP Funds $334,000 $366,250 $385,000 $355,000
L. Total Non-CFP Funds
M. Grand Total

Page 1 of 6

form HUD-50075.2 (4/2008)




( ( (

Capital Fund Program—Five-Year Action Plan U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing
OMB No. 257740226
Expires 4/30/20011
Part II: Supporting Pages — Physical Needs Work Statement(s)
Work Work Statement for Year 92013 Work Statement for Year 2014
Statement for FFY FEFY
Year 1 FFY Development Number/Name Quantity Estimated Cost Development Number/Name Quantity Estimated Cost
2012 General Description of Major Work General Description of Major Work
Categories Categories
See Kitchen Renovations, continued 22 units $129,000 Screen Doors 25 units $6,250
Annual Solid Core Doors 10 units $40,000
Statement Foundation Repairs 3 units $50,000
HVAC Replacement 25 units $125,000
Floor Replacement Est 40-50 $25,000
Rustic Ridge Furniture 1 building $20,000
Rustic Ridge Painting 1 building $10,000
Rustic Ridge Flooring 1 building $20,000
Subtotal of Estimated Cost $ 129,000 Subtotal of Estimated Cost $ 296,250

Puage St form—HUD-500752(42608
Page3-of6 form—HUD- -




(

Capital Fund Program—TFive-Year Action Plan

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB No. 25770226
Expires 4/30/20011

Part I1: Supporting Pages — Physical Needs Work Statement(s)
Work Work Statement for Year 2015 Work Statement for Year: 2016
Statement for FFY FFY
<M@~H_Nm FY Development Number/Name Quantity | Estimated Cost Development Number/Name Quantity Estimated Cost
General Description of Major Work Categories General Description of Major Work
Categories
See Tamper Resistent Outlets 108 units $20,000 Concrete, Sidewalk, entry repairs PHA-wide | $80,000
Annual Roof , Gutter Downspout Repairs 19 buildingg $100,000 Thermostat, smoke detector, carbon
Statement | HVAC Replacement 50 units $175,000 monoxide detector replace/install 108 units $100,000
Continued Roof, Gutters, Downspouts 19 buildingg $125,000
Subtotal of Estimated Cost $ 295,000 Subtotal of Estimated Cost $ 305,000

£

HUB-500752-42008)

O IToD™




(

Capital Fund Program—Five-Year Action Plan

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB No. 25770226

Expires 4/30/20011
Part III: Supporting Pages — Management Needs Work Statement(s)
Work Work Statement for Year 2013 i Work Statement for Year: 2014 _

Statement for FFY FFY
Year 1 FFY Development Number/Name Estimated Cost Development Number/Name Estimated Cost

2012 General Description of Major Work Categories General Description of Major Work Categories

See Landscaping $50,000 Vehicle $20,000

Annual
Statement
Subtotal of Estimated Cost A 50,000 Subtotal of Estimated Cost $ 20.000

forrr HUD-508752-14-3008+
K HEB-SG5E,




{

Capital Fund Program—Five-Year Action Plan

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB No. 257740226
Expires 4/30/20011

Part I11: Su

porting Pages — Management Needs Work Statement(s)

Work Work Statement for Year 2015 Work Statement for Year: 2016 _
Statement for FFY FFY
Year | FFY Development Number/Name Estimated Cost Development Number/Name Estimated Cost
2012 General Description of Major Work Categories General Description of Major Work Categories
See Computer and Software Replacement/Upgrades $20,000
Annual Energy Evaluation/PNA $20,000
Statement
Subtotal of Estimated Cost $ 40,000 Subtotal of Estimated Cost $ 0-

£« HIIP-A8/8I8 2 42008

O ITTO - OUU 7T O (W ZUUSy




6.0 PHA Plan Update

6.0(a) Revisions in PMHA Plans since the Submission of the Previous 5-Year and Annual

Pian:

A recap of changes is as follows:

Utility Allowances were adopted for the Public Housing program based on meter
reading and rate information.

An EIV Policy was adopted for guidance to be used by the PMHA staff

The agency approved a policy on entering units managed by PMHA. The change
to this policy involved tenant generated work orders. The addendum states,
“When a maintenance work order is requested, it is difficult for the PMHA
maintenance staff to always arrive to do the repair when someone is home due
to the number of households owned or managed by the agency (265).
Therefore, PMHA practice is to enter a household if the tenant is not home when
a maintenance work order request has been submitted by the resident or if a
potential maintenance emergency is reported to the PMHA office or otherwise
reasonably suspected to exist....

Additionally, each time a work order is requested, we will specifically ask if we
have permission to enter if the resident is not home at the time maintenance
arrives. If the person answers “no”, our maintenance staff will then post notice
on the door of the residence, stating that they will enter in 24 hours to do the
maintenance repair. This meets the requirement of the lease and the Ohio
Revised Code.” Maintenance was instructed to never enter a unit alone if there
is a child present who is a minor and no adult is present.

The PMHA Board adopted a policy to no longer accept cash for tenant account
payments at the PMHA office. Specific policy is that PMHA will no longer accept
cash for any payment due over the amount of $10.00.

The one bedroom wait list had been closed due to length of wait time for public
housing residents. In August, 2010, the PMHA Board reopened this wait list after
public notice was issued.

The PMHA Board retained Pick Collections to begin collection of Vacated Tenants
Accounts Receivable.

The Board approved the adoption of revised Voucher Payment Standards.

The Board adopted a revision of the EIV Policy based on HUD Notice 2010-10
The Board adopted a revision of the Drug Free Policy, expanding the screening
test and the post-accident test to include amphetamines, cannabinoids, cocaine,
opiates, phencyclidine, Ecstasy, barbiturates, benzodiazepines, methadone, and
propoxyhene. While propoxyhene is no longer manufactured, it is still
considered a street drug.

The Board approved the addition of window and door locks and repairs as a 24
hour emergency repair for public housing and management properties.

The agency had advertised and accepted resumes for an administrative staff
assistant position. Because of funding pro-rations by HUD, it is not considered
responsible at this time to proceed with filling the position. As a result, the
Board approved a monthly work day for the staff in which the PMHA office is
closed to the public. This work day will be the third Thursday of each month.




e The PMHA Board approved the purchase of Bed Bug heat treatment equipment
and authorized the PMHA Maintenance staff to train on proper use of the
equipment. The purchase was approved out of Other Business Activity funds,
with an established charge to be applied to each specific program when the
equipment is used. This charge is significantly less than rates charged by pest
control contractors.

o The Board approved revision to the HCV Funding Shortfall Language in the
Administrative Plan. The revision now reads as follows: “If it becomes apparent
that a funding shortfall will occur in Housing Choice Voucher subsidy, the
Housing Authority will take the following action:

The Housing Authority will take all cost saving measures available by:

e Freezing rent increases

¢ Immediately reducing the payment standards, with HUD approval

e Reduce subsidy standards
If these measures are not enough to prevent a funding shortfall, the Housing
Authority will:

e Use termination of tenants as a last resort to prevent a shortfall

¢ Contact HUD for permission to terminate tenants

e Terminate tenants on a first in/first out basis, excluding elderly,

handicapped and disabled households, until the shortfall is eliminated

6.0(b). Identify Where the 5-Year and Annual Plan may be Obtained by the Public.
The Pickaway MHA 5-Year and Annual Plan is available for viewing in the Lobby of the
agency located 1t 176 Rustic Drive. A copy of the Plan is also available in the Director’s
office at the same location. PMHA operates under one Public Housing AMP and there
are no other management offices. Copies of the Plan are distributed to each Board
member and each Resident Advisory Board member. Copies are also available for the
public at the PMHA office at a reproduction rate of .05 per page.

6.0(b)1. Eligibility, Selection and Admissions Policies, Including Deconcentration and
Wait List Procedures.

As previously stated, the one bedroom wait list had been closed due to length of wait
time for public housing residents. In August, 2010, the PMHA Board reopened this wait
list after public notice was issued.

In summary, the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority markets all properties in a
manner that affirmatively approaches a broad mix of racial and ethnic backgrounds, as
well as the aged and disabled. Both the Public Housing and Housing Choice voucher
program currently have substantial waiting lists and require limited marketing. PMHA
continues to introduce and promote our agency and the programs administered herein
through continuous contact with local service agencies that also serve a broad mix of
the eligible population. Currently only the Public Housing two bedroom wait list is
closed. PMHA has 10 two bedroom units of public housing. With over 40 units of three
bedroom housing, when household size reductions occur in the three bedroom
inventory, we require households to relocate to a two bedroom unit. When combined




with the already established waiting list, the wait time for a two bedroom unit exceeds
reasonable expectation.

Section II of the Occupancy Policy includes policy on taking applications for housing and
on establishing and maintaining the waiting list. Applications can be submitted to PMHA
in person, by mail, or by fax. PMHA does reserve the right to close the waiting list when
application wait time exceeds one year. Public Housing waiting lists would be closed by
bedroom size with public notification required.

At the time of application, PMHA requires proof of all household income, copies of birth
certificates and verification of social security numbers of all persons listed on the
application. Proof of preference information is also requested, but not required until the
Intake appointment. Applications are only withheld from the waiting list if income
documentation is not available, and applicants are allowed a thirty day period to provide

“documents not available at the time the application is submitted. However, all
documentation must be available at the time of Intake.

Section II also discusses the procedure for Intake as it pertains to appointments,
rescheduling of appointments and the need to update information on the application
while the family is on the waiting list. The waiting list is purged annually. Pickaway
MHA does not have site-based waiting lists.

PMHA requires applicants to be eligible for admission by qualifying as a family, qualifying
by meeting income requirements, qualifying by eligible citizenship or immigrant status
criteria, qualifying by documentation of social security information and qualification by
processing all necessary consenting and authorizing documents necessary to provide
eligibility as well as tenant rental obligations. The public housing program residents are
also screened for suitability through a background screening process. The PMHA
Occupancy Policy does establish criteria for meeting family status, income eligibility,
citizenship and/or eligible immigration status, as well as the screening process applied to
each applicant household.

The criteria for processing applications for admission, the interview and verification
process are also included in the Occupancy Policy. Applicants are notified that they are
scheduled for Intake and also given the opportunity to reschedule if the time and date
established is not convenient.

Preferences of the Public Housing program remain as described in the Five Year Plan. 3
Points are given to victims of a natural disaster that results in long term loss of housing
and is certified by a declaration of disaster by the Executive Branch of the United States
of America or by state government. 2 points are given as a residency preference for
families who live, work or attend school in Pickaway County at the time of application,
and 1 point is given for applicants documenting Veteran Status. Veteran status will be
awarded to those offering proof as a veteran of the USA armed forces or the spouse of a
veteran.

Public Housing applications are organized as a permanent file and are maintained in
order of bedroom size, preference and date and time of application. PMHA schedules




Intake appointments and briefings monthly if anticipation of vacancies exist. Once the
agency is aware of a new vacancy, approved applicants are notified of the opportunity
to lease housing on a specific date. All effort will be given to house applicants in
chronological order of application date, but the unit will ultimately be leased to the first
household that can take possession of the available dwelling. The Occupancy Policy
addresses established occupancy criteria, with Residents given the opportunity to be
placed on a range of bedroom size units, if the waiting lists are open.

The Occupancy Policy establishes the wait list as a Community-wide wait list, and
establishes that 40% of newly admitted families in any fiscal year will be families whose
income is at or below 30% of the area median income. PMHA will also provide for
deconcentration of poverty in all scattered-site neighborhoods.

The Housing Choice Voucher program application policies are consistent with those of
the Public Housing program, with these policies addressed in Section 5.2 of the agency
Administrative Plan. In addition to the preferences discussed above, the Housing Choice
Voucher program grants a preference for victims of domestic violence. Criteria for
meeting this preference are established in the Plan and were developed with assistance
from the Director of the local women's shelter. This preference has been reviewed by
representatives from Southeastern Ohio Legal Aid. This preference does limit voucher
allocation to eight per year. Issued vouchers under this preference continue, and a new
allocation of eight domestic violence preference vouchers are reallocated each calendar
year. PMHA also allocates twenty-two Family Unification Vouchers annually to be issued
under recommendation by Jobs and Family Services to families who face removal of the
children from the home because of nonexistent or less than satisfactory housing
situations, including domestic violence related issues.

6.0(b)2. Financial Resources
The Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority lists the following as sources of income:

Federal Non-Federal

Public Housing Operating Subsidy Management Fees*

Capital Fund OBA Rent Income**

Public Housing Rental Income OBA Interest Income***

HCV Administrative Fees Shelter Plus Care Grant****

HCV HAP Subsidy TBRA CHIP Grant*****

FSS Grant Emergency Assistance CHIP*x¥o

Interest Income
PMHA also receives administrative income from grant management.

*Management fees originate from the PMHA management of Pickaway Terrace, Eden
Place, and Louise Terrace

**OBA Rent Income originates from Other Business Activity Rent Income

**¥*¥OBA Interest Income originates from Other Business Activity Checking Account
**x*Shelter Plus Care grant administrative costs are solely based on time spent on the
Grant by PMHA staff members.




***x**The Pickaway County Commissioners apply for and receive funds for the
Community Housing Improvement Grant. Part of these grant funds are traditionally set
aside for Tenant Based Rental Assistance and Emergency Assistance. The

- Commissioners are in the process of establishing their own Grant Department, but have
requested the administration of TBRA and Emergency Assistance through the Pickaway
MHA. The Commissioners have recently received notification that the current grant
application was funded and grant administration will begin in 2011 by PMHA.

6(b)3. Rent Determination

As previously stated, Utility Allowances were adopted for both the Public Housing and
HCV programs, based on meter reading/consumption information and rate information
for the previous year, and the PMHA Board approved the adoption of revised Voucher
Payment Standards for the HCV program. Additionally, EIV Policy was written and
adopted by the Board to authorize and govern use of the EIV system by PMHA
employees.

In summary, Public Housing residents pay rents based on either the calculated method
of 30% of adjusted monthly income, 10% or monthly income, or flat rent. Utility
Allowance Payments, when owed, are issued directly to the utility company.

The HCV Administrative Plan addresses rent and HAP assistance to recipients of this
program. The Administrative Plan establishes that the Housing Authority will not
approve an initial rent or a rent increase in any of the tenant-based programs without
determining that the rent amount is reasonable. Reasonableness is determined for the
HCV recipient prior to the initial lease and before any increase in rent to an owner is
approved, when changes in the published FMR requires review, or if the Housing
Authority or HUD directs that reasonableness be re-determined. Rent reasonableness is
established by comparing the rent of the unit to the rent of comparable units in the
same or comparable neighborhoods.

The Administrative Plan establishes maximum subsidy calculations for the voucher
program, for voucher tenancy in other federal housing programs, and for manufactured
homes. The Plan also establishes the method for setting Payment Standards, and for
selecting the correct payment standard for a family.

Types of assistance and rent formulas under the HCV program as outlined in the
Administrative Plan include final calculations based on the Total Tenant Payment of
either 10% of monthly income, 30% of adjusted monthly income, Section 8 Merged
Vouchers, Section 8 Preservation Voucher, and Manufactured Home Space Rental under
the Section 8 Voucher program. PMHA pays the owner the lesser of the HAP amount or
the rent, with payments mailed on the first working day of the month.

Both the Public Housing program and the Housing Choice Voucher program have
established minimum rents of -0-. Both programs allow for the application of the utility
allowance in the rent calculation.




6.0(b)4. Operation and Management

As previously stated, the agency approved a policy on entering units managed by PMHA.
The change to this policy involved tenant generated work orders. The addendum
states, “When a maintenance work order is requested, it is difficult for the PMHA
maintenance staff to always arrive to do the repair when someone is home due to the
number of households owned or managed by the agency. Therefore, PMHA practice is
to enter a household if the tenant is not home when a maintenance work order request
has been requested by the resident or if a potential maintenance emergency is reported
to the PMHA office or otherwise reasonably suspected to exist.....Additionally, each time
a work order is requested, we will specifically ask if we have permission to enter if the
resident is not home at the time maintenance arrives. If the person answers “no”, our
maintenance staff will then post notice on the door of the residence, stating that they
will enter in 24 hours to do the maintenance repair. This meets the requirement of the
lease and the Ohio Revised Code.” Maintenance has also been instructed to never enter
a unit alone if there is a child present who is a minor and no adult is present.

As also previously stated, the PMHA Board adopted a policy to no longer accept cash.
Specific policy is that PMHA will no longer accept cash for any payment due over the
amount of $10.00.

As also previously stated, the PMHA Board retained Pick Collections to begin collection of
Vacated Tenants Accounts Receivable.

As also previously stated, the PMHA Board adopted a revision of the Drug Free Policy,
expanding the employee screening test and the employee post-accident test to include
amphetamines, cannabinoids, cocaine, opiates, phencyclidine, Ecstasy, barbiturates,
benzodiazepines, methadone, and propoxyhene. While propoxyhene is no longer
manufactured, it is still considered and found to be a street drug.

As also previously stated, the PMHA Board approved the addition of window and door
locks and repairs as a 24 hour emergency repair for public housing and management
properties.

As also previously stated, the PMHA Board approved a monthly work day for the staff at
which time the office will be closed to the public. The purpose is to allow the staff to
concentrate on the paperwork requirements of their position without continual
interruption. Telephones are monitored hourly, with work orders completed and staff
returning telephone calls.

As also previously stated, the Board approved revision to the HCV Funding Shortfall
Language in the Administrative Plan that, as a last resort, will terminate tenants on a
first in/first out basis, excluding elderly, handicapped and disabled households, until the
shortfall is eliminated.

In summary, the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing authority has several management
tools in place to appropriately administer the programs offered through the agency,
including the Public Housing Occupancy Policy, the Housing Choice Voucher
Administrative Plan, and specific administrative guidelines for the Shelter Plus Care




grant. Changes to those documents since the previous 5 Year Plan or Annual Plan were
listed in Section 6.0.

Pickaway MHA inspects all Public Housing units on a regular basis. Quarterly pest
control treatments are completed in each unit under a contract with Ohio Pest Control.
Tenants with health related issues are permitted to submit documentation exempting
them from this treatment. Tenants who experience pest issues in spite of the treatment
are few, but when this does occur, PMHA will provide one extensive clean-out
treatment. Other than infestation associated with bed buds, PMHA experiences no pest
related issues as a result of this quarterly treatment.

Eradication of bed bugs is most successful when treated with heat. As previously
stated, in order to control costs, PMHA has purchased their own bed bug heat treatment
system. Use of the system is charged to the specific property where the equipment is
used, based on a set rate established by bedroom size plus the cost of propane.
Previously adopted, the PMHA Bed Bug Policy allows for treatment without charge to the
household. If subsequent infestations occur, PMHA will file to terminate the lease unless
there are extenuating circumstances surrounding the reason for the infestation. This
policy will remain in place pending further guidance from HUD. Tenants always have
the right to appeal any termination action. The established charge for the treatment is
estimated to be $600 - $850 depending on square footage of the unit involved and the
actual cost of propane. This cost is significantly less than the $1,000 - $1,500 assessed
by private companies. Again, the most important step in keeping PMHA properties
bedbug free is the education of residents to guarantee that the infestation does not
occur. PMHA takes a proactive effort to educate potential and current residents about
the prevalence of bed bugs in the United States.

The Pickaway MHA also adopted a revised policy for use of the Enterprise Income
Verification System, This policy is based on HUD Notices 2010-10 and 2011-21, and
provides guidance for all programs utilizing the EIV System under the supervision of the
agency. A copy of the policy is attached to and made a part of this plan.

6.0(b)5. Grievance Procedure Revisions Since Submission of Previous 5 Year and Annual
Plan

There have been no changes to the PMHA Grievance Procedure since the most recent
Annual Plan was submitted. For those denied admission to the program, the Procedure
allows for an informal review of the reasons for the denial. The applicant may request
this review within 14 business days of the denial.

In summary, the Procedure for requesting hearings on other PMHA decisions are set
forth in any communication concerning an adverse action issued to the participant. For
the Public Housing program, the participant provides the opportunity for an Informal
Hearing before the Executive Director of the agency. Within 10 days of the hearing, the
Director will issue a decision in writing. If that decision does not favor the resident, the
resident is given the opportunity for a Formal Hearing before a Hearing Panel of three
persons who are not a party to either the original decision or the decision made by the
Director as part of the Informal Hearing.




The Formal Hearing offers the resident or their representative the opportunity to present
documentation, evidence and arguments in the favor of the resident. The hearing panel
will also receive testimony from the PMHA staff. The Formal Hearing panel also has 10
days to render their final decision. No court action will be pursued until conclusion of
the final hearing.

For applicants of the Housing Choice voucher program, the PMHA will also inform the
applicant of the reason for the denial and offer the opportunity for an Informal Review
of the decision. Certain circumstances as outlined in the Five Year Plan and the
Administrative Plan do not allow for a review. There are also certain circumstances in
which HCV participants may request an informal hearing. Those are also outlined in the
Five Year Plan and the Administrative Plan. In those circumstances, PMHA will give the
opportunity for an informal hearing before the PMHA terminates housing assistance
payments for the family under an outstanding HAP contract. Under most circumstances,
the Hearing Officer in the HCV Informal Hearing will be the Executive Director. The
person who does conduct the hearing must issue a written decision within 14 calendar
days from the date of the hearing, stating briefly the reasons for the decision.

At all times, PMHA applicants and participants are afforded the opportunity to observe
their file upon request.

6,0(b)6. Designated Housing for Elderly and Disabled Families

There are no current or planned requests for designated housing for elderly or disabled
families through the Public Housing program. PMHA also manages two Rural
Development 515 properties, a HUD 202, and a HUD PRAC, all with Project Based
Assistance.

6.0(b)(7). Community Service and Self-Sufficiency
There have been no changes to the policies or program implementation of these
programs since the previous submission.

In summary, under the resident initiatives program, the PMHA offers two flats of flowers
to each public housing resident each spring. In 2010, the agency participated in a
program with AEP in which fluorescent bulbs were given to each public housing
household in AEP’s customer base. The PMHA maintenance staff replaced all bulbs in
permanent fixtures as required by the program. The PMHA maintenance staff will also
replace batteries in all battery operated smoke detectors during monthly inspections in
the months when switching to and from Daylight Savings Time occurs.

Additionally, PMHA requires Section 3 language in all bid contracts issued by the agency,
and addresses Section 3 requirements in all pre-bid conferences. The agency also
follows Section 3 hiring practices, with two current employees meeting Section 3 criteria
at the time of hire.

An FSS program is administered by the agency and currently has 18 program
participants, with 22 participants served year-to-date, and an average monthly escrow
balance credit of $234, with an average escrow individual balance of $832. Since




program inception in 1993, there have been a total of 138 participants, 43 graduates,
and $189,738 in escrow pay outs.

PMHA requires Community Service participation by all residents 18 years of age or older
who are not otherwise exempt.

6.0(b)8: Safety and Crime Prevention Revisions Since Submission of Previous 5 Year
and Annual Plan

As previously stated, PMHA Maintenance 24 Hour Repair Items now includes the
addition of window and door lock repairs as a 24 hour emergency repair for public
housing and management properties.

In summary, safety and crime prevention are extremely important to PMHA. The
agency works hand-in-hand with local law enforcement on these issues and is often the
initial reporting source when drug use becomes present in a public housing unit. PMHA
has permitted undercover investigation to be conducted from a public housing unit. The
presence of this officer in the community did result in drug arrests, including the arrest
and conviction of a public housing resident first identified by our staff to the police as a
suspected narcotics dealer.

PMHA public housing policies permit access to each housing unit on a monthly basis,
with the exception of December. Access is available through housekeeping inspections,
pest control rotation, or furnace and air conditioning filter change and cleaning. This
access allows PMHA staff to recognize the potential for safety and/or crime situations as
they develop.

PMHA has purchased and installed fire suppression canisters on the underside of each
public housing range hood in an effort to immediately douse fires that may originate on
the stove top. Other safety policies to discourage fires in public housing units are being
discussed and considered by the PMHA staff at this time.

6.0(b)9: Pet Revisions Since Submission of Previous 5 Year and Annual Plan

PMHA continues to support and implement Fair Housing regulations and requirements
concerning assistance and service animals in public and managed housing. There have
been no changes to the pet policy of the agency since the prior submission.

In summary, PMHA does require that all pets be maintained by their owners in a manner
that promotes safety and a positive neighborhood environment. The agency requires
prior approval of the pet and documentation of proper licensure and immunization.
There are breed, height and weight restrictions on the animals. Pet deposits can be
paid in increments to allow affordability to the owner.

6.0(b)10: Civil Rights Certification Revisions Since Submission of Previous 5 Year and
Annual Plan.

While PMHA has not changed or adjusted Civil Rights Compliance policies or procedures,
we have increased our goal of increased Fair Housing education for our staff, housing
managers, and community housing personnel. PMHA employees are required to read
each edition of the Fair Housing Advisor, initialing each reading. Fair Housing training




and discussion is part of each staff meeting, and special meetings of the staff are held
to review information received in training outside of the office as well as to discuss
situations that the staff feels may become an issue. During Fair Housing Month,
sessions were held with each department to review Fair Housing procedure specific to
that department. Legal advice from the agency’s Fair Housing attorney, William Willis is
sought whenever additional guidance is needed. Mr. Willis conducted a conversational
Question and Answer Fair Housing Roundtable discussion with the PMHA office staff on
June 27, 2011, and conducted agency-wide training on August 24, 2011. This training
included not only agency staff, but also the housing and administrative staffs of the local
community action agency (PICCA), as well as the Fair Housing Coordinator and Planning
and Development Director of Pickaway County. In order to receive the guidance of all
program sources, the Executive Director viewed a Rural Development sponsored Civil
Rights training Webnair on Thursday, June 9, 2011. Pickaway MHA joined with the
Chillicothe MHA to sponsor a HCV Landlord Informational session held in Chillicothe,
Ohio on September 14, 2011. The Session included training on Fair Housing
requirements and guidance for HCV Landlords, and was conducted by Tamra Lowe, Fair
Housing Representative for the City of Chillicothe.

6.0(b)11: Fiscal Year Audit for 2010

The PMHA audit was submitted to the Auditor of State by Auditing Firm Balestra, Harr &
Scherer in June, 2011. A June 23, 2011 email confirmed receipt of the submission and
requires no modifications. HUD has also received and approved the submission.
Additionally, PMHA was recently notified that State Auditor David Yost has bestowed an
Auditor of State Award on PMHA for a “clean” audit report. Clean Audits are those who
do not contain findings for recovery, material citations, material weaknesses, significant
deficiencies, single audit findings or any questioned costs. A copy of the Audit is
included with this submission.

6.0(b)12: Asset Management
The Pickaway MHA is not subject to asset management regulation. There have been no
revisions to this section of the plan since the previous submission.

6.0(b)13: Violence Against Women Act

There have been no specific changes to VAWA policy, but the agency has worked closely
with victims and victim advocates to inform and remind the program participants of their
protections under VAWA.

In summary, the agency notifies all participants during intake briefings of the rights
afforded by VAWA. These rights are discussed again when PMHA staff is aware of
domestic violence incidents or issues that could threaten housing of the household.
PMHA asks all program applicants attending briefings to sign a statement acknowledging
that, “VAWA prohibits the eviction of and removal of assistance from certain persons
living in public or subsidized housing if the asserted grounds for such action is an
instance of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking. This is to
prevent victims’ families from losing their HUD-assisted housing as a consequence of the
abuse of which they were the victim.” The statement further states, "I understand that
if I feel I need this protection I must sign a written request for tenant certification of
status as a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking.” The statement




then informs the resident of procedures to obtain the form and how to contact PMHA if
assistance is required.

PMHA staff is required to train every 12-18 months on program compliance and
Management and Occupancy. VAWA requirements are included in these trainings.

As stated previously, PMHA works closely with the local Domestic Violence Task Force
and Women's Shelter, Haven House. PMHA reserves 8 vouchers annually for Haven
House Domestic Violence use, and 22 vouchers annually for Family Unification which
includes families subjected to domestic violence. Several PMHA staff and Board
members are volunteers working on behalf of fund-raising for the financial support of
Haven House. PMHA staff members actively refer program participants to both Scioto
Paint Valley Mental Health and Southeastern Ohio Legal Aid for additional guidance on
domestic violence and other issues.
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EIV POLICY & PROCEDURE

The Information in the Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) contains the Social Security Numbers (SSNs),
full dates of birth, first and last names, and physical address of tenant families. This is all sensitive
information that must not be handled carelessly. Therefore, the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
realizes that it must be careful not to share this information with anyone who does not have proper
authorization.

Per the implementation of Notices: H2010-10 and H2011-21, the following is incorporated
into the Pickaway MHA EIV Policy & Procedure document for Multifamily Properties, the Public
Housing Admission and Continuing Occupancy Policy and the Housing Choice Voucher

—administrative Plan. (Note: whenever the words Owner/Agent appear in the notice, PMHA has
oeen inserted into the Policy. PMHA serves as the Agent for the Ownership of properties
Pickaway Terrace, Eden Place and Louise Terrace and is the Administering Agency for the
Pickaway Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing Programs).

Tenant Selection Plan Requirements
PMHA must use the Existing Tenant Search in the EIV system as part of the screen criteria for new tenants
and will include written policies for using the search in their Tenant Selection Plan.

Policies and Procedures

PMHA must have written policies and procedures for staff to follow for using the EIV Income Report as third
party verification of employment and income and for using the other EIV reports, such as Income Discrepancy
Report and the EIV Verification Reports.




Consent for the Release of Information

Applicants: The Multi-Family form HUD-9887, Notice and Consent for the Release of Information and the
Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing Form HUD-9886, Authorization for Release of Information and
Privacy Act Notices, signed by the applicant and each applicant family member 18 years of age and older does
not need to be on file in order to use the Existing Tenant Search in EIV at the time of application processing
and tenant screening.

Tenants: Form HUD-9887 and HUD-9886 authorizes HUD, Owners and Agents and PHAs to:

1) Use data obtained through computer matching with another agency for verifying the individual’s income
used for establishing the eligibility for and level of benefits under HUD's assisted housing programs.

2) Request wage, new hire (W-4) and unemployment claim information from current or former employers to
verify information obtained through computer matching.

A current form HUD-9887 or HUD-9886 must be on file before accessing the employment or income data
—-ontained in EIV for a tenant. The form must be signed and dated by:

1) Each adult member of a household regardless of whether he or she has income

2) The head of household, spouse, or co-head, regardless of age, and each family member who is 18 years

of age or older must sign and date the form at move-in, at initial (when tenant begins receiving a subsidized

rent) certification and annual recertification.

3) A family member when he/she turns 18. In order to accommodate the tenant family, PMHA will obtain

the signature of all 17 year old household members at the time of the Annual Recertification in anticipation of

that individual turning 18 years of age in the coming twelve months. The Program Coordinator will add this

individual to a tickler file and will check all relevant EIV reports within 90 days of the individual turning 18

years of age.
The form is valid for 15 months from the date of signature.

For Multifamily Programs, in addition to the form HUD-9887, a signed and dated form HUD-9887-A,




Applicant's/Tenant’s Consent to the Release of Information, must also be on file, This form authorizes the
PMHA to request information about the tenant from a third party source.

The form HUD-9886 or 9887 is not required for accessing the Verification Reports.

Forms HUD-9886 and HUD-9887 and HUD-9887-A limit the PMHA from requesting information about a tenant
to “within the last five years when the tenant received assistance.”

If a tenant turns 18 and has not signed forms HUD-9886 or HUD-9887, the PMHA must not use the EIV
Income Reports for that tenant until the form is signed. If the tenant fails to sign the consent form(s) as
noted in the property Policy & Procedures Manual, the household is in non-compliance with their lease and
assistance to, and the tenancy of, the household may be terminated.

Consent to Disclose an Individual’s Information to Another Person or Entity

—The Federal Privacy Act prohibits the disclosure of an individual’s information to another person without the
written consent of such individual. As such, the EIV data of an adult household member may not be shared
(or a copy provided or displayed) with another adult household member of a person assisting the tenant with
the recertification process, unless the individual has provided written consent to disclose such information.

PMHA is not prohibited from discussing with the head of household and showing the head of household how
the household’s income and rent were determined based on the total income reported and verified.

Tenant Notification of Recertification

PMHA is required to provide reminder notices to tenants informing them of their responsibility to provide the
PMHA with information about changes in family income or composition that are necessary to properly
complete an annual recertification. The notification must be in writing and must include a list of information
that tenants are required to bring with them to their recertification interview. This list must include
documentation needed to support the income they are receiving as well as documentation to support any




deductions they may be eligible to receive. For example, elderly and disabled tenants should be requested to
bring in information related to Social Security benefits and medical expenses, and tenants who are working
should be requested to bring in documentation to support the income they are currently receiving.

Tenant Does Not Provide Requested Information or Information Not Acceptable

If the tenant does not provide requested information either because they do not have the requested
information or they refuse to provide the information, PMHA must obtain verification of the information from
the third party source.

PMHA should remind the tenant that he/she is required to supply, if available, any information requested for
use in a regularly scheduled recertification (annual or interim) of income and family composition.

PMHA may determine that the tenant is not in compliance with program requirements and terminate
assistance or tenancy, if the tenant fails to provide the requested information in the timeframe established by
“OMHA.

PMHA is also required to request third party verification from the source when the tenant disputes the EIV
information.

PMHA may reject any tenant-provided documentation, if they deem the information to be unacceptable.
Reasons the documentation may be rejected:

1) the document is not an original document, or

2) the original document has been altered, or is not legible, or

3) the document appears to be a forged document (is not authentic)

Independent Third Party Verification
PMHA will obtain independent third party verification from the source which is used to complement EIV data
when:




1) the tenant is unable to provide acceptable and current employment and/or income documentation to
support the wage and unemployment income in EIV;
2) the tenant disputes the EIV income information
3) there is an EIV income discrepancy reported at the time of recertification (annual or interim) or at other
times as specified in the PMHA policies and procedures
4) there is incomplete EIV employment or income data for a tenant and the PMHA needs additional
information. Examples of additional information include but are not limited to:
A) Effective date of income (i.e. employment, unemployment compensation, or
Social Security benefits)
B) For new employment: pay rate, number of hours worked per week, pay
frequency, hire date (not required to be reported to state so it may not
be in EIV), etc.
C) Confirmation of change in circumstances (i.e., reduced hours, reduced rate of
pay, temporary leave of absence, etc), and
—5) There is no EIV employment or income data for a tenant.

When PMHA is unable to obtain third party verification, such as, the third party does not respond, the tenant
file must contain documentation as to why third party verification was not available.

PMHA may accept self-certification from the tenant only if third party verification cannot be attained.
PMHA has the discretion to obtain additional third party verification of income or verification of other EIV data

based on circumstances encountered during the recertification process.

EIV Income is Incorrect or Does Not Belong to the Tenant
There may be times when the source or originator of EIV information makes an error when submitting or
reporting information about tenants. Only the originator of the data can correct the information. When the




data is corrected by the source or the originator, HUD will obtain the updated information with its next
computer matching process. The following procedures are regarding incorrect EIV information:
1) TRACS data reported in EIV originates from the PMHA. Once data is corrected in PMHA’s software, the
corrected data must be transmitted to TRACS
2) Employment and wage information reported in EIV originates from the employer. The employer reports
this information to the local State Workforce Agency (SWA), who in turn, reports the information to HHS'
NDNH database.
If the tenant disputes the accuracy of the information in EIV that was provided by the employer and after
additional third party verification is obtained by PMHA it is determined that the information is not accurate, the
tenant should contact the employer directly, in writing, to dispute the employment and/or wage information
and request that the employer correct erroneous information. The tenant should provide PMHA with a copy
of this written correspondence to maintain in the tenant file.
3) Unemployment benefit information reported in EIV originates from the local SWA. If the tenant disputes
the accuracy of the information in EIV that was provided by the SWA and after additional third party
—verification is obtained by PMHA it is determined that the information is not accurate, the tenant should
contact the SWA directly, in writing, to dispute the unemployment benefit information, and request that the
SWA correct erroneous information. The tenant should provide PMHA with a copy of this written
correspondence to maintain in the tenant file,
4) SS and SSI benefit information reported in EIV originates from the SSA. If the tenant disputes the
accuracy of the information in EIV that was provided by the SSA and after additional third party verification is
obtained by PMHA it is determined that the information is not accurate, the tenant should contact the SSA at
(800) 772-1213, or visit the local SSA office and request that the erroneous information be corrected. SSA
office information is available in the government pages of the local telephone director or online at
http://www.socialsecurity.gov.
5) Identity Theft: Incorrect information in EIV may be a sign of identity theft. Sometimes someone else may
use an individual’s SSN, either on purpose or by accident. SSA does not require an individual to report a lost
or stolen SSN card, and reporting a lost or stolen SSN card to SSA will not prevent the misuse of an individual’s
SSN. A person using an individual’s SSN can get other personal information about that individual and apply




for credit in that individual’s name.

Using EIV Reports

PMHA will use the EIV system in its entirety. In doing so, PMHA will use the:

» EIV Income Report as a third party source to verify a tenant’s employment and income during mandatory
recertification (annual and interim) of family composition and income, and

» Other EIV income reports (Income Discrepancy Report, New Hires Report, and No Income Report) to
identify issues or discrepancies which may impact a family’s assistance, and

» EIV Verification Reports (Existing Tenant Search, Multiple Subsidy Report, Identity Verification Reports, and
Deceased Tenants Report) that further assist in reducing subsidy payment errors.

Income Reports

When selecting the Income Report for an individual tenant, either from the list of tenants for a particular
—nroject and/or contract or by querying by the head of household’s SSN, there are three reports that must be

Jsed at the time of recertification (annual and interim). The reports can be accessed by clicking on the tab

for a particular report. The three reports are the Summary Report, the Income Report and the Income

Discrepancy Report.

Summary Report

This report provides a summary of information taken from the current, active certifications contained in the
TRACS file at the time of the income match. It also provides the Identity Verification Status for each
household member. There are four verification statuses identified:

(1) Verified - personal identifiers (last name, DOB, SSN) match the SSA database

(2) Failed - personal identifiers do not match the SSA database

(3) Not Verified - personal identifiers have not yet been sent by HUD to SSA for
validation or the validation is in process by SSA




(4) Deceased - SSA’s records indicate the person is deceased

PMHA will use this report at the time of recertification to review and resolve the status of any household
member(s) with a “failed” or “"deceased” status, and as verification that a tenant’s SSN has been “verified” by
SSA as being a valid SSN. PMHA does not have to do anything at the time of recertification when the status is
“not verified”. However, PMHA will check the Failed SSA Identity Test report monthly as changes in the
Identity Verification Status for these tenants may occur.

PMHA will retain in the tenant file:
(1) The Summary Reports as verification of the SSN for all household members
whose Identity Verification Status is “Verified”. If the Summary Report in the
tenant file shows an Identity Verification Status of “Verified” for all household
members required to have a SSN, PMHA does not have to continue to print
out the Summary Report at recertification unless there is a change in household
composition or in a household member’s identity verification status.

To minimize the risk of exposing a tenant’s SSN, PMHA may remove

and destroy, at the time of recertification, copies of verification documentation

received from the tenant at the time of disclosure of their SSN once the Identity

Verification Status shows “Verified”. PMHA will minimize the number of tenant records that contain
documents that display the full nine-digit SSN.  PMHA will not include the full nine-digit SSN for a
tenant in emails or other electronic communications.

(2) Any correspondence or documentation received to resolve the “Failed” or

“Deceased” status.

(3) Documentation for household members not required to disclose and

provide verification of a SSN. Those who are exempt from SSN disclosure

and verification requirements are those who were 62 years of age or older as of

January 31, 2010, and whose initial determination of eligibility was begun before




January 31, 2010, and individuals who do not contend eligible immigration
status. These individuals will continue to have a TRACS generated identification
number in the SSN field. No employment or income information will be provided
in EIV for these individuals, therefore, third party verification from the income
source will have to be obtained.

Income Report

PMHA will use the Income Report at the time of recertification (annual and interim) of family composition and
income and may use it at other times as indicated in their policies and procedures.

The Income Report:

« Provides employment and income information reported in the NDNH and SSA databases for each
household member who passes the SSA identity test

« Identifies household members who may be receiving multiple subsidies by displaying the following
message: “This member may be receiving multiple subsidies. See the Multiple Subsidy Tenant Report for
details.”

Components of the Income Report include:

(1) The Income Report provides a variety of information about each member of a household. The
components of the report are:

» TRACS certification information and tenant personal identifiers
» Employment Information

*+ Wages

» Unemployment Benefits

» Social Security Benefits

* Dual Entitlement

» Medicare Data

» Supplemental Security Income Benefits




» SSA Disability Status

(2) The Income Report does not include other income the household may receive such as welfare benefits,
most pensions, child support, etc. It should also be noted that a tenant may have wages that the employer
did not report to the SWA and therefore these wages will not be contained in the NDNH database.

Required Documentation to Demonstrate EIV Compliance:

The following documentation is required to be in the tenant file to demonstrate PMHA’s compliance with

mandated use of EIV as the third party source to verify tenant employment and income information:

(1) No Dispute of EIV Information: EIV Income Report, current acceptable tenant-provided documentation,

and, if necessary (as determined by PMHA), third party verification from the source.

(2) Disputed EIV Information: EIV Income Report and third party verification from the source for the

disputed information

(3) Tenant-reported income not verified through the EIV System: EIV Income Report, current acceptable
~~tenant-provided documents and/or third party verification from the source.

NDNH (New Hires (W-4), Wage and Unemployment Compensation):
(1) The Income report identifying the NDNH employment, wage and unemployment income information in
EIV must be used as third party verification of the tenant’s employment and is not to be used to calculate the
tenant’s income.
(2) PMHA will print the Income Report and use the report as third party verification of the tenant’s
employment and/or unemployment
(3) PMHA will confirm with the tenant that the employment and/or unemployment information in EIV is
correct. If the tenant agrees that the employment and/or unemployment information in EIV is correct, PMHA
will:

(a) Request the tenant to provide documentation, e.g., four current, consecutive

Check stubs that will support his/her current income being received.
(b) Use the tenant provided documentation for determining the tenant’s income




unless additional information is needed or PMHA has reason to

reject the tenant provided documentation. In these instances, third party
verification must be obtained from the income source.

(¢) Annualize the tenant’s income using the current income projected forward
for the next 12 months.

(d) Make copies of any tenant provided documents for the tenant file and return
the originals to the tenant.

(e) Retain the printed report and supporting documentation in the tenant file
along with the applicable form HUD-50059 (MF) or HUD-50058 (HCV/PH).

(f) If the tenant disputes the employment, wage or unemployment information

in EIV or when the tenant reports he/she is employed or receiving
unemployment but there is not information in EIV, PMHA will obtain third party verification from
the employer or SWA.

Social Security Benefits:
(1) The Income Report identifying the Social Security benefit information in EIV must be used as third party
verification of the tenant’s income and will be used to calculate the tenant’s income. A copy of the award or
benefit letter or Proof of Income Letter is not required unless the tenant disputes the SSA information in EIV.
(2) PMHA will print the Income Report and use the report as third party verification.
(3) PMHA will confirm with the tenant that the current benefit amount in EIV is correct. If the tenant agrees
that the Social Security benefit information reported in EIV is correct, PMHA wili:

(a) Use the gross benefit amount reported in EIV for calculating the tenant’s

income by annualizing the gross benefit amount projected forward for the next

12 months.

(b) Include the Medicare premium in the medical expense deduction calculation

if the premium is being paid by the tenant. If the Medicare premium is being

paid by the tenant, the amount of the premium is listed under “Premium” and an




“N” is in the “Buy-in” column of the Medicare Data section of the Income Report.
(¢) When the Medicare premium is being paid by the state or another entity,
there is a “Y” in the buy-in column and the date when the third party started
paying the tenant’s Medicare premium is included in the “Buy-in Start” column of
the Medicare Data section of the Income Report.

(d) When the state or another entity stops paying the tenant’s Medicare
premium, there will be a date in the “Buy-in Stop” column of the Medicare Data
section of the Income Report. Note: The “Y” indicator in the buy-in column is
information received from SSA and is not always accurate. If the tenant
disputes the EIV data and PMHA verifies that the tenant is paying

the Medicare premium themselves, then the tenant file must be documented
with this additional information and PMHA will include the Medicare

premium in the tenant’s medical expense deduction.

(e) Make copies of any tenant provided documents for the tenant file and return
the originals to the tenant.

(f) Retain the printed report in the tenant file along with the applicable form
HUD-50059 (MF) or HUD-50058 (HCV/PH).

(4) 1If the tenant disputes the SSA information in EIV or when the tenant reports he/she receives SSA benefits
but there is no SSA information in EIV, the PMHA will obtain third party verification by requesting the tenant
provide a copy of their benefit or award letter or Proof of Income Letter, dated within the last 120 days from
the date of receipt by the owner.

PMHA will not send the tenant to the SSA office if they do not have this information. Instead PMHA will ask
the tenant to request benefit information from SSA using SSA’s website or toll-free number:

(a) PMHA may assist the tenant in requesting benefit information
from SSA, if the tenant requests their assistance in accessing the SSA website or has questions
on completing the request. To request a Proof of Income Letter from SSA’s website go to
http://www.socialsecurity.gov. From the left side bar:




-Select “What you can do online”
-Select “If you get benefits”
-Select “Request a Proof of Income Letter”
Tenants should check the box “All Benefit Information Available” to make sure
all benefits received are provided.
(b) To request a Proof of Income Letter from SSA’s toll-free number call
1-800-772-1213.
(c) This information is free and the tenant should receive the letter in the mail
within 10 days. The tenant will provide the Proof of Income Letter to PMHA for use in calculating their
income. A copy of the letter will be retained
in the tenant’s file and the original returned to the tenant for their records.
(5) While the SSA provides information on Medicare premiums it does not provide as part of the computer
matching, information on additional deductions such as Medicare Part D (prescription drugs) premiums or
garnishments. Therefore, PMHA needs to request that tenants disclose any deductions they may have from
—*heir SSA benefits. For example, if the tenant is paying his/her Medicare premium and the difference between
Jhe gross and net SS benefits exceeds the amount of the Medicare premium, PMHA will discuss this with the
tenant to determine any deductions, that may impact the tenant’s income or allowable expenses, such as
Medicare Part D (prescription drugs) premiums are an allowable medical expense.
(6) The SSA Disability Status is not always accurate, therefore, it must not be used for determining an
applicant’s or tenant’s eligibility as disabled for a HUD program or for receiving the elderly/disabled household
allowance.
(7) If PMHA finds it necessary to use some other alternative form of verification, such as bank statements, it
may be necessary to use more than one document as third party verification. Documents such as bank
statements only disclose the net amount of Social Security received and not the gross amount used for
determining the tenant’s annual income. This information will not support allowing inclusion of the Medicare
premium as a medical expense if the tenant claims he/she is paying the Medicare premium. When alternative
forms of verification are used, PMHA must document the tenant’s file why third party verification was not
obtained.




New Admissions:

For all new admissions, PMHA will:

(1) Review the Income Report within 90 days after transmission of the move-in

certification to TRACS to confirm/validate the income reported by the household.

(2) Resolve any income discrepancies with the household within 30 days of the Income

Report date

(3) Print and retain the Income Report in the tenant file along with any documentation received to resolve
income discrepancies, if applicable.

Applicants:
EIV only contains employment and income information for tenants participating in rental assistance programs.
Therefore, PMHA will request third party verification from the income source for determining the applicant’s
income for eligibility and rent calculation purposes.
wncome Discrepancy Report
The Income Discrepancy Report identifies households where there is a difference of $2,400 or more annually
in the wages, unemployment compensation and/or Social Security benefit income reported by NDNH and SSA
and the wages, unemployment compensation and/or Social Security benefit income reported in TRACS (from
the form HUD-50059(MF) or HUD-50058 (HCV/PH) in effect at the time of the computer match) for the period
of income (POI) used for the discrepancy analysis.

The report identifies tenants whose income may have been under-or over-reported. Negative numbers on the
report represent potential tenant under reporting of income while a positive number represents a potential
decrease in a tenant’s income. In either case, PMHA will investigate all discrepancies identified to determine
whether or not they are valid. Improper payments include payments for the incorrect amount; both
overpayments and underpayments.




Wage, unemployment and Social Security income in TRACS includes:

TRACS INCOME CODE TYPE OF INCOME
B Business
F Federal Wage
M Military Pay
W Nonfederal Wage
u Unemployment
SS Social Security
SSI Supplemental Security Income

Other income the household receives such as welfare benefits, most pensions, child support, etc. may be
reported in annual income in TRACS but it is not used for the discrepancy analysis in EIV.

~—~The Income Discrepancy Report is a tool to alert PMHA that there may be a discrepancy in the income
ceported by the tenant during the period of income shown on the report. PMHA will investigate all
discrepancies identified on the report to determine whether or not the discrepancy is valid. PMHA is not
expected to reconcile dollar amounts to the penny when resolving discrepancies.

PMHA will:

(1) Print the Income Discrepancy Report at the same time they print the Income report, at annual and
interim recertification or at other times as indicated in their policies and procedures. It is important that the
Income Discrepancy Report be printed at the same time as the Income Report as each week a completely new
report is generated based on the current information in the system for a tenant. The old report is overwritten
with the current data.

(2) Review and resolve any discrepancies in the income reported on the Income Discrepancy Report with the
household at the time of recertification or within 30 days of the EIV Income Report date. Any unreporting,
underreporting or over-reporting of income by the tenant and reported on current or historical form




HUD-50059s (MF) or HUD-50058 (HCV/PH) must be identified.

(3) Retain the Income Discrepancy Report along with detailed information on the resolution of the reported
discrepancy in the tenant file. This includes information on resolution of the discrepancy regardless of
whether the discrepancy was found to be valid or invalid.

(4) Make sure that the information in TRACS agrees with the information on the form HUD-50059 (MF) or
HUD-50058 (HCV/PH) in the tenant’s file. Any discrepant information must be corrected in the TRACS
database. This is important since the income discrepancies reported in EIV are determined by comparing the
wage, unemployment and Social Security benefits income reported by NDNH and/or SSA with the wage,
unemployment and Social Security benefits income reported by the household and transmitted to TRACS.

PMHA will follow the instructions on Investigating and Resolving Income Discrepancies. Note: HUD
regulation prohibits Owners/Agents from taking adverse action based solely on EIV information.

—OQther EIV Reports
ZIV contains the following stand-alone reports that identify potential issues which may impact the family’s

assistance. PMHA must use these reports as discussed below and at other times as established in policies and
procedures to reduce subsidy payment errors. PMHA will retain a “Master” file that contains a copy of the
report and documentation and/or notations as indicated in the following report discussions. Because detailed
reports must contain information for the members of that household only, PMHA will separate the reports that
print without page breaks so that the sanctity of the individual household is not compromised.

Additional Income Reports

There are two additional income reports that PMHA will use: the No Income Report and the New Hires
Report. These reports are accessed from the Monthly Summary Report when querying by project number
and/or contract number. If the report name is underlined, this indicates it is an active link. PMHA will click
on the report name to obtain data about households identified where no income was reported or where a




household member is reporting as having new employment.
(a) The No Income Report is a tool for PMHA to use to identify tenants who passed the identity match
against SSA’s records but no employment or income information was received from the match against either
the SSA or NDNH records. PMHA will use this report only as identified in the policies and procedures.
Because no income was reported as a result of the match against SSA and NDNH records does not mean that
the tenant(s) does not have income. PMHA will make sure that, at the time of recertification interviews,
proper questions are asked so that the tenants are given the opportunity to disclose any income they receive.
PMHA is not required to retain copies of this report.
(b) The New Hires Report identifies tenants who have started new jobs within the last six months. The
information in this report is updated monthly. PMHA will use this report at least quarterly to determine if any
of their tenants have started new employment whereby the tenant has not reported a change in income to
PMHA between recertifications and/or the new employment was not reported at the time of recertification.
Because tenants participating in a Multifamily rental assistance program are required to report changes in
income when the household’s income cumulatively increases by $200 or more per month, and because tenants
—-narticipating in Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher programs are required to report changes in
.ncome when the household’s income cumulatively increases by 25% or more, PMHA will reach out to tenants
to report the income changes so that rent adjustments can be made in a timely manner, thus
eliminating/reducing the amount of retroactive rent repayments. PMHA will:
(1) contact the tenant regarding his/her new employment
(2) confirm with the tenant that they have a new job and that the employment information in EIV is correct.
If the tenant agrees that the employment information in EIV is correct, PMHA will request the tenant provide
documents such as four current, consecutive pay stubs, employment confirmation letter specifying date of
hire, rate of pay, number of hours worked each week, pay frequency, for use in determining the tenant’s
income or, if necessary, request third party verification from the employer. If the tenant disputes the
employment information in EIV, the PMHA will obtain third party verification from the employer.
(3) Process a recertification in accordance with program requirements that includes the employment income
(4) Retain the New Hires Summary Report in a master “New Hires Report” file along with notations as to the
outcome of the contract with the tenant (such as J. Jones - interim recertification processed to include income




from new employment). A copy of the New Hires Detail Report for the tenant along with any correspondence
with the tenant, third party verifications, etc. must be retained in the tenant file.

Verification Reports
The Verifications Reports will be accessed from the EIV Homepage, left sidebar.
(a) This report identifies applicants applying for assisted housing that may be receiving rental assistance at
the time of application processing at another location. PMHA will:
(1) use this report at the time they are processing an applicant for admission to determine if the applicant or
any applicant household members are currently being assisted at another Multifamily Housing or Public and
Indian Housing (PIH) location.
(2) discuss with the applicant if the report identifies that the applicant or a member of the applicant’s
household is residing at another location, giving the applicant the opportunity to explain any circumstances
relative to his/her being assisted at another location. This may be a case where the applicant wants to move
from his/her present location or where two assisted families share custody of a minor child

“~3) Follow up with the respective PHA or Owner/Agent to confirm the individual’s program participation status
pefore admission, if necessary, depending on the outcome of the discussion with the applicant. The report
gives PMHA the ability to coordinate move-out and move-in dates with the PHA or Owner/Agent of the
property at the other location.
(4) Retain the search results with the applicant along with any documentation obtained as a result of
contacts with the applicant and the PHA and/or Owner/Agent at the other location.

Multiple Subsidy Report

This report identifies individuals who may be receiving multiple rental subsidies. PMHA will:

(1) Use the Multiple Subsidy Report at least quarterly to identify any tenants who are being assisted at
another location. PMHA will follow up with tenants identified on the report where the discrepancy was not
identified and resolved at the time of recertification.

(2) Perform both of the following search options shown below to determine if possible multiple subsidies
exist:




-Search within MF

-Search within PIH ,
(3) Discuss with the tenant if the results of either of the searches shows that a tenant is being assisted at
another location. The tenant must be given the opportunity to explain any circumstances relative to his/her
being assisted at another location.
(4) Follow up with the respective PHA or Owner/Agent, if necessary, to confirm that the tenant is being
assisted at the other location. Depending on the results of this investigation, the PMHA may need to take
action to terminate the tenant’s assistance or tenancy.
(5) Print out and retain a copy of the Multiple Subsidy Summary Report in a master “"Multiple Subsidy Report”
file along with the notations as to the outcome of contacts with the tenant and or PHA or Owner (such as J.
Jones - no multiple subsidies being paid. A copy of the Multiple Subsidy Detail Report for the tenant plus any
documentation supporting any contacts made or information obtained to determine if a household and/or
household member is receiving multiple subsidies as well as documentation to support any action taken if a
household and/or a household member is receiving multiple subsidies must be retained in the tenant file.

—Notes: If a tenant’s multiple subsidies were discussed and resolved at the time of recertification, this must be

Joted on the printed Multiple Subsidy Summary Report and no further action is required.

Identity Verification Reports

There are two reports that can be accessed from the Identity Verification Report link. PMHA will use both of
these reports monthly to clear up any invalid, discrepant or missing information in the TRACS database that
was not identified and corrected at the time of recertification. There will not be any employment or income
information in EIV for tenants who fail either the EIV pre-screening or SSA identity test so it is essential that
any discrepancies are corrected within 30 days from the date of the reports. PMHA will conduct third party
verifications to obtain employment and income data for these tenants.

If the report name is underlined, this indicates it is an active link. PMHA will click on the report name to




obtain data about household members who failed the EIV pre-screening or SSA identity test.
(1) Failed EIV Pre-Screening Report
This report identifies tenants who fail the EIV pre-screening test because of invalid or missing personal
identifiers (SSN, last name or DOB). The tenants on this list will not be sent to SSA from EIV for the SSA
identity match until the personal identifier information is corrected in TRACS.
PMHA will:
(a) Use this report monthly to identify tenants that did not pass the pre-screening test and the reason(s) they
did not pass so that the errors can be corrected. PMHA will follow up with tenants identified on the report
where discrepant personal identifiers were not corrected at the time of recertification.
(b) Before contacting the tenant, confirm accuracy of data entry in TRACS, (such as has a number been
transposed when entering the SSN?)
(c) Confirm with the affected tenant their SSN, DOB and/or last name
(d) Obtain documentation from the tenant to verify any discrepant personal identifiers
(e) Correct any discrepant information in the TRACS system

—(f) Print and retain a copy of the report in a master “Failed EIV Pre-Screening Report” file. The report will be
Jocumented with action taken to resolve invalid or discrepant personal identifiers.
Note: This report will include those persons who are exempt from the SSN disclosure and verification
requirements. In these instances PMHA will note on the copy of the report retained in the “Failed EIV
Pre-Screening Report” master file that the tenant(s) is exempt from SSN requirements. Exempt from SSN
disclosure and verification requirements are:
» Tenants who were 62 years of age or older as of January 31, 2010, and whose initial determination of

eligibility was begun before January 31, 2010, and

» Individuals who do not contend eligible immigration status
These individuals/tenants will continue to have a TRACS generated identification number in the SSN field. No
employment or income information will be provided in EIV for these individuals.

(2) Failed Verification Report (Failed the SSA Identity Test)
This report identifies household members who failed the SSA identity test because their personal identifiers




(SSN, last name or DOB) do not match SSA’s records as well as identifies deceased household members.

PMHA will:

(a) Use this report monthly to identify those tenants that did not pass the SSA identity verification test and

the reason(s) they did not pass so that the errors can be corrected. PMHA will follow up with tenants

identified on the report where discrepant personal identifiers were not corrected at the time of recertification.

(b) Before contacting the tenant, confirm accuracy of data entry in TRACS (such as, has a number been

transposed when entering the SSN?)

(¢) Confirm with the affected tenant their SSN, DOB and/or last name

(d) Obtain documentation from the tenant to verify and discrepant personal identifiers

(e) Correct any discrepant information in the TRACS system so that the tenant will be included in the match

against SSA and NDNH data

(f) Encourage the tenant to contact the SSA to correct any inaccurate data in their databases if the personal

identifiers on the form HUD-50059 MF) or HUD-50058 (HCV/PH) and in TRACS are accurate. The tenant can

request SSA to correct his/her record by completing and submitting form SS-5 Application for a Social Security
— Card, to the local SSA office.

«g) Print and retain a copy of the report in a master “Failed the SSA Identity Test” file. The report must be

documented with action taken to resolve invalid or discrepant personal identifiers.

NOTE: If a tenant’s information was corrected at the time of recertification but the EIV data has not yet been

updated, this must be noted on the printed report and no further action is required.

Deceased Tenants Report

This report identifies tenants who are participating in a rental assistance programs who are reported by SSA as
being deceased. PMHA will:

(a) Use this report at least quarterly to identify those tenants reported by SSA as being deceased.

(b) Confirm, in writing, with the head-of-household, next of kin or emergency contact person or entity
provided by the tenant whether or not the person is deceased.

(c) If the person is deceased:




+ Update the family composition, and income and allowances, if applicable, on the form HUD-50059 (MF) or
HUD-50058 (HCV/PH). The effective date of the form HUD-50059(MF) or HUD-50058 (HCV/PH) should be
in accordance with the appropriate sections of the appropriate program guidebook or notice.

« In the case of a deceased single member of a household, process a Move-out using form HUD-50059-A
(MF) or HUD-50058 (HCV/PH). The effective date of the form HUD-50059-A(MF) or HUD-50058 (HCV/PH)
will be retroactive to the earlier of 14 days after the tenant’s death or the date the unit was vacated.

Note: Single member deceased households are denoted on the report with a red asterisk (*) after the
member’s deceased date.

« Any overpayment of subsidy that was paid on behalf of the deceased tenant must be repaid to HUD

+ Discrepant information must be corrected in the TRACS system within 30 days from the date of the report

(d) Encourage the tenant to contact the SSA to correct any inaccurate data in their databases if the person

shown as being deceased in the SSA database is not deceased

(e) Print and retain a copy of the report in a master “Deceased Tenants Report” file. The report must be

documented with action taken to resolve any discrepancies. All correspondence or action taken for a

—narticular tenant must be retained in the tenant file. Note: If action was taken to remove the deceased

cenant from the household or a move-out processed if a single member household but the EIV data has not
yet been updated, this must be noted on the printed report and no further action is required.

The Deceased Tenant Report is updated every weekend. Examples are provided on pages 37 and 38 of
Notice H2010-10 detailing removal of a deceased individual from a report.

Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements (SAVE) System Access

Individuals who have approved access to the Department of Homeland Security’s (DHS') SAVE system for
verifying the validity of citizenship documents provided by the applicants or tenants who are not citizens and
who claim eligible immigration status may access the system through EIV. The system can be accessed from
the EIV Homepage, left sidebar under External Links.




Investigating and Resolving Income Discrepancies
A. Investigating Discrepancies

(1) PMHA will investigate and confirm possible income discrepancies of $2,400 or more as disclosed on the

EIV Income Discrepancy Report. PMHA will also determine whether the income appearing on the EIV Income

Discrepancy Report should be included as income and does not meet one of the income exclusions

represented in HUD guidebooks. They will also investigate and confirm other possible errors that may result

in over or underpayment of HUD subsidy, such as tenants reported by SSA as being deceased, tenants

receiving multiple subsidies, etc.

(2) PMHA will not suspend, terminate, reduce, make a final denial of rental assistance, or take any other

adverse action against an individual based solely on the date in EIV.

(3) When the tenant disputes the employment and income information in EIV, PMHA must independently

verify the disputed information by obtaining third party verification directly from the third party source.

(4) PMHA will notify the tenant of the results of any third party verification and request the tenant come into
—+he office, within 10 days of notification, to discuss the results. The tenant may contest the finds in the same

manner as applies to other information and findings relating to eligibility factors.

(5) If the PMHA determines that the tenant is in non-compliance with his/her lease because he/she knowingly

provided incomplete or inaccurate information, the PMHA will follow guidance in the appropriate program

guidebook or HUD notices, for terminating the tenant’s tenancy and for the requirements on filing a civil action

against the tenant to recover improper subsidy payments.

(6) Where fraud is suspected, the PMHA will report this to the HUD OIG Office of Investigation in the District

that has jurisdiction in the state the project is located.

B. Unreported or Underreported Income
If the PMHA determines the tenant unreported or underreported his/her income, the PMHA will go back to the
time the unreported or underreporting of income started, not to exceed the 5-year limitation that the tenant




—

was receiving assistance described on forms HUD-9886, HUD-9887 and HUD-9887-A, and calculate the
difference between the amount of rent the tenant should have paid and the amount of rent the tenant was
charged. PMHA will notify the tenant of any amount due and their obligation to reimburse the PMHA. A
record of this calculation must be provided to the tenant and also retained in the tenant’s file. Tenants with
unreported income that goes back further than 5 years can be reported to the OIG for fraud.

PMHA will have the form HUD-50059(s) or HUD-50058(s) on file that was in effect during the period(s) that
the tenant had unreported or underreported income, along with any supporting documentation, in order to
calculate the amount the tenant must reimburse to the owner. The form HUD-50059(s) or HUD-50058(s) is
the document whereby the tenant(s) certifies to the accuracy of the income included on the form. If PMHA
does not have this historical information, PMHA cannot go back to the tenant for unreported or underreported
income.

Z. Tenant Repayment of Unreported or Underreported income
(1) Tenant’s Obligation to Reimburse: Tenants are obligated to reimburse PMHA if they are charged less
rent than required by HUD’s rent formula due to underreporting or failure to report income. The tenant is
required to reimburse PMHA for the difference between the rent that should have been paid and the rent that
was charged.
NOTE: Tenants are not required to reimburse PMHA for undercharges caused solely by the PMHA's failure to
follow HUD's procedures for computing rent or assistance payments.
(2) Repayment Options:
(a) Tenants can repay amounts due;
(1) In alump sum payment, or
(2) By entering into a repayment agreement with PMHA, or
(3) A combination of (1) and (2) above
(b) Tenants who do not agree to repay amounts due in accordance with 2.a.




above, will be in non-compliance with their lease agreement and may be
subject to termination of tenancy.

(c) Tenants may also be required to repay funds to PMHA due to a:
(1) Civil action taken by PMHA, or
(2) Court action taken as a result of an OIG audit

(3) Repayment Agreements

(a) The tenant and the PMHA must both agree on the terms of the repayment
agreement. The tenant may wish to consult with HUD’s Housing
Counseling Agency in their area to assist them in working with the PMHA
to reach agreeable terms for the repayment agreement. See the
Housing Counseling Agency website for a listing of agencies for each
state at: http://www.hud.gov/officers/hsg/sfh/hcc/hes.cfm.
(1) Monthly Payment: The tenant’s monthly payment must be what
the tenant can afford to pay based on the family’s income. The monthly
payment plus the amount of the tenant’s total tenant payment (TTP) at
the time of the repayment agreement is executed should not exceed 40
percent of the family’s monthly adjusted income.
(2) Repayment Time Period: The time period for repayment by the
tenant of the amount owed.

(b) Effective July 1, 2010, new repayment agreements must:
(1) Include the total retroactive rent amount owed, the amount of lump
sum paid at time of execution of the agreement, if applicable, and the
monthly payment amount.
(2) Reference the paragraphs in the lease whereby the tenant is in non-
compliance and may be subject to termination of their lease.
(3) Contain a clause whereby the terms of the agreement will be
renegotiated if there is a decrease or increase in the family’s income of
$200 or more per month.




pm——

(4) Include a statement that the monthly retroactive rent repayment
amount is in addition to the family’s monthly rent payment and is

payable to the PMHA.

(5) Late and missed payments constitute default of the repayment
agreement and may result in termination of assistance and/or tenancy.

(6) Be signed and dated by the tenant and PMHA. The PMHA will require the
Head of Household and, if applicable, the family member who had the
unreported or underreported income sign the repayment agreement.

() PMHA must not apply a tenant’s monthly rent payment towards the

repayment amount owed that would result in an accumulation of late
rent payments. The monthly payment due on the repayment agreement
is in addition to the tenant’s monthly rent payment.

(4) Disposition of Funds Received by PMHA
(a) PMHA is required to reimburse funds collected from the tenant to HUD in

accordance with the requirements in the appropriate HUD Handbook or
Notice.
(1) For Mutli-family properties, PMHA will be familiar with their software capability that allows
for adding Miscellaneous Accounting Requests to the housing assistance payments (HAP)
voucher (form HUD-52670) as the procedures vary from software to software. PMHA will
consult their software documentation or software provider if assistance is required.
PMHA will also use this software capability for their Public Housing and HCV programs.
(2) After verifying the tenant’s income, PMHA will complete corrections
to a prior certification(s) affected by the income change. PMHA must not
fail to correct the prior certification(s) in an attempt to avoid having large
negative adjustments appear on the HAP voucher.
(3) Voucher adjustments
(a) If the tenant is able to pay the entire amount due in one

lump sum payment, no Miscellaneous Account Request is




needed.
(b) If the tenant pays a lump sum payment and enters into a
repayment agreement for the remaining amount due, the
PMHA must first reverse the adjustment created by
correcting the prior certification(s) less the lump sum
payment by adding a PMAH initiated accounting
adjustment (Owner Agent ReQuest - OARQ)
Miscellaneous Accounting Request to the voucher.
(c) Adjustments for payments received from the tenant per the
repayment agreement are made as addressed in (e)
below.
(d) If the tenant is subject to a repayment agreement, the
PMHA must first reverse the full amount of the voucher
adjustment created by correcting the prior certification(s).
(e) As the tenant makes payments per the repayment
agreement, PMHA must enter them as negative amounts
on the voucher as OARQ Miscellaneous Accounting
Requests with the comment field completed explaining payment and costs retained. If
the PMHA is deducting their costs from the payment received from the tenant, the
OARQ Miscellaneous Accounting Request will be for the amount collected from the
tenant less the PMHA's costs.
(f) PMHA will consult the TRACS Monthly Activity Transmission (MAT) User’s Guide to
obtain updated instructions on Miscellaneous Accounting Requests.
(b) PMHA may retain a portion of the repayments actually collected from the

tenants who have improperly reported their income at the time of

certification or recertification to help defray the cost of pursuing these

cases. This is no longer limited to cases where PMHA has determined

fraud.




PMHA may only retain an amount to cover their actual costs, which is the
lesser of:

(1) their actual cost, or

(2) 20% of the amount received from the tenant

(c) Amounts retained by PMHA must be deposited into the project’s operating
account to offset the expenses incurred for these cases.

(d) As with all income and expenses of the project, PMHA must keep records of
the receipt and disbursement of all amounts collected from the tenant
for audit purposes. At a minimum, the owner must record:

(1) Date and amount(s) received from the tenant;

(2) Expenses incurred (examples include staff time for verifying the
unreported income, meeting with the tenant, drafting repayment
agreements, generating and sending monthly invoices to tenant,
generating manual voucher adjustments, collection agency fees, if
applicable, and meeting state requirements.)

(3) Amount(s) retained, and

(4) Voucher date(s) and amount(s) of reimbursement made to HUD

D. Over-reported Income

1. Tenants may report decreases in their income. In these instances, PMHA must process an interim
recertification in accordance with the appropriate program Handbook or Notice.

2. If, at the time of recertification, there is an Income Discrepancy Report in EIV that reflects a decrease of
$2,400 or more in wage, unemployment and/or Social Security income reported in EIV and the wage,
unemployment and/or Social Security income in TRACS for the period of income used for the discrepancy
analysis, PMHA must investigate the discrepancy.

(a) If, after investigating the discrepancy, PMHA determines that an error was made in calculating the
tenant’s income, such as third party verification was not obtained, third party verification was received but an




error was made in calculating the tenant’s income) and the income was over-reported, PMHA  must complete
corrections to the prior certification(s) affected by the income change. Once the corrections have been made,
PMHA will determine the difference between the amount of rent the tenant paid and the rent that the tenant
should have paid.

(b) PMHA must reimburse the tenant the amount of overpayment of rent in accordance with the appropriate
Handbook or Notice.

E. Errors Discovered During a Multi-Family Monitoring Review

If during their review of the tenant files, the Contractor Administrator determines that an error was made in
the income calculation based on the income verifications on file that results in an under-or over-payment of
rent by the tenant, PMHA will make the necessary adjustments to the tenant’s rent for the period the error
occurred. This will appear as a finding on the Management and Occupancy Review (MOR) and PMHA will
have 30 days to mitigate.

—~fa) PMHA will complete corrections to the prior certification(s) affected by the income change. Once the
-orrections have been made, PMHA will determine the difference between the amount of rent the tenant paid
and the rent that the tenant should have paid.

(b) PMHA will follow the instructions in the appropriate handbook or notice for reimbursement to PMHA by
the tenant for underpayment of rent and for reimbursement to the tenant by PMHA for overpayment of rent.

Retention of EIV Reports
PMHA will retain:

1. The Income Report, the Summary Report(s) showing Identity Verification Status as “Verified” and the
Income Discrepancy Report(s) and supporting documentation must be retained in the tenant file for the term
of tenancy plus three years.

2. Any tenant provided documentation, or other third party verification of income, received to supplement the
SSA or NDNH data must be retained in the tenant file for the term of tenancy plus three years.

3. Results of the Existing Tenant Search must be retained with the application:




(a) If applicant is not admitted, the application and search results must be retained for three years.

(b) If applicant is admitted, the application and search results must be retained in the tenant file for the term
of tenancy plus three years.

4. The master files for the New Hires Report, Identity Verification Reports, Multiple Subsidy Report and
Deceased Tenants Report must be retained for three years.

Once the retention period has expired, PMHA will dispose of the data in a manner that will prevent any
unauthorized access to personal information, such as burn, pulverize, shred, etc.

Penalties For Failure To Have Access To And/Or Use EIV for Multi-family Programs
A. PMHA will incur penalties if they:

1. Did not receive access to the EIV system by January 31, 2010, because
they did not submit a Coordinator Access Authorization Form (CAAF) to
the Multifamily Help Desk by December 15, 2009, and/or did not
complete the property assignment process by January 15, 2010, as
instructed in Listserve and iIMAX messages posted beginning mid-
November 2009;

2. Did not begin using EIV as of January 31, 2010, or

3. Are not using EIV at the time of a MOR.

PMHA will also determine that they are appropriately register to use, and are appropriately using, the
EIV system for the Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing properties.

B. Penalties
1. PMHA will receive a finding on the Multi-family MOR report
2. PMHA will incur a penalty of five percent decrease in the voucher payment
for the month following the date the violation was found.
3. PMHA will make an adjustment on the next scheduled voucher to adjust




for the five percent decrease for Multi-Family properties
4. Will be monitored by the Contract Administrator to ensure the adjustment is
made for Multi-Family properties.

C. For Multi-family properties, PMHA will have 30 days to cure the finding

1. The finding will be cured by obtaining access to and/or using EIV and the
PMHA will make an adjustment to the next scheduled voucher to collect
the funds previously returned to HUD.

2. If the finding is not cured during the 30 day period, both the owner and the
Management agent, if applicable, will be flagged in HUD’s Active Partners
Performance System (APPS). Once the finding is cured, the flag(s) will
be removed.

Security of EIV Data
—~The data in EIV contains personal information on individual tenants that is covered by the Privacy Act. The
.nformation in EIV may only be used for limited official purposes:

Official Purpose Includes:

1. PMHA, in connection with the administration of Multifamily Housing, Housing Choice Voucher and Public
Housing programs, for verifying the employment and income at the time of recertification and for reducing
administrative and subsidy payment errors.

2. Contract Administrators (PBCAs and TCAs) and HUD staff for monitoring and oversight of the access and
mandatory use of the EIV system.

3. IPAs, when hired by an owner to perform the financial audit of the project, for use in determining the
owner’s compliance with verifying income and determining the accuracy of the rent and subsidy calculations.
Restrictions on disclosure requirements for IPAs:

(a) Can only access EIV income information within hard copy files and only within the offices of the owner or
management agent;




(b) Cannot transmit or transport EIV income information in any form;

(c) Cannot enter EIV income information on any portable media;

(d) Must sign non-disclosure oaths (Rules of Behavior for Non-system Users) that the EIV income information
will be used only for the purpose of the audit; and

(e) Cannot duplicate EIV income information or re-disclose EIV income information to any user not authorized
by Section 435(j)(7) of the Social Security Act to have access to the EIV income data. NOTE: Independent
public auditor means a CPA or a licensed or registered public accountant, having no business relationship with
the private owner except for the performance of audit, systems work and tax preparation. If not certified, the
Independent Public Accountant must have been licensed or registered by a regulatory authority of a State or
other political subdivision of the United States on or before December 31, 1970. In States that do not
regulate the use of the title “public accountant,” only Certified Public Accountants may be used.

4, OIG investigators for auditing purposes

Official Purpose Does NOT Include:

~-1. Sharing the information with governmental entities not involved in the recertification process used for
{UD’s assisted housing programs, such as the LIHTC program and RHS Section 515 program. HUD Notice H
2010-10 and 2011-21 do not apply to the RHS Section 515 program for certification of tenants who do not
receive Section 8 assistance or for compliance monitoring by RHS staff for tenants receiving Section 8
assistance. Disclosing the EIV information to PMHA for use under the RHS Section 515 programs is not
allowed since neither the IRS nor RHS are a party to the computer matching agreements with HHS and SSA.
The fact that there is financing through other federal agencies involved in a particular property under one of
the authorized HUD programs does not then permit that federal agency to use or view information in the EIV
system that is covered by the computer matching agreements. The computer matching agreements are
governed by the Privacy Act and the Social Security Act.
2. Disclosure of the EIV information to Multi-family Service Coordinators even though the tenant signs a
release of information consent form authorizing the Service Coordinator to have access to their file is not
allowed unless the Service Coordinator is present during the interview and assisting the tenant with the
recertification process. The statute authorizing the computer matching identifies those parties to whom the




information can be disclosed and the statute does not include Service Coordinators.

Disclosure to Persons Assisting Tenants with the Recertification Process:

With the written consent of the tenant, EIV data may be shared with persons assisting the tenant with the
recertification process. Tenants who require assistance during the recertification process may have a
representative present to assist them in their ability to participate in the recertification process; this includes
review and explanation of the written third party income verifications. Disclosure of EIV information to these
parties must be employment or income information pertaining only to the tenant who has provided his/her
consent. These parties must not have access to EIV information for any other household members.

Parties to whom the tenant can provide written consent include:
+ Service coordinators, only if they are present at and assisting the tenant with the recertification process
» Translators/Interpreters
» Individuals assisting an elderly individual or a person with a disability
-~ Guardians
Powers of Attorney
» Other Family Members

Penalties for Willful Disclosure or Inspection of EIV Data:

1. Unauthorized Disclosure - Felony conviction and fine up to $5,000 or imprisonment up to five (5) years, as
well as civil damages

2. Unauthorized Inspection - Misdemeanor penalty of up to $1,000 and/or one (1) year imprisonment, as well
as civil damages

Rules of Behavior (ROB)
1. With the EIV System Access




All EIV users who have access to the EIV system must adhere to the EIV ROB signed at the time of requesting
access to the EIV system
a. Instructions for requesting access to EIV for both internal HUD users and external users are posted on the
Multifamily EIV website at:

http://www.hud.gov/offices/hsg/mfh/rhiip/eiv/eivapps.cfm
b. External users: the signed initial and current online (unsigned) access authorization forms containing the
ROB must be kept on file along with the owner approval letters. Upon request, the forms must be made
available to the entity monitoring EIV compliance.
c. Internal users: a copy of the signed ROB will be kept on file by the TRACS/EIV Security Officer and a
signed copy should also be retained by the EIV user.

2. Without EIV System Access
a. PMHA staff who do not have access to the EIV system but who view or use EIV data/reports provided by
authorized EIV Coordinators or EIV Users in order to perform their job functions, must adhere to the EIV ROB

—~nposted on the Multifamily EIV website at:

http:[[www.hud.gov[of‘ﬁces[hsg[mfh[rhiig[eiv[rulesofbehavior.Qdf
The ROB must be signed and kept on file.

b. IPAs hired by the owner to perform a financial audit must adhere to the ROB posted on the Multifamily EIV
website at:

http://www.hud.gov/offices/hsg/mfh/rhiip/eiv/rulesofbehavior.pdf
The ROB must be signed by the IPA and kept on file.

Security Training
EIV users are required to complete online security training annually. To meet this requirement, PMHA EIV
users and viewers must complete the online Federal ISS Awareness training program. At the end of the
training, EIV users and viewers must print and maintain the Certificate of Completion provided. Security
Awareness Training can be completed by:

e Opening the web browser




Type http://iase.disa.mil/eta/index.htmi#onlinetraining

Press Enter

Click on Federal ISS Awareness icon on the 1A Education, Training and Awareness Screen

Click on Launch New Information Systems Security Awareness on the Information Systems Security
Awareness screen

Proceed with the training

When the training is complete, print and maintain the Certificate of Completion

The Security Awareness Training described above is the same training required for those individuals who
transmit TRACS files. If the training has been completed to satisfy TRACS security training requirements, this
will also satisfy EIV security training requirements as well provided the completion date represented on the
Certificate of Completion is not older than one year.

EIV users authorized by owners to have access to the EIV system on their behalf must also complete the
—~3pplicable online Security Awareness Training Questionnaire for Multifamily Housing Programs upon initial
access to the system and annually thereafter.

2. EIV users will:

a. Review Section 4 on Security contained in the Multifamily EIV User Manual for Multifamily Housing
Program Users posted at: http://www.hud.gov/offices/hsa/mfh/rhiip/eiv/usermanual.pdf

b. Review the EIV Security Administration Manual posted at:
http://www.hud.gov/offices/hsg/mfh/rhiip/eiv/securityadminmanual.pdf

c. View the Security training provided during the most recent EIV webcast, posted at:
http://www.hud.gov/webcasts/archives/multifamily.cfm, and

3. PMHA staff who do not have access to EIV but who use EIV reports to perform their job function must
have security training annually.




Safequarding EIV Data
1. Technical Safeguarding of Data
a. All individuals who have access to the EIV system must have a valid WASS User ID and password and
must use this ID and password for accessing EIV. Upon receipt of the assigned WASS User ID, an individual
must then apply to be approved for access to the EIV system.
b. To assist in ensuring that only those individuals who have a need to use the EIV system to perform their
job function have access to the EIV system, users must be certified to use the system

(1) EIV Coordinators are certified at initial access and annually thereafter

(2) EIV Users are certified at initial access and bi-annually thereafter
If this certification is not made, the user’s EIV access is terminated
c. A Security Awareness Training Questionnaire, which supplements required annual security training, must
be completed at the time of initial access to the system and annually thereafter. The EIV system is designed
to block the entry of those individuals who have not successfully completed the questionnaire, such as
answered 90 percent of the questions correctly.

—

2. Administrative Safeguards
a. Policies and Procedures must be established to govern the use of the EIV system.
These procedures should address:
(1) Authorized use of the EIV system
Only those persons who are involved in certifying eligibility or who
process annual or interim certifications will be authorized users of the
system
(2) How to handle security breaches
(a) Users should immediately contact their supervisor
(b) Full report will be documented on security breaches. If policies need to be revised to
prevent breaches, they will be revised.
(c) A review of the written report will be compared to the EIV Policy and
documentation will be further made to note where the breach occurred.




(d) The tenant will be contacted and made aware of the breach within 48 hours of the
discovery of the breach.
(e) The Executive Director or a designee will provide the HUD Field Office Public Housing
Director with the written documentation, and
() The HUD Field Office Public Housing Director, upon recejpt of the written documentation
will make a determination regarding the referral and the provision of the written documentation
to the Headquarters EI1V Coordinator andy/or EIV Security Officer for further review and
follow-up action.
(3) Destruction of EIV data

EIV data will be shredded at the appropriate time as per this policy.

b. EIV manuals and the instructions in Notice HUD 2010-10 and Notice 2011-21 should be reviewed when

implementing those administrative safeguards

3. Physical Safeguards
—-Physical safeguarding of EIV data refers to steps that must be taken to help ensure the data is safe when
stored electronically or in hardcopy and when transmitting data electronically.
a. Storing and Transmitting of Electronic EIV Data
(1) EIV data stored electronically must be in a restricted access directory, or, if
placed on portable media, labeled appropriately and encrypted using a
NIST compliant vendor. Similarly, all emails containing EIV data must be
encrypted using a NIST compliant vendor. A list of compliant vendors
can be found at:
http://csrc.nist.gov/groups/STM/cmvp/documents/140-1401vend.htm
(2) The full nine-digit SSN for a tenant must not be included in emails or other
electronic communications.
NOTE: The downloading of EIV data to mobile devices is not allowed for IPAs

b. Hardcopy EIV Data




——

EIV data that is printed out must not be left unattended. The documents should be retrieved as soon as they
are printed and, if possible, use a restricted printer, copier, or facsimile machine. When faxing EIV data,
ensure there is someone waiting and ready to retrieve the fax as soon as it is received (printed). When
mailing EIV data, the data must be sent to an office of the PMHA. EIV data must not be mailed to
Independent Public Auditor offices.

PMHA further requires that all files be kept behind closed doors for additional security. These doors are
locked when PMHA is not open during working hours. During working hours, only PMHA staff members are
permitted in the file rooms where files are stored.

When files are in offices, they should be kept in a file cabinet, out of public view, unless specifically being
worked on by PMHA staff members.

¢. Computer Security

—The EIV system is set up to time out after 30 minutes of inactivity. This automatic safeguard should not be

‘he only security measure taken. Individuals who use the EIV system should use a password protected
screensaver and lock their computer when leaving their workspace. A user should not leave a computer
unattended with EIV data displayed on the screen. It is also recommended that the EIV system be exited
using the "X” at the top right of the screen which will remove the user from the entire WASS system.

PMHA further requires that EIV computer access is not engaged unless the staff member is specifically
retrieving EIV data. Upon receipt of EIV data for specific residents, the PMHA staff member will exit out of
EIV and Security Systems entirely.

PMHA employees are instructed to not share passwords with any other individual, including the Executive
Director or EIV Coordinator.

d. Destroying EIV data
EIV data must be destroyed as soon as it has served its purpose as prescribed by HUD’s policies and




procedures and in accordance with HUD’s prescribed retention period. Shredding, burning or pulverizing are

all examples of acceptable ways to destroy EIV data.
PMHA shreds all EIV data as per the guidelines of this policy.

TOOLS AND RESOURCES
Tools and Resources are listed on page 54 and 55 of Notice HUD 2011-21, the entire document of which is

incorporated by attachment into this policy, as are all attachments and examples contained within the notice.
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Dave Yost - Auditor of State

June 30, 2011

Rebecca Curtis, Finance Director
Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
176 Rustic Drive

Circleville, Ohio 43113

Dear Ms. Curtis:

Please be advised the enclosed letter regarding the audit of the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing
Authority, Pickaway County, for the year ended December 31, 2010 was sent to your public
accountant, Balestra, Harr & Scherer, CPAs, Inc.

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me at (614) 466-3597.

Sincerely,

DAVE YOST
Auditor of State

Brad Blake
Chief Auditor, Quality Assurance

88 East Broad Street, Ninth Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3506
Phone: 614-466-3340 or 800-282-0370 Fax: 614-728-7398

www, auditor.state.oh.us




Dave Yost - Auditor of State

June 30, 2011

Brenden Balestra

Balestra, Harr & Scherer, CPAs, Inc.
800 Gallia Street, Suite 38
Portsmouth, Ohio 45662

Dear Mr. Balestra:

A desk review of the audit report has been performed for the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing
Authority, Pickaway County, for the year ended December 31, 2010. Based on the desk review,
this report is acceptable and requires no modifications.

We will certify this audit with the Clerk of the Bureau. If you have any questions or concerns,
please contact me at (614) 466-3597.

Sincerely,

DAVE YOST
Auditor of State

Brad Blike

Brad Blake
Chief Auditor, Quality Assurance

cc: Bill Collier, Chief Auditor
Rebecca Curtis, Finance Director, Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority

88 East Broad Street, Ninth Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3506
Phone: 614-466-3340 or 800-282-0370 Fax: 614-728-7398

www. auditor.state.oh.us
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Pickaway County

176 Rustic Drive

Circleville, Ohio 43113

To the Board of Commissioners:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Pickaway Metropolitan
Housing Authority, Pickaway County, Ohio, (the Authority), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Comptroller General of the United States’
Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to reasonably assure
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the business-type activities of Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority, Pickaway County, Ohio, as of
December 31, 2010, and the changes in financial position and cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 31, 2011, on our
consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. While we did not opine on
the internal control over financial reporting, or on compliance, that report describes the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. You should read it in conjunction with
this report in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to include
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, as listed in the table of contents, to supplement the basic financial
statements. Although this information is not part of the basic financial statements, the Government Accounting
Standards Board considers it essential for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
and assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any other assurance.
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Board of Commissioners
Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit to opine on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Authority’s basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The supplemental financial data is presented for additional analysis as
required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and is not part of the basic financial
statements. The Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures provides additional information required by the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplemental financial data and
the Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures are management’s responsibility, and were derived from and related
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. This
supplemental financial data and the Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures were subject to the auditing
procedures we applied to the basic financial statements. We also applied certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling this information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

~/ st Al 7{5}’@5’ “

Balestra, Harr & Scherer, CPAs, Inc.
May 31, 2011




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Management's Discussion of Analytics
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

It is a privilege to present for you the financial picture of Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority. The Pickaway
Metropolitan Housing Authority’s (“the Authority”) management’s discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the
reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the Authority’s financial activity, (¢) identify
changes in the Authority’s financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), and (d)
identify the single enterprise fund issues or concerns.

Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year’s activities, resulting
changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The revenue increased by $453,961 (or 10.03%) during 2010, and was $4,981,155 and $4,527,194 for 2010 and
2009, respectively.

e The total expenses increased by $189,495 (or 4.20%). Total expenses were $4,700,108 and $4,510,613 for 2010
and 2009, respectively.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The basic financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all business type programs are consolidated into one
single enterprise fund for the Authority.

These statements include a Statement of Net Assets, which is similar to a Balance Sheet. The Statement of Net Assets
reports all financial and capital resources for the Authority. The statement is presented in the format where assets, minus
liabilities, equals “Net Assets”, formerly known as equity. Assets and liabilities are presented in order of liquidity, and are
classified as “Current” (convertible into cash within one year), and “Non-current”.

The focus of the Statement of Net Assets (the “Unrestricted Net Assets”) is designed to represent the net available liquid
(non-capital) assets, net of liabilities, for the entire Authority. Net Assets (formerly equity) are reported in three broad
categories (as applicable):

Net Assets, Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt: This component of Net Assets consists of all Capital
Assets, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Assets: This component of Net Assets consists of restricted assets, when constraints are placed on the
asset by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, etc.

Unrestricted Net Assets: Consists of Net Assets that do not meet the definition of “Net Assets Invested in Capital
Assets, Net of Related Debt”, or “Restricted Net Assets”. This account resembles the old operating reserves account.

The basic financial statements also include a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets (similar to
an Income Statement). This Statement includes Operating Revenues, such as rental income, Operating Expenses, such as
administrative, utilities, and maintenance, and depreciation, and Non-Operating Revenue and Expenses, such as grant
revenue, investment income and interest expense.

The focus of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets is the “Change in Net Assets”, which is
similar to Net Income or Loss.

Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used for operating activities, non-
capital financing activities, and from capital and related financing activities.




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Management’s Discussion of Analytics
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

The Authority’s programs that are consolidated into a single enterprise fund are as follows:

Conventional Public Housing — Under the Conventional Public Housing Program, the Authority rents units that it owns to
low-income households. The Conventional Public Housing Program is operated under an Annual Contributions Contract
(ACC) with HUD, and HUD provides Operating Subsidy to enable the PHA to provide the housing at a rent that is based
upon 30% of adjusted gross household income.

Capital Fund Program (CFP) — This is the current primary funding source for the Authority’s physical and management
improvements. Funds are allocated by a formula allocation and based on size and age of the authority’s units.

Williamsport Terrace (WT) — This is a multiple family housing project funded by the United States Department of
Agriculture. Each month subsidy is paid to the authority and the USDA dedlucts the mortgage payment from that subsidy.
The rental assistance part of the subsidy is reflected as federal expenditures for this program.

Other Business Activities — This is the miscellaneous activities of the authority that currently include housing activities
outside the scope of the conventional and housing choice voucher programs. Management contracts for non-profit elderly
projects.

Housing Choice Voucher Program — Under the Housing Choice Voucher Program, the Authority subsidizes rents to
independent landlords that own the property. The Authority subsidizes the family’s rent through a Housing Assistance
Payment (HAP) made to the landlord. The program is administered under an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) with
HUD. HUD provides funding to enable the Authority to structure a lease that requires the participant to pay a rent based on
a percentage of their adjusted gross household income, typically 30%, and the Housing Authority subsidizes the balance.




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Management’s Discussion of Analytics
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets compared to prior year.
TABLE 1
2010 2009
Current and other assets $ 1,473,251 $ 1,672,225
Capital assets 5,694,014 5,350,958
TOTAL ASSETS 7,167,265 7,023,183
Current liabilities 127,788 438,731
Long-term liabilities 820,077 646,100
TOTAL LIABILITIES 947,865 1,084,831
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,936,328 4,764,667
Restricted 166,138 411,749
Unrestricted 1,116,934 761,936

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 6,219,400 $ 5,938,352

MAJOR FACTORS AFFECTING THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Current and other assets decreased $198,974. Cash and investments represented most of the change and at the end of the
prior year the authority had deferred revenue of $280,299 for HAP and Administrative subsidy received in 2009 for 2010.
This amount was spent in 2010.
The capital asset differences are outline in Table 4.

Current liabilities decreased by $310,943, most of which was a decrease in deferred revenue of $307,069.

The change in net assets was the 2010 activity of an increase of $281,047. Refer to Table 2.




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Management’s Discussion of Analytics
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

TABLE 2
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

The following schedule compares the revenues and expenses for the current and previous fiscal year.

2010 2009
Revenues
Tenant revenue - rents and other $ 267,792 $ 255,575
Operating subsidies and grants 3,975,526 3,924,371
Capital grants 698,107 293,295
Investment income/other revenues 39,730 53,953
TOTAL REVENUE 4,981,155 4,527,194
Expenses
Administration 632,194 613,957
Tenant services 1,471 75,776
Utilities 102,855 101,013
Maintenance 337,637 295,390
General/PILOT/Insurance 48,500 52,166
Housing assistance payment 3,142,304 2,951,385
Depreciation 396,484 380,720
Interest expense 11,542 11,048
Bad debt/fraud losses 27,121 29,158
TOTAL EXPENSES 4,700,108 4,510,613
Operating transfer in 20,000 165,084
Operating transfer out (20,000) (165,084)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) $ 281,047 $ 16,581

MAJOR FACTORS AFFECTING THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET
ASSETS

The significant changes in revenue occurred in the capital grants, during the year the authority had major construction for the
rural rental housing program of which capital grants were received in the amount of $612,991. The capital funds from HUD

were down $208,179, this activity fluctuates from year to year. Investment income is down due to market conditions.

The increase in total expenses is due largely to the increase in HAP expenditures in 2010, which was $190,919.




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Management’s Discussion of Analytics
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of year end, the Authority had $5,694,014 invested in a variety of capital assets as reflected in the following schedule,
which represents a net increase (addition, deductions and depreciation) of $343,057 from the end of last year.

TABLE 3
CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END
(NET OF DEPRECIATION)

2010 2009
Land and land rights $ 684,414 684,414
Buildings 10,719,302 9,988,023
Equipment - administrative 187,701 216,157
Equipment - dwellings 117,462 99,992
Leasehold improvments 57,495 57,495
Construction in progress - 40,926
Accumulated depreciation (6,072,360) (5,736,049)
TOTAL $ 5,694,014 5,350,958
The following reconciliation summarizes the change in Capital Assets.
TABLE 4
CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS
BEGINNING BALANCE 5,350,958
Additions 739,540
Depreciation (396,484)
ENDING BALANCE 5,694,014
Capital improvements on buildings amounted to: 690,353

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Authority’s debt is listed as current and long-term debt on the statement of net assets and is a loan in the Williamsport
Terrace project a FHA project. The Authority also has a construction loan to renovate a building acquired. This

construction loan to be completed in 2011.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS

Significant economic factors affecting the Authority are as follows:

Federal funding levels of the Department of Housing and Urban Development

Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wage rates

Local inflationary, recessionary and employment trends, which can affect resident incomes and therefore the
amount of rental income

Inflationary pressure on utility rates, supplies and other costs

Market rates for rental housing

IN CONCLUSION

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority takes great pride in its financial management and is pleased to report on
consistent and sound financial condition of the Authority.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

If you have any questions regarding this report, you may contact Kim Hartinger, Executive Director of the Pickaway
Metropolitan Housing Authority at (740) 477-2514.




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Statement of Net Assets
As of December 31, 2010

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $
Cash-tenant security deposits
Investments - unrestricted
Receivables, net of allowance
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments - restricted
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Intergovernmental payables
Tenant security deposits
Deferred revenue
Long-term debt - current portion
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilitics
Long-term debt
Noncurrent liabilities - other
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted net assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS $

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

482.817
26,936
390,608
111,160
14,162
27.608

1,053,291

179,583

240,377
684,414

5,009.600

6,113,974

7,167,265

14,903
69,991
12,304
7,786
19,150
6,700
54

130.888
750,986

13,445
52,546

816,977

947.865

4,936,328
166,138

1,116,934

6,219.400




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

OPERATING REVENUES
Tenant revenue $ 267,792
Government operating grants 3,975,526
Other revenues 30,822
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 4,274,140
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 632,194
Tenant services 1,471
Utilities 102,855
Maintenance 337,637
Insurance 32,671
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 12,304
General 3,525
Housing assistance payments 3,142,304
Bad Debts 27,121
Depreciation expense 396,484
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,688,566
OPERATING LOSS (414,426)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES)
Capital grants 698,107
Investment income 8,908
Interest expense (11,542)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES) 695,473
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 281,047
NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,938,353
NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $ 6,219,400

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

CASH FLLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from tenants
Cash received from HUD and other governments
Cash received from other operating sources
Cash payments for housing assistance payments
Cash payments for administrative and operating expenses

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments
Capital grants
Interest expense
Loan proceeds
Acquisition of capital assets

NET CASH PROVIDED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income
Investment activity

NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET
CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Receivables, net of allowance
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Inventories, net of allowance
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - HUD/other governments
Tenant security deposits
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Deferred revenues
FSS liabilities

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

256,212

3,659,307
30,822
(3,142.304)
(1,183.481)

(379,444)

(3.407)
698.107
(11,542)
174,802

(739,541)

118,419

8,908
(203,462)

(194,554)

(455.579)

1,144,915

689,336

(414,426)
396,484

(48.122)
(842)
(4,177)

(1,242)
1,592
3,641
1.566
4,696

(316,219)

(2,395)

(379.444)




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity
The Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority (PMHA or Authority) was created under the Ohio Revised Code Section

3735.27 to engage in the acquisition, development, leasing, and administration of low-rent housing programs. An Annual
Contributions Contract (ACC) was signed by the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority and the United States
Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437) Section 1.1. The Authority was also created in accordance with state law to
eliminate housing conditions which are detrimental to the public peace, health, safety, morals, or welfare by purchasing,
acquiring, constructing, maintaining, operating, improving, extending, and repairing housing facilities.

The nucleus of the financial reporting entity as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 14 is the “primary government.” A fundamental characteristic of a primary government is that it is fiscally
independent entity. In evaluating how to define the financial reporting entity, management has considered all potential
component units. A component unit is a legally separate entity for which the primary government is financially
accountable. The criteria of financial accountability are the ability of the primary government to impose its will upon the
potential component unit. These criteria were considered in determining the reporting entity.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Authority follows GASB guidance as applicable to
proprietary funds and Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements and chooses not to follow FASB guidance issued after this date.

Basis of Accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and

expenses are recognized in the period earned or incurred. All transactions are accounted for as proprietary fund type in a
single enterprise fund.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Authority considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less

when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Tenant Receivables — Recognition of Bad Debts
Bad debts are provided on the allowance method based on management’s evaluation of the collectability of outstanding

tenant receivable balances at the end of the year. The allowance for bad debts for tenant related receivables was $27,121
at December 31, 2010.

Due From/To Other Programs

The following is the detail to reconcile to the Federal Data Schedule (FDS) submitted to HUD. These are eliminated from
the basic financial statements:

Public Shelter Plus
O.B.A./CHIP Section 8 Housing Care Capital Fund W.T. Total
Due From $ 13494 S 28,492 $ - S - $ - 3 - 8 41,986
Due To $ 9375) $ - $ (24,858) § (6,494) $ - 8 (1,259 S (41,986)
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Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Costs that materially add to the productive capacity or extend the life of an
asset are capitalized while maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. The capitalization policy amount is
$2,500.

Useful Lives: Buildings 27.5 — 40 years
Buildings and Leasehold Improvements 15
Furniture and Equipment 7
Autos 5
Computers 3

Depreciation is recorded on the straight-line method.

Investments
Investments are stated at fair value. Non-negotiable certificates of deposit and money market investments are stated at
cost. Cost-based measurers of fair value were applied to non-negotiable certificates of deposit and money market
investments.

Restricted Cash and Investments
Restricted cash and investments represents amounts received for the home ownership program, restricted HAP monies, 5H
funds, and tenant security deposits.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt
consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for
the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the Board of Commissioners or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws, or regulations of other governments. Restricted net assets are
HAP (NRA) $166,138.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost. The allowance for obsolete inventory was $1,560 at December 31, 2010.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash
State statutes classify monies held by the Authority into three categories.

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet demands on the treasury. Such monies must be maintained either as
cash in the Authority’s Treasury, in commercial accounts payable or withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order
of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits that the Authority has identified as not required for use within the current two-year
period of designation of depositories. Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by certificates of deposit maturing not
later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit accounts including, but not
limited to passbook accounts.

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies which are not needed for immediate use
but which will be needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories. Interim deposits must be
evidenced by time certificates of deposit maturing not more than one year from the date of deposit or by savings or deposit
accounts including passbook accounts.

Protection of Authority’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) by eligible securities
pledged by the financial institution as security for repayment, but surety company bonds deposited with the treasurer by
the financial institution or by a single collateral pool established by the financial institution to secure the repayment of all
public monies deposited with the institution.
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Pickaway Metropolitan Heusing Authority
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS — CONTINUED

Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned. All
deposits are collateralized with eligible securities in amounts equal to at least 105% of the carrying value of the deposits.
Such collateral, as permitted by the Ohio Revised Code, is held in single financial institution collateral pool at Federal
Reserve Banks, or at member banks of the Federal Reserve System, in the name of the respective depository bank and
pledged as a pool of collateral against all of the public deposits it holds or as specific collateral held at the Federal Reserve
Bank in the name of the Authority.

At December 31, 2010, the carrying amount of all Authority deposits was $1,320,321. Based on the criteria described in
GASB Statement No. 40, “Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures”, as of December 31, 2010, $363,113 of the
Authority’s bank balance of $1,363,113 was exposed to custodial risk as discussed above while $1,000,000 was covered
by Federal Deposit Insurance. The $363,113 exposed to custodial risk was collateralized with securities held by the
Authority or its agent but not in the Authority’s name.

Book balances at December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Cash and Cash
Equivalents Investments Total

Public housing $ 229,910 $ 474,241 $ 704,151

Section 8 351,869 156,744 508,613

Rural rental housing 54,657 - 54,657

Business activities 39,406 - 39,406

CHIP 7,000 - 7,000

SPC 6,494 - 6,494

TOTAL $ 689,336 $ 630,985 $ 1,320,321

Restricted cash and cash equivalents: Restricted investments:
Tenant security deposits - PH $ 19,150 $ -
Tenant security deposits - WT 5,220 -
Tenant security deposits - OBA 2,566 -
5-H funds - 240,377
FSS funds 13,445 -
HAP reserve 166,138 -
TOTAIL RESTRICTED CASH AND TOTAL RESTRICTED

CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 206,519 INVESTMENTS $ 240,377

Investments

HUD, State Statute and Board Resolutions authorize the Authority to invest in obligations of U.S. Treasury, agencies and
instrumentalities, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market deposit accounts, municipal depository
fund, super NOW accounts, sweep accounts, separate trading of registered interest and principal of securities, mutual
funds, bonds and other obligations of this State, and the State Treasurer’s investment pool. Investments in stripped
principal or interest obligations reverse repurchase agreements and derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable
notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature
within five years from the date of purchase unless also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from the
date that it will be held to maturity. Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment
for investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the treasurer or, if the
securities are not represented by the certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.

14




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS — CONTINUED

The Authority’s investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at year end.
Category A includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the Authority or its
agent in the Authority’s name. Category B includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are
held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Authority’s name. Category C includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which securities are held by the counterparty or its trust department but not in the authority’s
name.

The Authority’s non-negotiable certificates of deposit are classified as investments on the balance sheet but are considered
as deposits for GASB Statement No. 3 purposes. Therefore, the categories described above do not apply.

CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets at December 31, 2010, by class is as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions Ending Balance
CAPITAL ASSETS, NOT BEING DEPRECIATED
Land $ 684.414 $ - $ - $ 684,414
Construction in progress 40,926 - (40,926) -
CAPITAL ASSETS, BEING DEPRECIATED
Buildings and improvements 9,988,023 731,279 (3,940) 10,715,362
Land improvements - 3,940 - 3,940
Furniture and equipment - dwelling 99,992 17,470 - 117,462
Furniture and equipment - administrative 216,157 31,717 (60,173) 187,701
Leasehold improvements 57,495 - - 57.495
Total 10,361,667 784,406 (64,113) 11,081,960
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION -
Buildings and improvements (5,444,819) (373,185) - (5.818,004)
Furniture and equipment - dwelling (58,434) (12,687) - (71,121)
Furniture and equipment - administrative (205,044) (6,675) 60,173 (151,546)
Land improvements (2,717) (104) - (2,821)
Leaschold improvements (25,035) (3,833) - (28,868)
Total (5,736,049) (396,484) 60,173 (6,072,360)
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS,NET  § 5,350,958 $ 387,922 $ (44,866) $ 5,694,014
ADMINISTRATIVE FEE

The Authority receives an “administrative fee” as part of the annual contribution from HUD to cover the costs (including
overhead) of administering the Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) Programs. The fee is a percentage of a
HUD determined base rate for each unit per month under HAP contracts.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS — PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

All full-time employees of the Authority participate in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), a cost-
sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system administered by the Public Employees Retirement Board.
OPERS provide basic retirement, disability and survivor benefits, based on the eligible service credit to members and
beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. OPERS issue a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for OPERS. Interested parties
may obtain a copy by making a written request to 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or by calling (614)
222-5601 or (800) 222-PERS.

A. Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) administers three separate pension plans as described below:

a. The Traditional Pension Plan — A cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.

15




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

5.

6.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM — CONTINUED

b. The Member-Directed Plan — A defined contribution plan in which the member invests both member and
employer contributions (employer contributions vest over five years at 20% per year). Under the
Member-Directed Plan, members accumulate retirement assets equal to the value of member and (vested)

employer contributions plus, any investment earnings.

c. The Combined Plan — A cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined pension plan. Under the Combined
Plan OPERS invests employer contributions to provide a formula retirement benefits similar in nature to
the Traditional Pension Plan benefit. Member contributions, the investment of which is self-directed by

the members, accumulate retirement assets in a manner similar to the Member-Directed plan.

benefits.

C. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided in Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code.

D. OPERS issues a stand-alone financial report. Interested parties may obtain a copy by writing to OPERS.

Attention: Finance Director, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or by calling (614) 222-5601 or
1-800-222-7377.

and employer contribution rates were consistent across all three plans.
The member contribution rate was 10.0% for 2010, 2009, and 2008 for the Authority.

The employer contribution rate was 14.0% of covered payroll for 2010, 2009, and 2008 for the Authority.

The Authority’s contributions to OPERS for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were $107,710,

$95,466, and $89,755, respectively, which were equal to the required contributions for those years.

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

A. OPERS maintains a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment health care plan, which
includes a medical plan, prescription drug program, and Medicare Part B Premium reimbursement, to qualifying
members of both the Traditional Pension and the Combined plans. Members of the member-Directed Plan do not

qualify for ancillary benefits, including post-employment health care coverage.

In order to quality for post-employment health care coverage, age and service retirees under the Traditional
Pension and Combined plans must have 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Heath care coverage
for disability benefit recipients and qualified survivor benefit recipients is available. The health care coverage
provided by OPERS meets the definition of an Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB

Statement No. 45.

The Ohio Revised Code permits, but does not mandate, OPERS to provide OPEB benefits to its eligible members
and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided in Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code.

OPERS issues a stand-alone financial report which may be obtained by writing to the OPERS, 277 East Town

Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or by calling (614) 222-5601 or (800) 222-7377.
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Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

6.

8.

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM - CONTINUED

B. The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to fund post-retirement health
care through their contributions to OPERS. A portion of each employer’s contribution to OPERS is set aside for
the funding of post retirements health care benefits.

Employer contribution rates are expressed as a percentage of the covered payroll of active members. In 2010, the
Authority contributed at 14.0% of covered payroll. The Ohio Revised Code currently limits the employer
contribution rate not to exceed 14.0% of covered payroll. Active members do not make contributions to the OPEB
Plan.

OPERS’ Post Employment Health Care Plan was established under, and is administered in accordance with,
Internal Revenue Code 401(h). Each year, the OPERS Retirement Board determines the portion of the employer
contribution rate that will be set aside for funding of post-employment health care benefits. For 2010, the
employer contributions allocated to the health care plan was 5.50% of covered payroll. The OPERS Retirement
Board is also authorized to establish rules for the payment of a portion of the health care benefits provided, by the
retiree or their surviving beneficiaries. Payment amounts vary depending on the number of covered dependents
and the coverage selected.

C. The employer contributions that were used to fund post-employment benefits were approximately $54,000 for
2010, $47,730 for 2009, $44,878 for 2008 which were equal to the required contributions for each year.

D. The Health Care Preservation Plan (HCPP) adopted by the OPERS Retirement Board of September 9, 2004, was
effective, January 1, 2007. Member and employer contribution rates increased as of January 1, 2006, January I,
2007, and January 1, 2008, which allowed additional funds to be allocated to the health care plan.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Vacation and sick leave policies are established by the Board of Commissioners based on local and state laws. All
permanent employees will earn 4.0 hours sick leave per 80 hours of service. Unused sick leave may be accumulated
without limit. All permanent employees will earn vacation hours accumulated based on length of service. All vacation
time accumulated will be paid upon separation.

At December 31, 2010, based on the vesting method $85,160 was accrued by the Authority for unused vacation and sick
time. This balance is the combined total of long-term compensated absences of $52,546 and short-term which is included
in accrued liabilities of $32,614.

Beginning

Balance Ending Balance Due in

12/31/09 Additions Deletions 12/31/10 One Year
Compensated absences payable $ 80,464 $ 72,828 3 68,132 $ 85,160 $ 32,614

INSURANCE
The Authority maintains comprehensive insurance coverage with private carriers for health, real property, building

contents and vehicles. Vehicle policies include liability coverage for bodily injury and property damage. There was no
significant reduction in coverage and no settlements exceeded insurance coverage during the past three years.
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Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

9. LONG-TERM DEBT

The Authority manages a multiple family housing project funded by the Department of Agriculture under its rural housing
service. The following is a summary of activity occurring during 2010:

Ending Due in
Beginning Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year
Mortgage
Issued May 10, 1985
Interest Rate 11.875% $ 520,283 $ - S 3,407 § 516,876  $ 3,600
Rehab loan
The Savings Bank
Construction 66,008 174,802 - 240,810 3,100
Total $ 586,291 $ 174,802 $ 3407 $ 757,686
Current 6,700
Long-term $ 750,986

Annual payments required vary: based on a calculation performed on a monthly basis; using the standard loan payment
amount, overages on tenant accountants and the rental assistance requested.

The maximum construction loan credit is $350,000. The current interest rate is 5.875%

10, ACCRUED LIABILITIES

The following is the detail of accrued liabilities at December 31, 2010:

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes $ 36,506
Accrued compensated absences - current 32,614
Other accrued liabilities 871
TOTAL ACCRUED LIABILITIES § 69,991
11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no subsequent events noted to be disclosed through DATE, the date the financial statements were available to
be issued. Any subsequent events after that date have not been evaluated.
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Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Schedule of Federal Awards Fxpenditures
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2010

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Developmeni

Direct
Public and Indian Housing

CFP Cluster
Public Housing Capital Fund
Public Housing Capital Fund, Recovery Act
Total CFP Cluster
Shelter Plus Care
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

Total Direct

Passed through Pickaway County CDBG Program
Home Investment Pwartnership Program (A) CHIP

Total U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U. S. Department of Agriculture
Rural Rental Housing Loans

Total U. S. Department of Agriculture

Total Federal Financial Assistance

See the Notes to the Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures
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FEDERAL
CFDA

NUMBER DISBURSEMENTS
14850 $ 357,614
14.872 112,004
14.885 5,126
117.130
14.238 51,199
14.871 3,448,245
3,974,188
14.239 23,348
3,997,536
10.415 44,724
44,724
$ 4,042,260




.

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Notes to the Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures is a summary of the activity of the Authority’s federal
award programs. The schedule has been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
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Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority

Statement of Net Assels by Program
FDS Schedule Submitted to HUD
As of December 31, 2010

FDS Line
Item 14.238 Shelter
Nuinber Account Description Project Total 1 Business Activities Plus Care
ASSETS
111 Cash - unrestricted 210,760 $ 36,840 6,494
113 Cash - other restricted - - -
114  Cash - tenant security deposits 19,150 2,566 -
100 TOTAL CASH 229,910 39,406 6,494
125  Accounts receivable - miscellaneous 1,129 - -
126  Accounts receivable tenants - dwelling rents 21,599 525 -
126.2  Allowance for doubtful accounts - other (16,821) - -
128  Fraud recovery - - -
128.1  Allowance for doubtful accounts - fraud - - -
129 Accrued interest receivable 92 -
120 TOTAL RECEIVABLES, NET 5,999 525 -
131 Investments - unrestricted 233,864 - -
135 Investinents - restricted 240,377 - -
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets 20,341 754 -
143 Inventories 13,109 - -
1431  Allowance for obsolete inventory (1,300) - -
144 Interprogram due from - 13,494 -
150 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 742,300 54,179 6,494
161 Land 560.154 105,320 -
162  Buildings 9,215,075 291,387 -
163  Furniture and equipment - dwellings 116,053 - -
164  Furniture and equipment - admin 114,576 - -
165 Leasehold improvements 57,495 - -
166  Accumulated depreciation (5,620,499) (62,535) -
160 TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 4,442 854 334,172 -
190 TOTAL ASSETS 5,185,154 388,351 6,494
LIABILITIES
312 Accounts payable <-90 days 9,937 10 -
321  Accrued wages/payroll taxes 11,964 749 -
322 Accrued compensated absences 22,857 1,274 -
325  Accrued interest payable - - -
333  Accounts payable - other government 12,304 - -
341 Tenant security deposits - 2,566 -
342 Deferred revenue 19,150 - -
343 Current Portion of Long Term Debt - - -
345  Other Current Liabilities 54 - -
347 Interprogram due to 24 858 2,375 6,494
310 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 101,124 6,974 6,494
351  Long-term debt - - -
354  Long-term compensated absences 36,518 2371 -
353 Other long-term liabilities - - -
350 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIJABILITIES 36,518 2,371 -
300 TOTAL LIABILITIES 137,642 9,345 6,494
508.1 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,442,854 334,172 -
511.1  Restricted Net Assets . - -
512.1 Unrestricted net assets 604,658 44,834 -
513 TOTAL NET ASSETS 5,047,512 379,006 -
600 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 5,185,154 5 388,351 6,494
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14.885 Formula

14.239 HOME

14.871 Housing Capital Fund Investment 10.415 Rural Rental Interprogram
Choice Vouchers Stimulus Fund Partnerships Program Housing Loans Eliminations Total

$ 172,286 1) 7.000 $ 49,437 - $ 482.817
179,583 - - - 179,583
- - 5,220 - 26,936
351,869 7,000 54,657 - 689,336
82,621 - - - 83,750
1,475 - 2,934 - 26,533
(375) - - (17,196)
32,161 - - - 32,161
(14,417) - - - (14.417)
237 - M - 329
101,702 - 2,934 - 111,160
156,744 - 390,608
- - - - 240,377

5,033 - 1,480 - 27.608
2,613 - - - 15,722
(260) . - - (1,560)
28492 - - (41,986) -
646,193 7,000 59,071 (41,986) 1,473,251
- - 18,940 . 684,414

- - 1,212,840 - 10,719,302

- - 1,409 - 117,462
73,126 - - - 187.702

- - - 57,495
(38,453) - (350,874) - (6,072,361)
34,673 - 882,315 - 5,694,014
680,866 7,000 941,386 (41,986) 7,167,265
1,732 - 3,224 - 14,903
23,794 - - - 36,507
8.483 - - - 32,614

- - 870 - 870

- - - - 12,304

- - 5,220 - 7,786

- - - - 19,150

. - 3,600 - 3,600

- . - - 54

- 7.000 1,259 (41,986) -
34,009 7,000 14,173 (41,986) 127,788

- - 754,086 - 754,086

13,657 - - - 52.546
13,445 - - - 13,445
27.102 - 754,086 - 820,077
61,111 7,000 768,259 (41,986) 947,865
34,673 - 124,629 - 4,936,328
166,138 - - - 166,138
418,944 - 48,498 - 1,116,934
619,755 - 173.127 - 6,219,400
$ 680,866 $ 7,000 ] 941,386 (41.986) $ 7.167,265
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Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority

Statement of Revenues, Fxpenses and Changes in Net Assets by Program
DS Schedule Submitted to HUD

[or the Year Ended December 31, 2010

FDS Line 1 Business 14.238 Shelter
Item No. Account Description Project Total Activities Plus Care
REVENUE
703 Net tenant rental revenue $ 209,839 $ 20,755 $ -
704 Tenant revenue - other 20,492 - -
705 TOTAL TENANT REVENUE 230,331 20,755 -
706 HUD PHA operating grants 389,628 - 51,199
706.1 Capital grants 79,990 - -
708 Other government grants - - -
711 Investment income - unrestricted 3,168 260 2
714 Fraud recovery - - -
715 Other Revenue 9.880 - -
720 Investment income - restricted 2,892 - -
700 TOTAL REVENUE 715,889 21,015 51,201
EXPENSES
911 Administrative salaries 91,158 18,817 588
912 Auditing fees 4,500 - -
913 Management fees - - -
915 Employee benefit contributions - admin 44,908 - -
916 Office Expenses 34,061 577 38
917 Legal Expense 3,000 - -
918 Travel 16,400 - -
924 Tenant services - other 1,471 - -
931 Water 64,914 125 -
932 Electricity 12,575 129 -
933 Gas 9,314 588 -
938 Other utilities 537 - -
941 QOrdinary maintenance/operation - labor 52,671 5,486 -
942 Ordinary maintenance/operation - materials and other 45,767 304 -
943 Ordinary maintenance/operation - contract costs 50,830 2,960 -
945 Employee benefit contributions - ordinary maintenance 17,464 - -
961 Insurance premiums 20,799 690 -
962 Other general expenses 3,525 - -
962.1 Compensated absences 43,249 2,995 -
963 Payments in lieu of taxes 12,304 - -
964 Bad debts - tenant rents 24,167 416 -
967 Interest expense - - -
969 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 553,614 33,087 626
970 EXCESS OPERATING REVENUE OVER/(UNDER)
OPERATING EXPENSES 162,275 (12,072) 50,575
972 Casualty Losses- Non-capitalized (6,651) - -
973 Housing assistance payments - - 50.575
974 Depreciation expense 352,862 10,705
900 TOTAL EXPENSES 899,825 43,792 51.201
1001 Operating transfers in 20,000 - -
1002 Operating transfers out (20,000) - -
1010 Total other financing sources/(uses) - - -
1000 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER/AUNDER) EXPENSES (183,936) (22,777) -
1103 Beginning equity 5,004,167 401.783 -
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR M 4,820,231 $ 379,006 $ -

(¥}
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14.885 Formula 14.239 HOME

14871 Housing Capital Fund Investment 10.415 Rural Rental
Choice Vouchers Stimulus Fund Partnerships Program Housing Loans Total

- $ - h) - $ 14,475 $ 245,069

- - - 2,231 22,723

- - - 16,706 267,792
3,466,627 - - 44,724 3,952,178
- 5,126 - 612,991 698,107

- - 23,348 - 23,348

1,790 - - 34 5254
13,086 - - - 13,086
7.856 - - - 17,736
762 - - - 3,654
3,490,121 5,126 23,348 674,455 4,981,155
184,100 - 3,500 - 298,163
3,566 - - - 8,066

- - - 6,876 6,876

72,494 - - - 117,402
69,586 - - 536 104,798
3,266 - - 1,635 7,901
4,455 - - - 20,855

- - - - 1,471

- - - 10,453 75,492

- - - 1,591 14,295

- - - 1,605 11,507

- - - 1,024 1.561

- - - - 58,157

- - - - 46,071

- - - 168,806 222,596

- - - - 17.464

9,160 - - 2,022 32,671

- - - - 3525

21,889 - - - 68,133

- - - - 12,304

2,538 - - - 27,121

- - - 11,542 11,542

371,054 - 3,500 206,090 1,167,971
3,119,067 5.126 19.848 468,365 3813184
- - - - (6,651)
3,071,881 - 19,848 - 3,142,304
5,310 - - 27,607 396,484
3,448 245 - 23,348 233,697 4,700,108
- - - - 20,000
- R . - (20,000)

41876 5,126 - 440,758 281,047
577.879 222,155 - (267,631) 5,938,353

$ 619,755 $ 227,281 $ - $ 173,127 $ 6,219,400




Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Summary of Activity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

At the close of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority had the
following operations management:

Units
Low Rent Public Housing Program 108
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 635
Rural Rent Housing Program 16
Total Units 759
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Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Actual Modernization Stimulus Grant Cost Certification
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

1 - The Actual Modernization Stimulus Grant Costs are as follows:

Project
OH16-5059-501-09
Funds Approved $ 251,339
Funds Expended 251.339
Excess/(Deficiency) of Funds Approved $ -
Date Submitted March 20, 2010

2 - The distribution of costs as shown on the Schedule/Report of Modernization Stimulus Grant Expenditures
submnitted to HUD for approval are in agreement with the Authority's records.

3 - All Modernization Stimulus Grant Costs have been paid and all related liabilities have been discharged through
payment.
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Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Actual Modernization Grant Cost Certification
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

| - The Actual Modernization Grant Costs are as follows:

Project
OH16-P0O59-501-08
Funds Approved $ 198,561
Funds Expended 198,561
Excess/(Deficiency) of Funds Approved $ -
Date Submitted October 20, 2010

2 - The distribution of costs as shown on the Schedule/Report of Modernization Grant Expenditures submitted to
HUD for approval are in agreement with the Authority's records.

3 - All Modernization Grant Costs have been paid and all related liabilities have been discharged through payment.
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Balestra, Harr & Scherer, CPAs, Inc.

Members American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Members Ohio Society of Certified Public Accountants

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Required by
Government Auditing Standards

Board of Commissioners

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
176 Rustic Drive

Circleville, Ohio 43113

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing
Authority, Pickaway County, Ohio (the Authority) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, and have issued
our report thereon dated May 31, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the
Comptroller General of the United States” Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our audit procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of opining on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we have not opined on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely correct misstatements. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of internal control deficiencies resulting in more than a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
timely corrected.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of reasonably assuring whether the Authority’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we
tested its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do
not express an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters we must
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Board of Commissioners

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority

Pickaway County, Ohio

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Required By
Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

We intend this report solely for the information and use of management, Board of Commissioners, federal awarding
agencies, pass-through entities, and others within the Authority. We intend it for no one other than these specified parties.
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Balestra, Harr & Scherer, CPAs, Inc.
May 31,2011
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Balestra, Harr & Scherer, CPAs, Inc.

Members American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Members Ohio Society of Certified Public Accountants

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Federal Program and on Internal
Control Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Board of Commissioners

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
176 Rustic Drive

Circleville, Ohio 43113

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority, Pickaway County, Ohio, (the
Authority), with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement that could directly and materially affect Pickaway Metropolitan
Housing Authority’s major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2010. The summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings identifies the Authority’s major federal program. The
Authority’s management is responsible for complying with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each major federal program. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Authority’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits included in the Comptroller General of the United States’
Government Auditing Standards; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to reasonably
assure whether noncompliance occurred with the compliance requirements referred to above that could directly and
materially affect a major federal program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing other procedures we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the Authority’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that could directly and materially affect its major federal program for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The Authority’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning
and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with requirements that
could directly and materially affect a major federal program, to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
opining on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133, but not for the purpose of opining on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
have not opined on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance.
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Board of Commissioners

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by OMB Circular A - 133

Page 2

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or to timely detect
and correct, noncompliance with a federal program compliance requirement. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a federal program compliance requirement
will not be prevented, or timely detected and corrected.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

We intend this report solely for the information and use of management, Board of Commissioners, others within the
Authority, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities. It is not intended for anyone other than these
specified parties.

— ,.r ~ / s
Balestra, Harr & Scherer, CPAs, Inc.
May 31, 2011
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Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Schedule of Findings
OMB Circular A-133 Section .505
December 31, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(d)(1 i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
(d)(1)(ii) | Were there any material control weaknesses reported at No
the financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(ii) | Were there any other significant deficiencies in internal No
control reported at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) | Was there any reported material non-compliance at the No
financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)iv) | Were there any material control weakness conditions No
reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(iv) | Were there any significant deficiencies in internal No
control reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion Unqualified
(d)(1)(vi) | Are there any reportable findings under section .510? No
. : : Section 8 Housing Choice
d)(1 Major P list): g
(d)1)(vii) § Major Programs (list Vouchers (CFDA #14.871)
(d)(1)(viii) | Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Programs Type A: > $300,000
Type B: all others
(d)(1)(ix) | Low Risk Auditee? Yes
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Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Schedule of Findings
OMB Circular A-133 Section .505
December 31, 2010

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

None
3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None
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Housing Needs

9.0 Housing Needs

In March, 2011, the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority prepared information and
statistics for use in preparation of an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing for the
Pickaway County Development and Planning Department. The information used in
preparation of the Analysis has provided great insight into Demographic and Housing
Needs of Pickaway County. Excerpts of the Analysis, comparison of our agency
statistics, and relative conclusions drawn are included in this section of the Annual Plan.

History, Statistics and Demographics
Completed March, 2011

INTRODUCTION

The County of Pickaway, Ohio, is a historic small rural county in South-Central Ohio,
with industrial, agricultural and service sectors. Pickaway County has a land area of
2000 square miles, with a density of 105 persons per square mile. Pickaway County is
located within the Columbus Metropolitan Statistical Area. Population according to 2009
U.S. Census Bureau data is listed as 54,734.

DEMOGRAPHICS

Population: The population for Pickaway County has grown by 3.8% between 2000
and mid-2009, showing a total increase to 54,734. Pickaway County’s residential cities
and villages, particularly Circleville and areas north and east, are viewed as “bedroom
communities” when related to Columbus and Lancaster. Persons who do not wish to
live in a larger city but who want proximity to the greater Columbus area or other
locations with enhanced employment opportunities may choose to live in Pickaway
County. In actuality, the loss of industry and large scale employers have slowed the
rate of growth in Pickaway County overall, and Pickaway County has likely lost residents
to other larger communities as a result.

Population with respect to Race and Ethnicity: From a race and ethnicity
demographic, 92.6% of county residents are identified as white persons; 5.7% are
identified as black persons; .3% are identified as American Indian/Alaska Native
persons; .3% are identified as Asian persons; and .9% of the populations is identified as
Hispanic persons or persons with Latino origins. White persons who are not Hispanic
represent 91.7% of the population and persons reporting 2 or more races represent
1.1% of the population. PMHA waiting list data supports these statistics as it pertains to
applicants for housing programs administered by the agency.

Population with respect to age: There are 13,996 persons with age ranging from
birth to 19 years of age, representing 26% of the county population. Persons with age
ranging from 20 to 44 years total 26,583 or 49% of the population, while an overlapping
statistic shows that persons in the age range of 25-64 number 30,180 or 55% of the
population. Those considered “elderly” in the 65-84 year age range total only 6,300




persons or 12% of the population, but as persons continue to age while residing in
Pickaway County, this number will increase, especially if growth remains steady or
population decreases.

Family Composition: U.S. Census Bureau statistics show that through 2005-2009,
Pickaway County’s family household composition continued to follow traditional patterns.
Of 17,885 households, 12,951 were family households, representing 72%. Of those
households, 5,975 were households with their own children under 18 years of age. Male
households, with no wife present represents 635 households (<4%), and female
households with no husband present represents 1,846 households (>10%). Nonfamily
households total 4,934, with householder living alone total 4,079 (83%) and those 65
years of age or older 1,895 (38%). The average household size is 2.74 and the average
family size is 3.23

Disability Population: A 2004 Miami University Scripps Gerontology Center report
citied 40% of Pickaway County residents age 60 or older as having at least one
disability. Of those 60 or older with disabilities, 9.2% have self-care disabilities, and
39% have at least one physical, mental, sensory or self-care disability. These disabilities
in Pickaway County residents will only increase as long-term residents continue to age in
place. The Miami study states that this figure could increase to an estimated 13,495
persons by year 2020 as Pickaway County residents over the age of 60 will increase by
73.3% during this time frame.

Randy Beach, Superintendent of Pickaway County’s Developmental Disabilities
Program, stated that 4% of all Ohioans between ages 18 - 64 have some disability that
interferes with independent living, while 50% of those individuals have limited capacity
for self-care. This is inclusive of cognitive, hearing and ambulatory disabilities. Mr.
Beach stated that he feels those numbers are representative of Pickaway County, and
added that to be eligible for services from his agency’s programs, an individual must
exhibit limited capabilities in 3 out of 8 categories of daily living, in addition to being
diagnosed with a disability.

Language Spoken at Home: For population 5 years of age or older, 98% of the
population speaks English as the only language in their home. Those residents who
speak English “less than well” represent less than 5% of the population. Of persons
who are 5 years of age or older, 475 speak Spanish, 288 speak other Indo-European
languages, 38 speak Asian and Pacific Islander languages, and 86 speak other
languages. :

Income Concentrations: The Pickaway County Median family income is $60,028,
with per capita income in dollars listed as $20,906. For families, 4% of the population
has less than $10,000 in income, 10% have income between $10,000 and $25,000, and
27% have income between $25,000 and $50,000. The largest segments of the
population are 24% having income between $50,000 to $75,000, and 32% of families
listing income between $75,000 and $150,000. Only 3% of families cite income above
$150,000. For nonfamily households, the Median income is $29,309.




In the period 2008-2009, the percentage of families whose income is below the poverty
level is 8.6%. In families with children under 18 years of age, the percentage is listed
as 14.2%, and in families who have related children under 5 years of age, the poverty
level is listed at 22.9%. For traditional married families, these percentages decrease
significantly with 4.4% having income below the poverty level. For traditional
households, when considering related children under 18 years of age, 6.9% of the
households are below the poverty level, and 4.7% of households with related children
under 5 years of age are below the poverty level. In households where the head of
household is female with no husband present, 28.2% of the households fall under the
poverty level. For those households with related children under 18 years of age, 33.7%
fall below the poverty level, and in those households with related children under 5 years
of age, 49.1% of the households fall under the poverty level.

When looking at the entire population of Pickaway County, persons who fall under the
poverty level are listed at 11.7% of the population. Those under 18 years of age who
are under the poverty level are listed at 17.3%, with related children under 18 years
comprising 17% and related children under 5 years comprising 24.8% of individuals
below the poverty level. For persons over 18 years of age, up to age 64 include 10.4%
of the population who fall under the poverty level, and 6.6% of those 65 years of age
and older fall under the poverty level.

Housing Inventory: According to the U.S. Census Bureau, for the period ending
2009, there were 19,796 total housing units in Pickaway County. Of those units, 17,885
were occupied and 1,911 were vacant, representing a minimum 90% occupancy rate
county-wide. As stated in previous analysis, a significant portion of the reported
vacancies are likely occupied units but the occupants may not have participated in the
census. Of these units, most are single family dwellings (79%), duplex units (4%), and
multi-unit complexes (7%). Mobile homes represent 10% of the available housing units.
As could be expected from the economic downturn and the severe impact on the
housing market, only 20 building permits were issued in Pickaway County in 2009. This
is a decrease from 169 permits issued in 2005, and places Pickaway County 67" in the
State in new housing construction. Most existing housing is less than 50 years (63%),
with 5,512 units (28%) being built since 1990. However, since 2005, only 547 new
homes have been constructed in Pickaway County, representing only 3% of the current
housing stock. Over 2,000 homes (12%) were constructed between 1940 and 1960,
and over 4,800 homes built prior to 1939 (25%) remain in the residential portfolio. LMI
families who are homeowners are traditionally single, widowed residents who have
difficulty maintaining their homes. This housing stock primarily consists of wood lap
sided houses with large wooden double hung windows, slate siding and coal, wood, LP
or utility gas systems. Often the electrical is original with phases of updating. Cast iron
drains and galvanized water lines are normal, and usually the exterior has suffered due
to material deterioration from lack of maintenance and age. The local health
department certifies that there are homes in the county that lack indoor plumbing (36
units) and kitchen facilities (61). PMHA staff feels that the majority of new housing
was constructed in northern Pickaway County in the Bloomfield Hills and Foxfire
Subdivisions. Housing construction for the purpose of private rental unit housing is
virtually non-existent in Pickaway County at this time.




Housing Size: Of the units available, 78 are 1 room units (<1%), 185 are 2 room units
(<1%), 838 are 3 room units (4%), 2,517 are 4 room units (13%), 4,832 are 5 room
units (24%), 4,208 are 6 room units (21%), 3,222 are 7 room units (16%), 3,916 have
8 rooms or more (20%).

Of the 19,796 units available, <1% are efficiency units that do not feature a separate
bedroom, 5% are 1 bedroom units, 23% are 2 bedroom units, 52% are 3 bedroom
units, 16% are four bedroom units and 3% have 5 or more bedrooms.

Housing Tenure: Of the units occupied, 13,416 (75%) are owner occupied and 4,469
(25%) are renter-occupied.

Housing Transition: Of the units occupied, 75% have resided in their current unit
since 1990 or later, 18% moved in between 1970 to 1990, and 7% have resided in their
current home prior to 1969.

Housing Affordability: According to the Census Bureau information, of the occupied
units, 3% are paying less than $200 in gross rent; 2% are paying between $200 to $299
in gross rent; 17% are paying $300 to $499 in gross rent; 39% are paying between
$500 to $749 in gross rent; 31% are paying between $750 to $999 in gross rent, 8%
are paying over $1,000 monthly in gross rent.

When applied to percentages of household income, 13% of renters are paying less than
15 percent of their total household income for gross rent. 15% of renters are paying 15
percent to 20 percent of their total household income for gross rent; 16% are paying
20% to 24.9%; 13% are paying 25% to 30%; and 8% are paying 30% to 35%. The
greatest rent burden is borne by 35% of renters in Pickaway County who pay 35% or
more of their household income for gross rent. This group of renters is significantly
burdened with rental and utility costs.

Housing Availability to Moderate Income and LMI: Two of the largest housing
providers to LMI households are the local Housing Authority and Community Action
Agency. At the time this analysis was prepared, the Community Action Agency had 8
vacancies in their tax credit rental properties of Ohio Heights, Lincoln Heights and Prairie
View. At the time this report was written, the local Housing Authority currently had no
vacancies in owned or managed housing, and maintains a waiting list for all properties.
The Housing Choice Voucher program assists households with paying their rent to
private landlords. This waiting list had 734 names and the wait time was approximately
two years for all applicants with the exception of veterans. The public housing program
maintains waiting lists by bedroom size, but the cumulative total of all persons waiting
on housing for bedroom sized units ranging from one to four bedrooms was 331. The
two bedroom wait list is currently closed due to the size of the wait list and the
projected wait time. A Rural Development property in Williamsport had a waiting list of
54 persons. The Housing Authority also manages properties for non-profit organizations
in Pickaway County. Pickaway Terrace currently had a waiting list of 90 applicants, Eden
Place had a waiting list of 15 applicants and Louise Terrace had a waiting list of 6
applicants.




The Housing Authority Housing Choice Voucher Program is authorized to issue 635
vouchers monthly. Because funding available is less than funding needed to sustain 635
vouchers, the average amount of vouchers issued in 2010 was 613 vouchers per month.
In assisting these households, the Housing Authority expended 100% of its funding.
The assistance is issued not only in the form of rental assistance but also utility
assistance based on HUD's calculation for those persons who receive full rental
assistance (rent 100% paid). The amount of assistance required to support each
household has increased to the level that funding does not support the issuance of 635
vouchers per month.

Additionally, voucher assistance is provided for several residents of the Tax Credit
properties owned by the Community Action Agency.

Private Market Response: The private market has provided quality housing in
response to the needs of those seeking to obtain homeownership. Housing
development by Columbus area builders provided many homes in the $100,000 to
$160,000 range. Older homes and smaller homes are primarily those available to low-
and moderate-income residents. These homes often are substandard and require
rehabilitation as they come available. There are no builders who are targeting
affordable housing for households with lower incomes. LMI families often lack the credit
and buying power in the private market. Credit problem and employment records can
curtail any hope of borrowing funds for homeownership in a time when lenders have
tightened mortgage lending criteria.

ASSESSMENT OF HOUSING POLICIES

We have no local media in any language other than English, thus language barriers
would exist for those who are not fluent in the English language. For LMI persons
seeking housing through assisted housing programs, the local housing authority has
access to housing documents printed in various languages. The agency also has
assistance agreements with an interpreter for the hearing impaired and a Spanish
speaking interpreter,

ACCESSIBILITY FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Pickaway County coordinates with the Passport Program to assist individuals with
modification of entryways to their homes in order for them to be more easily accessible.
A local organization, Circle of Caring, also provides modifications such as ramp
construction to ease access at residences. Pickaway County Hands For Disabled assists
with loaning accessible apparatus during any period pending receipt of permanent
equipment, or for those suffering short term disabilities following injury, accident or
surgeries.

The Pickaway County Rural Transit Program provides low cost transportation to person
with disabilities and immigrants. The Pickaway County Department of Jobs and Family
Services also cooperates with the Pickaway County Senior Center to provide adequate
transportation to assist many elderly persons with disabilities. PICCA, the local
Community Action Agency also operates a county-wide transportation program.




Analysis

Statistics from Pickaway MHA, the largest provider of housing assistance in Pickaway
County, support statistics from the Census Bureau.

From the agency waiting lists, for households of all sizes, 75% of the applicants from all
programs have incomes falling below $14,450 annually. The $14,450 represents the
extremely low income guideline (30% of area median income) for a one person
household in Pickaway County. In the largest programs, Housing Choice Voucher and
Public Housing, 81% of all applicants have income below this level. These programs
overwhelmingly represent applicant households including children.

The extremely low income level for a two person household is $16,500, with 12% of the
applicants of all programs reporting incomes between $14,450 and $16,500. The
largest majority of applicants in this group are elderly households. For the Housing
Choice Voucher and Public Housing programs, 5.5% fall into this category. Therefore,
the data reflects that over 86% of all applicants, for the largest two programs
administered by PMHA have annual incomes at or below $16,500.

Female Head of Households represent 80% of all applicants for the Housing Choice
Voucher and Public Housing programs. For all programs combined, this figure
represents 71% of applicants.

While eligibility for our management properties focuses on an age eligibility criteria of 62
years of age or older, PMHA sought to determine how many “older” elderly apply for our
housing programs. We bumped the age search to those who are 65 or older and found
that 3% of program applicants in the Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing
programs fall into this category. The management properties (designated for those 62
years of age or older, disabled or handicapped HOH/S/K) understandably saw a higher
rate of those over 65 who are applying for housing at 53%.

We also reviewed the waiting list data to determine if there were significant applicants
applying for assistance who featured a HOH/S/K who was under 62, but disabled. The
average for combined Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing were 2.5%. The
management properties results were widespread. Pickaway Terrace had 7% of
applicants under 62, but disabled, while Eden Place had 27%. Louise Terrace does not
permit HOH/S/K under 62 to reside in the building. Williamsport Terrace, a Rural
Development property, showed 4% of applicants as disabled, and under 62 years of
age. Pickaway Terrace numbers in this area may be low because the one bedroom
waiting list was closed until Rural Development informed us in 2011 that they do not
permit the closing of waiting lists. '

Based on the waiting list data, it is apparent that area residents are aware of, and apply
for PMHA housing programs.




9.1: PMHA Conclusions and Strategy for Housing Needs
The Housing Choice Voucher program is the PMHA largest program. Funding does not

support the awarded number of 635 vouchers to be issued monthly. The program
consistently expends 98% - 100% of allocated HAP subsidy each year. In 2010, subsidy
expenditure was 100.7%. HCV staff continues to focus on administering a strong
program and receives High Performer status on a repeated basis each year.

The Public Housing program has worked diligently within the last two years to improve
unit turn around time, quality use of capital improvement funds to minimize required
repairs at unit turn around time, and reduction in tenant accounts receivable. The
agency conducts monthly housing inspections of their housing units and maintains a
quarterly pest control treatment rotation. Agency staff is committed to keeping all
residential units at a 98% or higher occupancy rate at all times. The agency recently
purchased a bed bug heat treatment system for use in treating any infested unit under
supervision of the agency. This eliminates the wait time associated with scheduling an
outside contractor to complete the treatment. The Public Housing program also is a
repeat High Performer.

Housing Choice Voucher participants are able to find rental housing in the rural areas of
the county, however a great deal of that rental housing stock is aged. Without
additional HAP funding, it does not appear that a shortage of rental housing through this
program will develop. PMHA works diligently with area landlords to advertise rental
units that are available. This is done by creating a list of area landlords who commonly
rent to persons on the Housing Choice Voucher program, and by maintaining a list of
available rentals which is updated weekly. These lists are available as handouts to
anyone visiting the PMHA office and will be published on our website once the site is
revised. The agency maintains a broad, county-wide listing of rental units through the
Rent Reasonableness program and intends to upgrade this program through new
software and the addition of additional data in 2011 and 2012.

PMHA is currently in year 3 of a 5 year Shelter Plus Care grant. This grant is
administered in cooperation with our local Community Action Agency (PICCA). PMHA
administers the housing component and PICCA provides the supportive service
component of the program. To date, 18 chronically homeless, disabled applicants have
received housing through this program. Program requirements include application to
the Housing Choice Voucher program so that a more permanent housing option is
possible for the future of these persons.

Additional, modern rental housing would be beneficial to the low income residents of the
County. PMHA currently has plans to meet with Housing Consultants to review options
for developing additional housing in the county, or to replace slum or blighted areas of
existing housing. While City of Circleville officials are not open to the construction of
additional housing in the county seat, the majority of applicants continue to originate
from Circleville. Care must be given to ensure that additional housing would not
contribute to blighting and vacancy issues for existing area landlords. Therefore
replacement housing would possibly be more appealing to the city representatives.
Housing development should also be considered for areas nearby the city and adjacent




to other populated areas of the county as many applicants express a desire to reside in
more rural areas.

In an effort to meet the needs of the disabled, elderly population, Pickaway MHA is
currently reviewing options related to the renovation of one or possibly two
management properties for the purpose of eligibility in the Medicaid Assisted Living
waiver program. This program allows persons who need assistance on a daily basis to
remain in a residence rather than experiencing placement in a nursing care facility.

10.0 Additional Information

10.0(a) Progress in Meeting Mission and Goals

The Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority continues to strengthen the programs of
the agency by promoting the mission of the agency. Our Family Self Sufficiency
program, Shelter Plus Care Program and Public Housing program continue to grow and
stabilize the lives of the participants enrolled therein by firm management of program
expectations.

PMHA staff members serve on the Boards of the local Community Action Agency, Senior
Center, Jobs & Family Planning Commission, Older Adult Advocacy Group, and
Continuum of Care, and Pickaway County Summit on Aging. The agency works closely
with Jobs & Family Services, Haven House and Adult Shelters, the local Veterans
organizations, Southeastern Ohio Legal Aid and our local elected officials. We work
hand-in-hand with local law enforcement agencies to eliminate drug use and sales in our
neighborhoods and by our program participants. Pickaway County is experiencing a
growing heroin problem, along with use of prescribed narcotics. The agency is often
first to report a suspected problem in our housing.

PMHA recently experienced the filing of two Fair Housing claims against the agency.
Both claims resulted in findings of No Probable Cause in favor of the agency, but the
result has been an increase in our respect for and awareness of Fair Housing issues. As
a result, we have increased training and discussion of these issues for our staff. We
have also made physical improvements to our properties, and will focus a substantial
portion of current Capital Fund monies on improving driveways and sidewalks to
eliminate trip hazards on public housing property. We have also made improvements to
our management properties by installing additional curb access at Louise Terrace,
bringing the four accessible apartments at Eden Place up to current accessibility
standards, and implementing improvements as the result of a 504 transition plan
completed for Pickaway Terrace. A recent major renovation of Williamsport Terrace also
resulted in compliance renovations to the accessible units at that apartment complex.

PMHA is also committed to improving energy related components of its program. We
recently participated in a program sponsored by AEP resulting in replacement bulbs for
all permanent fixtures in our public housing program residences serviced by AEP. We
are replacing current HVAC units with energy efficient units as they need replaced, and
are adding replacement of aging units as part of our future Capital Improvement plan.
We also only purchase Energy Star appliances, and are replacing windows in the
majority of our public housing units in the interest of efficiency.




10.0(b): Definitions of Significant Amendment and Substantial Deviation/Modification
In considering any significant amendment or modification to the Annual Plan or the Five
Year Plan, the PMHA Board and Executive Director will seek the input and
recommendations of the Resident Advisory Board, guarantee and receive certification
that the amendment/modification is consistent with the local plans of both the City of
Circleville and Pickaway County, conduct a public hearing, adopt the
amendment/modification at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of
Commissioners of the Agency, and submit the amendment/modification to HUD for
approval.

Pickaway MHA currently uses a three level strategy to make changes in operating
policies that would not be considered a Significant Amendment or Substantial
Deviation/Modification to the Five Year Plan or Annual Plan. The staff initially meets to
discuss the need for the change in policy. Statistics or data surrounding the change are
reviewed and discussed in depth, and a recommendation is made and considered by the
Program Coordinator, the Maintenance Supervisor if relevant, the Finance Director and
the Executive Director. If it is determined that change to the current operating policy is
necessary, that policy change is presented to the Board of Commissioners for review.
The Board takes formal action on approval of the change at a regularly scheduled
meeting of the Board. Tenants, landlords, or in any scenario, thee affected party
receives a 60 day notice of the change, prior to implementation.

A Significant Amendment or Substantial Deviation requiring modification to the Annual
Plan or Five Year Plan includes consultation with the Resident Advisory Board, a public
hearing, a review for consistency by local jurisdictions, and approval by HUD. These
actions occur within the time frames established in the Annual Plan requirements. A
Significant Amendment or Substantial Deviation would include changes to rent or
admissions policies or organization of the waiting list outside of the normal course of
doing business, such as the addition of a preference, a change in the use of replacement
reserve funds under the Capital Fund, and any change to PMHA programs in regard to
demolition or disposition, designation, homeownership programs, or conversion
activities.




Advisory Board Meeting
July 6, 2011

The Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority Advisory Board met in previously
scheduled session at the Pickaway MHA Office, 176 Rustic Drive; Circleville, Ohio 43113
on Wednesday, July 6, 2011 with the following members present: Lisa Binkley, Linda
Nicklas, and Donna Hardy. Members Elizabeth Cottrill and Bernadette Hocking were not
present.

The Board discussion focused on review of the 2012 Annual Plan. PMHA Director Kim
Hartinger reviewed changes to the administration of agency programs since the
submission of the previous Annual Plan. A review of planned Capital Improvements was
also given.

Advisory Board members offered the following comments and suggestions:

v Inquiry was made concerning the feasibility of drug screens for all move-ins to
both the Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher recipients.

v" Discussion was held on the Housing Choice Voucher shortfall resolution that
would eliminate program participants on a first in/first out status

v" Support was given for changes in maintenance response to work orders when
children are present with no adult present, and the inclusion of door and lock
repairs on the 24 hour repair list.

v Concern was expressed over funding reductions and the overall impact on
program administration and property management.

v" Discussion was held on past capital improvements and the plans for future
capital improvements

Based on the information provided, Lisa Binkley offered the motion, seconded by Linda
Nicklas to approve the Annual Plan as prepared by Pickaway MHA. A vote by all present
affirmed the motion. There were no nay votes recorded.

Additional discussion was held on funding reductions and options for dealing with the
reduction in administrative monies. Director Hartinger informed the Board that seven of
the eleven office staff members, including the Executive Director and Finance Director
have voiced their plans to retire within the next decade. Two employees with 50 years
of experience will retire in the next two — to - four years, with the remaining staff
leaving in succession. The goal of the agency had been to hire an administrative staff
assistant in 2011. This person would work with all programs and staff members to learn
the operation of PMHA from the “floor up” so that as staffing transitions take place,
knowledgeable persons will be available to fill vacancies. Due to funding reductions, this
position cannot be filled. Comparisons were made to current reductions in staff at Jobs
& Family Services and Scioto Paint Valley Mental Health. JFS is losing 12 staff members
as a result of retirement and resignation. Only 1 person will be replaced. SPVMH is
seeing a 20% reduction in staff, with funding reductions resulting in reduced services to
indigent persons. With the loss in experience of these public agencies, service to
clientele is going to suffer greatly.




Director Hartinger also spent significant time explaining Fair Housing requirements to
the Advisory Board. She outlined the training that PMHA staff undergoes in this area on
an annual basis. To date, in 2011, the training includes subscription to the Fair Housing
Advisor which each staff member is required to read, a Fair Housing Roundtable which
was conducted by Attorney Bill Willis, and an overall staff Fair Housing Training which
will be conducted in August, 2011. This training will be opened to the staffs of other
community agencies, with the local community action organization and the Pickaway
County Fair Housing Coordinator already indicating their intention to attend.

The Board was also informed that PMHA staff intends to dedicate the remainder of 2011
to revising and updating the Administrative Plan of the Housing Choice Voucher program
and the Occupancy Policy of the Public Housing program. The Board will be contacted
to review and comment on these revisions upon their completion.

Concerning appointments to the Board, both Lisa Binkley and Linda Nicklas consented to
reappointment to another 2 year term on the Board.

There being no further business to come before the Board, Donna Hardy offered the
motion to adjourn, seconded by Lisa Binkley. A vote by all present affirmed the motion.
There were no nay votes recorded.




Annual Plan Hearing
Wednesday, August 3, 2011

The 2012 Annual Plan Hearing for the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority was
held, as publicly advertised, on Wednesday, August 3, 2011 at 10:00 a.m. in the Board
Room of the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority offices at 176 Rustic Drive in
Circleville, Ohio.

Present for the hearing were Finance Director Rebecca Curtis, Program Coordinator Terri
Straight, Program Assistants Rebecca Zielinski and Tammy McGlone, Shelter Plus Care
Coordinator Lisa Robbins and Maintenance Supervisor Steven Dearth.

There was no public participation at the hearing. No written comments were received.

Executive Director Kim Hartinger reviewed the format and components of the plan. The
2012 document has been available for public review in the lobby of the PMHA office.
The plan has also been available in the office of the Director. The 2012 Plan is an
Annual Plan that includes updates based upon changes or amendments of PMHA
policies.

The Annual Plan review consisted of discussion of the Plan contents. The staff was
previously aware of these components and did not offer opposition on the policies
reviewed.

Director Hartinger reviewed for those present, all programs administered by PMHA and
included in the discussion, the challenges facing the agency in the coming twelve
months in light of proposed subsidy reductions. The goals and requirements established
in the 2012 Annual Plan will be difficult to administratively manage if severe subsidy
reductions are realized. The Pickaway MHA has always been a High Performing Agency
and will continue to strive for this accomplishment.

Capital Improvements were discussed, with a new round of improvements scheduled to
begin. Also reviewed were changes to current programs and the need to continually
update all Policy and Procedure manuals when there is a change in agency policy.

Director Hartinger informed the staff of the Resident Advisory Board review of the Plan.

The attendance of RAB members at meetings was discussed. The Director asked for the
names of HCV participants who would be potential replacements for RAB members who

do not attend scheduled meetings and who do not contact the office to report a conflict

with a scheduled meeting.

The staff also reviewed the activities of the various Pickaway County boards and
commissions of which staff are members as representatives of Pickaway MHA.

The Hearing concluded at 11:10 a.m. kl-g,m‘ ]20 tﬁgm% r
Kim Hartinger, Executive Director

August 3, 2011
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Commissioners Administrator

Glenn D. Reeser Brad Lutz
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Pickaway County

Board of County Commissioners
139 West Franklin Street
Circleville, OH 43113
740-474-6093  Fax: 740-474-8988
1-800-472-6093

August 16, 2011

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
Mrs. Kim Hartinger, Executive Director
176 Rustic Drive

Circleville, Ohio 43113

Dear Mrs. Hartinger,

The Pickaway County Board of Commissioners has reviewed the Pickaway Metropolitan
Housing Authority’s 2012 Annual Plan and finds that it is consistent with the current Pickaway
County Community Housing Improvement Strategy (CHIS).

Sincerely,




City of Cireleville

Chuck %x

130 S. Court Street, Circleville, Ohio 43113
740/477-2551 fax 740/477-8247

September 1, 2011

Ms. Kim Hartinger, Executive Director
Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
176 Rustic Drive

Circleville, OH 43113

Ms. Hartinger:

The City of Circleville has reviewed the Pickaway County Metropolitan Housing
Authority’s plan for 2012 and finds that it is consistent with the latest CHIS for
the City of Circleville.

Sincerely,

apf K

David M. Crawford
Acting Mayor
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Kim Hartingﬂ

From: "Thomas, lan" <lan.Thomas@development.ohio.gov>
To: "Kim Hartinger" <khartinger@pickawaymha.com>
Sent: Monday, September 12, 2011 2:58 PM

Attach: Pickaway Con Pian Cert.pdf
Subject: RE: Emailing: Pickaway MHA 2012 Annual Plan001.pdf

Kim,

Attached is the Certification of Consistency with the State of Ohio Consolidated Plan that you requested.
Please let me know if | can be of further assistance.

Thanks,

tan

Oh - Department of
lo Develapment

Ian Thomas
Planner 3
Housing and Community Partnerships Office

77 south High Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215
614.466.8744 F614.752.4575

lan.Thomas@development.ohio.gov

o3RS pubhio reoond e, Uniess

oD et Of Deveopme i open to pubiic

CThe el iy, EOSDONRSC Ol

£ g g Uppon ey oaployer ana Provides of ADA Sorviees

From: Kim Hartinger [mailto:khartinger@pickawaymha.com]
Sent: Monday, September 12, 2011 11:00 AM

To: Thomas, Ian

Subject: Emailing: Pickaway MHA 2012 Annual Plan001.pdf

Mr. Thomas:

Please find attached, the Pickaway MHA 2012 Annual Plan for review for compliance with the
Consolidated Plan for the State of Ohio. | have only attached the portions of the plan that | felt would be
relative to your review. | have not attached the approved State Audit, the EIV Policy or the Capital Fund
programs that have an approved Cost Certification. If you need any of these documents, please do not
hesitate to contact my office.

Upon your approval, our plan is ready for submission.
Thank you,

Kim Hartinger

Executive Director

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
176 Rustic Drive

Circleville, Ohio 43113

740-477-2514 (telephone)

740-477-7456 (fax)
khartinger@pickawaymha.com

9/13/2011




- Department of
Oth ’ Development

John R. Kasich, Governor Christiane Schmenk, Director

September 12, 2011

Kim Hartinger, Executive Director
Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
176 Rustic Drive :

Circleville, Ohio 43113

Subject: Certification of Consistency with the State of Ohio’s Consolidated Plan
Dear Ms. Hartinger:

Enclosed please find a certification that the 2012 Annual Plan for the Pickaway Metropolitan
Housing Authority is consistent with the State of Ohio’s Consolidated Plan.

If you have any questions or need further assistance, please contact me at (614) 466-2285.

i

Slncere y,

/

lan Thomas, Planner
Office of Housing and Community Partnerships

Enclosure
77 South High Street 614 | 466 2480
PO. Box 1001 800 | 848 1300

Columbus, Ohio 43216-1001 U.S.A. www.development.ohio.gov

The State of Ohio is an Equal Opportunity Employer and Provider of ADA Services CRE>




Certification by State or Local U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Official of PHA Plans Consistency Office of Public and Indian Housing

with the Consolidated Plan OMB# 2577-0226
Expires 06/30/2011

Certification by State or Local Official of PHA Plans Consistency with
the Ohio Consolidated Plan

1, Michael A. Hiler, Chief. OHCP, Ohio Department of Development certify

that the Five-Year Plan and 2012 Annual PHA Plan of

the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority _is consistent with the Consolidated Plan

of __the State of Ohio prepared pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91.

_/

/ /M\J Date: September 12, 2011
Michael A. Hiler, Chief

Office of Housing and Community Partnerships
Ohio Department of Development

form HUD-50077-SL (1/2009)
OMB Approvai No. 2577-0226




Resolution 11-22: Adoption of Agency Annual Plan

The Board of Commissioners of the Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority met in
Regular Session at the office the Board, located at 176 Rustic Drive, Circleville, Ohio
43113 on Friday, August 12, 2011 with the following members present: Mr. Litzinger,
Ms. Schieber, Ms. Peters, Mr. Shasteen and Ms. Yingling.

During business conducted while in session, Director Hartinger reviewed for the Board,
the process involved in completion and submission of the Pickaway MHA Agency Plan.
The Advisory Board has completed their review of the Plan and approved it for
submission to HUD. A public hearing was conducted with no public participation. The
agency staff present at the hearing did concur with the plan as written. Final steps will
be to obtain PMHA Board approval, and compliance statements from the city, county
and state. Once these are received, the 2012 Annual Plan can be submitted to HUD.

The Plan was previously submitted to the PMHA Board for their review and comment. A
brief discussion was held on the contents of the Plan and the importance of Capital Fund
allocations to the successful administration of the Pickaway MHA Public Housing
program.

Based on the information provided, Ms. Peters offered the motion to adopt Resolution
11-22 as follows:

Whereas, Pickaway MHA is required to compose and submit an Annual Plan each year
and a Five Year Plan every five years, and

Whereas, Pickaway MHA did submit a Five Year Plan in 2010, therefore requiring the
submission of an Annual Plan only for FY 2012, and

Whereas, the 2012 Annual Plan has been prepared and submitted for review to the
Pickaway MHA Board of Commissioners, the Pickaway MHA Resident Advisory Board,
and will be submitted to the City of Circleville and the Pickaway County Commissioners,
and the State of Ohio as required, and

Whereas, a Public Hearing was held on Wednesday, August 3, 2011 for the purpose of
receiving and implementing public comment on the plan with no public participation or
written comment received, then

Therefore Be It Resolved, that the Board of Commissioners of the Pickaway Metropolitan
Housing Authority do hereby certify that said Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority
will carry out the public housing program of the agency in conformity with Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1973, and Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and
will continue to affirmatively further Fair Housing, and

Be It Further Resolved, that the Board of Commissioners of the Pickaway Metropolitan
Housing Authority do hereby approve the submission of the PMHA 2012 Annual Plan to
the Ohio Department of Development for review, and upon approval, for subsequent
submission to HUD, and




Be It Further Resolved, that the Board of Commissioners of the Pickaway Metropolitan
Housing Authority do hereby authorize Chairman Dan Litzinger to sign HUD Form-50076
Certifying Compliance with the PHA Five Year and Annual Plan and Related Regulations.

Mr. Shasteen seconded the motion and a vote on the motion was as follows: Voting
Yes: Ms. Schieber, Ms. Yingling, Mr. Shasteen, Ms. Peters, and Mr. Litzinger. Voting
No: None. Motion carried.

Resolution 11-22 adopted.




PHA Certifications of Compliance

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

with PHA Plans and Related OMB No. 2577-0226
~R e gulatiomns Expires 06/30/2011

PHA Certifications of Compliance with the PHA Plans and Related Regulations:
Board Resolution to Accompany the PHA 5-Year and Annual PHA Plan

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairman or other
authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the____ 5-Year and/or _ Annual PHA
Plan for the PHA fiscal year beginning, hereinafter referred to as” the Plan”, of which this document is a part and

make the following certifications and agreements with the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in connection with
the submission of the Plan and implementation thereof:

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

The Plan is consistent with the applicable comprehensive housing affordability strategy (or any plan incorporating such
strategy) for the jurisdiction in which the PHA is located.
The Plan contains a certification by the appropriate State or local officials that the Plan is consistent with the applicable
Consolidated Plan, which includes a certification that requires the preparation of an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing
Choice, for the PHA's jurisdiction and a description of the manner in which the PHA Plan is consistent with the applicable
Consolidated Plan.
The PHA certifies that there has been no change, significant or otherwise, to the Capital Fund Program (and Capital Fund
Program/Replacement Housing Factor) Annual Statement(s), since submission of its last approved Annual Plan. The Capital
Fund Program Annual Statement/Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report must be submitted annually even if
there is no change.
The PHA has established a Resident Advisory Board or Boards, the membership of which represents the residents assisted by
the PHA, consulted with this Board or Boards in developing the Plan, and considered the recommendations of the Board or
Boards (24 CFR 903.13). The PHA has included in the Plan submission a copy of the recommendations made by the
Resident Advisory Board or Boards and a description of the manner in which the Plan addresses these recommendations.
The PHA made the proposed Plan and all information relevant to the public hearing available for public inspection at least 45
days before the hearing, published a notice that a hearing would be held and conducted a hearing to discuss the Plan and
invited public comment.
The PHA certifies that it will carry out the Plan in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing
Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and title IT of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.
The PHA will affirmatively further fair housing by examining their programs or proposed programs, identify any
impediments to fair housing choice within those programs, address those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the
resources available and work with local jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction's initiatives to affirmatively further
fair housing that require the PHA's involvement and maintain records reflecting these analyses and actions.
For PHA Plan that includes a policy for site based waiting lists:
The PHA regularly submits required data to HUD's 50058 PIC/IMS Module in an accurate, complete and timely manner
(as specified in PIH Notice 2006-24);
The system of site-based waiting lists provides for full disclosure to each applicant in the selection of the development in
which to reside, including basic information about available sites; and an estimate of the period of time the applicant
would likely have to wait to be admitted to units of different sizes and types at each site;
Adoption of site-based waiting list would not violate any court order or settlement agreement or be inconsistent with a
pending complaint brought by HUD;
The PHA shall take reasonable measures to assure that such waiting list is consistent with affirmatively furthering fair
housing;
The PHA provides for review of its site-based waiting list policy to determine if it is consistent with civil rights laws and
certifications, as specified in 24 CFR part 903.7(c)(1).
The PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975.
The PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, Policies and Procedures for the
Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped.
The PHA will comply with the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, Employment
Opportunities for Low-or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 CFR Part 135.
The PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable.

Previous version is obsolete Page 1 of 2 form HUD-50077 (4/2008)




13. The PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business enterprises under 24
CFR 5.105(a).

14. The PHA will provide the responsible entity or HUD any documentation that the responsible entity or HUD needs to carry

- out its review under the National Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in accordance with 24 CFR Part 58
or Part 50, respectively.

15. With respect to public housing the PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD determined wage rate requirements under
Section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

16. The PHA will keep records in accordance with 24 CFR 85.20 and facilitate an effective audit to determine compliance with
program requirements.

17. The PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992, and 24 CFR Part 35.

18. The PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of OMB Circular No. A-87 (Cost Principles for State,
Local and Indian Tribal Governments), 2 CFR Part 225, and 24 CFR Part 85 (Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Cooperative Agreements to State, Local and Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments).

19. The PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner consistent with its Plan and will utilize
covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the regulations and included in its Plan.

20. All attachments to the Plan have been and will continue to be available at all times and all locations that the PHA Plan is
available for public inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available for public inspection along with
the Plan and additional requirements at the primary business office of the PHA and at all other times and locations identified
by the PHA in its PHA Plan and will continue to be made available at least at the primary business office of the PHA.

21. The PHA provides assurance as part of this certification that:

(i) The Resident Advisory Board had an opportunity to review and comment on the changes to the policies and programs
before implementation by the PHA;

(ii) The changes were duly approved by the PHA Board of Directors (or similar governing body); and

(iii) The revised policies and programs are available for review and inspection, at the principal office of the PHA during
normal business hours.

22. The PHA certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable Federal statutory and regulatory requirements.

B Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority OHO59
PHA Name PHA Number/HA Code

5-Year PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 20 - 20
Annual PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 2012 2( 13

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Warning: HUD will
prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official Title
Daniel Litzinger Chairman, Board of Commissioners

/ ST

Previous version is obsolete Page 2 of 2 form HUD-50077 (4/2008)
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Certification for
a Drug-Free Workplace

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development

Applicant Name
Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding

HUD Public Housing Capital Fund Grant

Acting on behalf of the above named Applicant as its Authorized Official, I make the following certifications and agreements to
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the sites listed below:

I certify that the above named Applicant will or will continue
to provide a drug-free workplace by:

a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the un-
lawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use
of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Applicant's work-
place and specifying the actions that will be taken against
employees for violation of such prohibition.

b. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to
inform employees ---

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free
workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and
employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees
for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

c. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged
in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement
required by paragraph a.;

d. Notifying the employee in the statement required by para-
graph a. that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the
employee will ---

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her convic-
tion for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the
workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

e. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days
after receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2) from an em-
ployee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, includ-
ing position title, to every grant officer or other designee on
whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federalagency has designated a central point for the
receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification
number(s) of each affected grant;

f. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar
days of receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2), with respect
to any employee who is so convicted ---

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an
employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the
requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended,; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfacto-
rily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program ap-
proved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

g. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-
free workplace through implementation of paragraphs a. thru f.

2. Sites for Work Performance. The Applicant shall list (on separate pages) the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the
HUD funding of the program/activity shown above: Place of Performance shall include the street address, city, county, State, and zip code,
Identify each sheet with the Applicant name and address and the program/activity receiving grant funding.)

All work completed under AMP #0H059000001. Sites included in the Capital Fund improvement projects could be
Lexington Avenue, Rich Street, Madison Street and Griggs Street in Ashville, Ohio 43103; School Street in Williamsport,
Ohio 43164, Pontious Lane, Rustic Drive, Rustic Court, Barry Drive, Francene Court, Kingston Court, Washington Street,
Logan Street, Meadow Drive and Walnut Street in Circleville, Ohio 43113. The Pickaway MHA office is located at 176
Rustic Drive; Circleville, Ohio 43113 with all employees and contracts administered at this site.

Check here D if there are workplaces on file that are not identified on the attached sheets.

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penaities.

(18 U.8.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31U.8.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official
Kim Hartinger

Title

Executive Director

Signature

Date

X \4\“. )/\\hﬂmiou'

9-12-3201
form HUD-50070 (3/98)

ref. Handbooks 7417.1, 7475.13,7485.1 & .3




Certification of Payments
to Influence Federal Transactions

—

OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (Exp. 01/31/2014)
U.S. Department of Housing

and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing

Jplicant Name

Pickaway Metropolitan Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding

HUD Public Housing Capital Fund Grant

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connec-
tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement,

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
~Djsclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its
structions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards
at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
sub recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered
into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010,

1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official

Kim Hartinger

Title

Executive Director

Signature

Date {mm/dd/yyyy)

0%/12/a01

Previous edition is obsolete form HUD 50071 (3/98)

ref. Handbooks 7417.1, 7475.13, 7485.1, & 7485.3




DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES
Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352

Approved by OMB
0348-0046

(See reverse for public burden disclosure.)

1. Type of Federal Action:
E a. contract
b. grant
c. cooperative agreement
d. loan

e. loan guarantee
f. loan insurance

2. Status of Federal Action:

Eaja. bid/offer/application
b. initial award

¢c. post-award

3. Report Type:
EI a. initial filing

b. material change
For Material Change Only:
year quarter
date of last report

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:
b_g] Prime D Subawardee

Tier , if known:

Congressional District, if known: 7

5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

Congressional District, if known:

6. Federal Department/Agency:
Department of Housing & Urban
Development

7. Federal Program Name/Description:

Public Housing Capital Fund Grant
CFDA Number, if applicable:

8. Federal Action Number, if known:

9. Award Amount, if known:

$

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Entity
(if individual, last name, first name, Ml).

n/a

b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if
different from No. 10a)
(last name, first name, MI).

(attach Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLLA, if necessary)

11. Amount of Payment (check all that apply):

$ JE D actual D planned

13. Type of Payment (check all that apply):

D a. retainer
[] b. one-time fee

12. Form of Payment (check all that apply).
D a. cash

] b. in-kind; specify: nature
value

1 c. commission
[] d. contingent fee
[ e. deferred

D f. other; specify:

14. Brief Description of Services Performed or to be Performed and Date(s) of Service, including officer(s),
employee(s), or Member(s) contacted, for Payment indicated in Item 1:

(attach Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLLA, if necessary)

or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This
information will be reported to the Congress semi-annually and will be available for
public inspection. Any person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less that $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

15. Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLLA attached: [ Yes K] No
Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.8.C. section H . :

16' 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact Slgnature' ——%‘L-\m%‘ 4
upon which refiance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made Print Name: Klm Hartlnge

Titte: Executive Director
Telephone No.: _740-477-2514

Date: _94-12-20l

Federal Use Only:

Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)




H

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal
action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreementto make
payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employeeof any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employeeof a Member of Congress in connectionwith a covered Federal action. Use the SF-LLLA Continuation Sheet for additionalinformation if
the space on the form is inadequate. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance
published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action.
2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action.

3. |dentify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a followup report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter
the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal
action.

4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriate classification
of the reporting entity that designatesif it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee
of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants.

5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee,” then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal
recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.

6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. include at least one organizationallevel below agency name, if known. For
example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.

7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments.

8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number;
Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number
assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001."

9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan
commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying entity engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered

Federal action.

(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and
Middle Initial (MI).

11. Enter the amountof compensationpaid or reasonablyexpectedto be paid by the reporting entity (item 4) to the lobbying entity (item 10). Indicate whether
the payment has been made (actual) or will be made (planned). Check all boxes that apply. If this is a material change report, enter the cumulative
amount of payment made or planned to be made.

12. Check the appropriatebox(es). Check all boxes that apply. If paymentis made through an in-kind contribution, specify the nature and value of the in-kind
payment.

13. Check the appropriate box(es). Check all boxes that apply. If other, specify nature.

14. Providea specific and detailed description of the services that the lobbyist has performed, or will be expectedto perform, and the date(s) of any services
rendered. Include all preparatory and related activity, not just time spent in actual contact with Federal officials. Identify the Federal official(s) or
employee(s) contacted or the officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) of Congress that were contacted.

15. Check whether or not a SF-LLLA Continuation Sheet(s) is attached.

16. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it dispiays a valid OMB Control
Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is
estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Managementand Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington,
DC 20503.




